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AUROBINDO AT A GLANCE

Aurobindo is a leading global pharmaceutical company
producing oral and injectable generic formulations and
active pharmaceutical ingredients.

Development and growth of Aurobindo stretches over
three decades, only made possible by its intense focus
on productivity, operational efficiency and commitment

to highest standards of quality. ?1 50 899
)

Strengthened by several large manufacturing facilities Million

approved by US FDA, UK MHRA, MCC-SA, ANVISA Brazil CONSOLIDATED REVENUE
for both APIs & formulation, Aurobindo markets in over 2016-17

150 countries, with a critical mass in US and Europe.

Aurobindo's robust product portfolio is spread over seven 27 /0 CAGR

major therapeutic/product areas including antibiotics, CONSOLIDATED REVENUE
anti-retrovirals, cardiovascular (CVS), central nervous FOR PAST 5 YEARS

systems (CNS), gastroenterologicals, anti-diabetics and

anti-allergics, supported by an outstanding R&D set-up. 880/

The in-house scientific pool creates intellectual wealth 0 REVENUE
for the Company and commercializes cost effective, INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS
quality generic finished dosages. CONSOLIDATED 2016-17

The competitive advantage of the Company is the broad
portfolio of diversified dosage forms including Rx and
OTC oral solids & liquids, injectables, ophthalmics,
specialty products and controlled substances. The focus
is on complex molecules, differentiated technology
platforms and specialty products.
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THE WAY FORWARD

The Company is building leadership position in the
business with its technical excellence, expertise in
quality assurance, compliance with regulatory standards,
and being recognized for cost competitiveness and
customer focus.

Aurobindo aims to gain market share for existing
products and by the introduction of new launches
(presently 115 ANDAs under review). Products under
review include 38 ANDA filings for injectables,
inhalation and ophthalmics.

We are future proofing value creation for Aurobindo with
new initiatives which include gaining entry into complex
R&D products in differentiated technology platforms

such as biosimilars, depot injections, inhalers, nasal and
dermatology products.

Plans are to expand penetration of OTC products and
capitalize on OTC conversions and enhance nutraceutical
business profitability through a combination of cost and
growth synergies.

In Europe, the strategy is to ramp up own filings and
gain market share, with focus on enhancing profitability.

Forward plans in ARV business are to launch new
products including combinations, as well as grow the
existing market. New geographies are being explored in
the emerging markets.

API capacities are being augmented to support growth
in advanced markets.

Top 3

In India
among pharmaceutical companies*

Top 6

In the US
generic company by volume?

Top 15

In Europe
generic company by sales®

1 As per 2016-17 revenues.

2 IMS National Prescription Audit, Total prescriptions
dispensed, twelve months ending April 2017.

3 Market Reports.

Annual Report 2016-17
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CUMULATIVE ANDA FILINGS & APPROVALS

(as at March 31)

429
398
376
[ under review
[ Tentative approval
[l Final approval
2015 2016 2017

As per IMS MAT, addressable market is USD 61.1 billion for products under
review and tentatively approved ANDAs as at March 31, 2017

(Tentative as at March 31, 2017 include 10 ANDA approved under PEPFAR).

Cardiovasculars 27.4
Neurosciences 82 25.7
Anti-retrovirals* 39 8.0
Anti-diabetics 13 5.4
Gastroenterologicals 27 5.0
Controlled substances 16 2.3
SSP & Cephalosporin 30 1.0
Oncology 2 0.6
Ophthalmics 10 0.6
Respiratory 10 0.6
Penems 4 0.5
Others 127 14.0
Total 429 91.1

*Does not include the addressable market of the products
approved under PEPFAR.

Corporate office in Hyderabad, India.

Manufacturing facilities

(including wholly owned subsidiaries) Research & Development Centers

India 19 India 5
us 3 us 2
Brazil 1

housing 1,400 + professionals.

Marketing offices in 30 countries.
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REVENUE BREAK-UP

2016-17 % Million

Formulations
120,454.2

FORMULATIONS REVENUE (%)

Us 57
Europe 27
Emerging markets & ARVs 16

70% in-house API

VERTICALY INTEGRATED FOR
FORMULATIONS MANUFACTURE




REVENUE PROFIT AFTER TAX

CONSOLIDATED ~ Z Million CONSOLIDATED  Z Million
150,898.6 22,958.8
139‘5522 | 20,236.2 |
2015-16  2016-17 2015-16  2016-17
. EARNINGS PER SHARE
EBITDA CONSOLIDATED 3
CONSOLIDATED ~ Z Million 39.3
34,342.8 34.7
31,881.2
2015-16  2016-17 2015-16  2016-17
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS
CONSOLIDATED ~ Z Million RETURN ON INVESTMENT
32,785.8 CONSOLIDATED %
142
12.7
14,197.6
2015-16  2016-17 2015-16  2016-17

US FORMULATIONS

Revenues < Million

68,272.3
60,785.5

FORMULATIONS REVENUE

2016-17 % Million

68,272.3 18
CPNEEY Europe

ARelHlel Y Emerging markets & ARVs

—

2015-16 2016-17

‘EBITDA (Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization) excluding forex & other income
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Investing In reliability

| am pleased to report that 2016-17 was another satisfactory year for Aurobindo
with solid growth in sales in all major geographies. New benchmarks were
recorded in gaining market presence in US, Europe and emerging markets, in a

continuing story of exemplary growth.

talent, resiliency and resourcefulness of our 16,000+
employees across the globe. Because of their dedication
and commitment demonstrated every working day, our
products are presently marketed in 150+ countries, and are

growing in all geographies.

All the manufacturing facilities were streamlined and
optimized to increase throughput, add to our reliability
levels and maintain profitability. They improved on their
process efficiencies to deliver exceptional performance,
while meeting aggressive goals in product launches and
market presence. Our experienced professionals, supported

by continued investment in state-of-the-art manufacturing

equipment, are an enormous competitive strength.

. . There was unrelenting focus to raise the bar. We redefined
The year witnessed an incremental sales of 8.1% over the 9

. - . our project timelines, made marked progress in suppl
previous year at ¥150,899 million, at the consolidated ur proj 1mett prog h Supply

. L chain performance and material planning, augmented
level. The Company's diversified product portfolio in oral P P 9. aug

- . - alternate source of supplies, fine tuned production
solids including controlled substances and injectables made PP P

. . . - scheduling, asset utilization and productivity, all of which
all the difference in a challenging and competitive market. 9 P y

- . - have worked together to enhance our reliability quotient
We are continuing to build a strong pipeline and are

. . with our customers. We have further supplemented our
confident that we shall ensure sustainable growth, well

. manufacturing infrastructure, to add to our market presence
into the future.

and value creation. Going ahead, one more large

Earnings before interest, depreciation and tax before forex manufacturing facility - Unit X at Nayudupeta - and a
and other income (EBITDA) for the year at ¥34,343 million biosimilars manufacturing unit are being commissioned in
reflected a 7.7% growth. We faced head winds, but 2017-18.

maintained the EBITDA margin for the year at 22.8%, the

. . . Our organizational structure ensures sharp focus and
same as in the previous year. Profit after tax at ¥22,959 9 P

tability, | i inherent bilities. W
million was higher by 13.5% over 2015-16. Earnings per accolintabiiity, leveraging on our inherent capabilities. e

have been ramping up our operations to generate
share for the year were healthy at ¥39.3. ping up P 9
continuous and sustainable improvement, to enhance the

This extraordinary financial achievement is the result of the quality of our processes, ensure that we comply with all the
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So far what we have achieved is only the
beginning of things to come. We expect
robust growth to continue for the
foreseeable future. Actually, we are

building a moat around us.

standard operating procedures and pare down our costs.

This now is the mindset of our team.

| am excited to share with you that we have forayed into
biosimilars development, to continue with our strategy of
investing in complex portfolio. New initiatives into

oncology, dermatology, inhalers, nasal products, specialty
injection products, peptides, vaccines etc are progressing

to schedule.

| am equally excited that during the year, Aurobindo
acquired Generis Farmacéutica S.A., a generic
pharmaceutical firm that focuses on both the retail and
hospital segments. Generis has a wide portfolio of products
with major share in the therapeutic areas of cardiovascular
(CVS), central nervous system (CNS), anti-infectives and

genito-urinary system ailments.

Generis is the most sold pharmaceutical brand in Portugal,
and is the 2nd largest generic group in Portugal and would
establish Aurobindo as the leading generics group in that
country. We also acquired the rights, title and interest in
products Calcium and Calcium Vitamin D3, including the
use of the Orocal trademark for the France market. This is
in-line with our corporate plan to ramp up our presence in
Europe, to generate a strong revenue stream from those

developed markets.

So far what we have achieved is only the beginning of
things to come. We expect robust growth to continue for
the foreseeable future. Actually, we are building a moat
around us. Increasingly, we will be seen working on newer

technologies and more complex product range. We have

further strengthened our competitive position by
enhancing our product development capabilities. | must
assure all our stakeholders that we have the necessary
expertise, while some of the infrastructure is being made

ready, in time.

We work beyond business. As a responsible corporate, we
are committed to achieving economic success; our
stakeholders expect it of us. Yet, we believe that key to the
business success lies in finding a balance between the
social, environmental and economic responsibilities that we

face.

We have done considerable work to foster positive
relationships in the communities where our facilities exist,
as well as minimized consumption of resources especially
water and fossil fuel. We believe strong safety performance
contributes to our competitive strength and benefits our
employees. These are of course, a continuing effort; on-

going up gradation is hence, a work-in-progress.

| appreciate the strong support of our shareholders and
business partners and the reliable counsel of our Board
including our newest Director Mr. Rangaswamy
Rathakrishnan lyer who joined the Board and

Dr. Rajagopala Reddy who stepped down, both in February
2017. We welcome Mr. Rangaswamy and wish Dr. Reddy all

the very best in his pursuits.

I am deeply thankful to all our stakeholders for their
encouragement and support. In particular, I am grateful to
our inherent strength - all our employees. | am extremely

proud of them.

w .- Y
S

-
K. Nithyananda Reddy

Vice Chairman

Annual Report 2016-17
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On a runway to growth

We did well on all counts. Revenues, EBITDA, earnings per share were increased.
Our product pipeline was enhanced and we were able to launch several complex
products. Challenges were many, but the entire organization stood up to reinforce

the core of our business, optimized the value of our portfolio and increased our

commitment to long-term value creation.

On an everyday basis we dedicated ourselves to

compliance, quality and a healthier life for our customers.

Overall, we invested in reliability in whatever we do and
are working to ensure, we are on a runway to continual

growth.

US formulations business contributed 57% to the overall
formulations revenue during the year, as against 55% in
the previous year. The revenue generated from the US
business grew by 12.3% at 68,272 million in 2016-17

over the previous year sales of 360,785 million.

A
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In the highly competitive US market, we have become the
6th ranked Rx supplier of prescriptions dispensed (as per
IMS National Prescription Audit, April 2017).

We launched 35 products in the US market during the year
under review. In 2016-17, we received approvals for 61
ANDAs and filed 31 ANDAs. With our increasing product
pipeline, we believe we can further strengthen our market
position in 2017-18 and set the course for future growth

prospects.

In Europe, we witnessed a growth of 4.7%, to reach
revenues of 32,771 million, during the year. The focus
continues to achieve improved synergies between the
acquired businesses at Western Europe with the Company's

existing product pipeline.

In all the addressable European markets, there was volume
growth, improved market presence as well as enhanced
profitability, supplemented by increased manufacturing in
India for larger number of products. With the
commissioning of Unit XV at Parawada in Visakhapatnam,
the exercise of transferring the manufacturing base to India
is on-going to streamline and integrate the operations,
optimize costs, improve information flow, facilitate
decision making and enable better supervision and control.
All of these initiatives are work-in-progress, to enhance
profitability.

We have reinforced our presence in Western Europe with
both manufacturing and marketing footprint with the
acquisition of Generis as well as branded products, to
expand our presence in those developed markets. We shall
optimize resources and stay, as always, focused on

profitability.



At Aurobindo, we have always believed

that execution is everything and

galvanize ourselves to deliver superior

performance results.

Our antiretroviral product segment and emerging market
presence were further strengthened with launch of key
products and selective geographical expansion. The product

mix has been reinforced, to add to our overall profitability.

In our newer businesses - Nutraceuticals and OTC - both
sales and profits have shown considerable improvement.
Both the businesses are showing encouraging signs of
growth and our ambition is to maintain strong profit

margins with new introductions.

During the year, capacity utilization was increased at every
production facility to meet the growing portfolio. In our
readiness for the future, we have further augmented the

manufacturing facilities, for both APIs and formulations.

We are doing research and development (R&D) on difficult
to manufacture, differentiated orals and injectable
products. We have in place developmental quality assurance
systems, strengthened the review methodologies, simplified
processes and practices in analytical, formulation and
clinical procedures. We are further reducing the runtime of
analytical methods of batches during commercial runs.

Overall, our R&D productivity stood enhanced.

We have strengthened the quality culture through learning
partnerships, by being deliberate about our commitment to
standard operating procedures, developing confidence &
communication towards increasing audit interface

capabilities.

As we grow at an accelerated pace, there is an increasing
need to improve leadership capabilities to align with the
growth opportunities of the Company. We at Aurobindo

continue to attract the best talent in the industry, have a

vast resource pool of competent and industry experienced

professionals.

During the year, we have invested in employee engagement
like never before, at all levels, to create an organization
that performs to new, high benchmarks. Goal setting was
not only on achieving higher revenues and volumes, but
was focused on quality, safety, cost compression, yield
optimization, debottlenecking, inventory reduction,

delivering on time and building better relationships.

Our execution excellence considerably aided our overcoming
the challenges of the market. Our customers see us as a
single window, reliable source for several of their product
needs, supported as we are by the vertical integration with
70% of APIs sourced in-house for our large basket of
formulation sales. While we incrementally improved the
growth momentum, we de-risked the business, with larger
product portfolio, wider spread of markets, alternate
sources of raw materials and enlarged manufacturing

facilities.

The excitement has begun. We have made prudent
investment decision to ensure that we make use of the
market opportunities that are open to us. Each of our
newer product lines and technologies, as they
commercialize, will hasten our attempt to build a robust
Aurobindo. The focus will continue to expand the revenues,
protect profitability and grow the bottom line.

It is with confidence in our abilities and enthusiasm to
deliver results that we approach the task of building for the
future. At Aurobindo, we have always believed that
execution is everything and galvanize ourselves to deliver
superior performance results. | must therefore assure all our
stake holders that our best is yet to come. You can count

on us.

c

N. Govindarajan
Managing Director

Annual Report 2016-17



New Initiatives

Aurobindo on its journey to be a science based company, has a clear vision of its
role to be a key provider along the value chain, with a commitment to excel in
its voyage. Our reservoir of in-house expertise gives us confidence to make an

Impact on a few more select platforms.

The work we do now is likely to strengthen and shape the future of Aurobindo,
enrich the business mix, augment revenues, improve profitability, ensure

sustainable growth and add value to everyone associated with the Company.

We have made a head start on several fronts.

10 | <
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Biosimilars

Aurobindo's foray into biosimilars is in line with the
Company's strategy of investing in complex products, to
address the pressing need of reducing health care spend by
bringing high quality affordable biosimilars to patients
across the world. Over the next decade, a number of
reference biologics are going off-patent and with our
biosimilars portfolio addressing a cumulative current market
size of over USD 40 billion, Aurobindo would be a part of

this significant opportunity.

To begin with, Aurobindo acquired five cell culture derived
biosimilar products from TL Biopharmaceutical AG. As part
of the agreement, TL will supply all the developmental data
for the five molecules and Aurobindo and/or its affiliates
will develop, commercialize and market these products
globally.

The branded market size for these five biosimilars, of which
four are monoclonal antibodies in oncology, are very
promising. The cumulative market size of these five
products is over USD 25 billion. This acquisition is a
strategic investment for future growth and will position
Aurobindo as a strong player in the rapidly evolving

biosimilars landscape.

Aurobindo is preparing to take its lead molecule from the
transaction with TL for clinical trials in 2018. This
biosimilar is an anti-antiogenesis drug used in treating
multiple-cancers including metastatic colon or rectal

cancer, non-squamous and non-small cell lung cancers.

5 biosimilars

acquired

USD 25

billion market size

Building on these products licensed from TL, Aurobindo is
expanding its portfolio by eight more next wave of
biosimilars, ensuring a strong and diverse pipeline of 13
products, consisting of oncology, rheumatology, auto
immune disorders and ophthalmology range of therapeutic

areas.

The Company has built R&D capabilities with a 80 strong
team of scientists covering the value chain of
developmental activities including early stage cell line
development right up to process development and product

characterization.

Aurobindo has set up a fully functional R&D centre for
biologics development and is also establishing a state-of-
art manufacturing facility in Hyderabad for both drug
substance and finished drug product manufacturing, which
would be ready by the latter half of 2017. The facility has
fully segregated mammalian and microbial drug substance
manufacturing, and an independent fill and finish section.

Annual Report 2016-17
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Oncology & hormonal products

The Company is in the process of developing a wide range
of oncology and hormonal products. Dosage forms include
vials (wet vials & dry vials), prefilled syringes, capsules
(softgel & hardgel) and tablets, that are used in the
hospitals as well as in oncology and renal clinics.

A new R&D Centre dedicated to oncology and hormones
(generics) products has been set up at Hyderabad to
develop products, both for solid and parenteral dosage

forms.

Infrastructure for an oncology API facility has been
created. Formulations manufacturing facilities for oral solid
dosage and injectable forms have been commissioned. The
oncology injectable line is also equipped to handle

lyophilized products.

58

oncology products
under development

8

hormonal products
under development

USD 40

billion market size

R
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We have identified more than 58 oncology products & 8
hormonal products for development and commercialization
in the regulated and emerging markets. The portfolio
comprises of several products with potential first to file
opportunities & 180 day market exclusivities. The molecular
entities being developed are approved in the first line,
second line therapies of cancer and are either prescribed in

single or combination during the treatment.

The oncology products being developed are approved in the
treatment of over 16 types of cancer indications and the
hormone products are approved in the treatments involving
pre-term birth, birth control, amenorrhea and
hypogonadism.

The global market size for these products in 2016 is more
than USD 40 billion and the portfolio has more than 10
products that have recorded sales of greater than USD 1

billion, per year.

Exhibit batches of 10 products have been completed during
2016-17 and regulatory filings initiated in the fourth
quarter of the year. Regulatory inspections are scheduled in
2017-18.

The facility is preparing to take exhibit batches for 20 to
22 products during 2017-18, as well as in each of the two
subsequent years, and file the dossiers in regulated &
emerging markets. Out of these 66 products that have been
short listed, two products were filed in the US in 2016-17.
The plans are to file, at least 15 products in 2017-18.

Manufacturing operations are expected to commence from
2018-19.



Dermatology, inhalers &
nasal products

Aurobindo has built a new state-of-the-art R&D and cGMP
manufacturing facility for specialty generics in Durham,
North Carolina, essentially for development and
commercialization of generic pressurized metered dose
inhalers (pMDI), creams, gels, ointments and transdermal
patches. This new site will be functional in August 2017, to
house over 50 scientists, including top-notch pMDI aerosol,
topical and transdermal R&D teams, with associated
analytical and testing labs. The inhalation and topicals
specialties have complimentary labs near Hyderabad that
house over 40 scientists, working on nasal product

development as well.

Prototype development work has commenced for seven
nasal sprays, six inhalers (pMDI) and 18 topical products,
which include, six topical solutions, three topical
ointments, four topical creams, two topical gel and three
topical OTC products.

As per IMS data (2016), the addressable market size for the
18 derma products were USD 4.3 billion; Annual sales for
the six pMDI products were approximately USD 8.6 billion
and for seven nasal sprays were USD 893 million.

The pMDI products will require clinical trials (PK and PD
bioequivalence), the first of which is likely to be taken up
in early 2018. Some topical products will require PD
bioequivalence (VCA study), the first of which is likely to
be undertaken in late 2017. Some will need clinical end-
point studies for bioequivalence and one product needs
both clinical end-point & PK Studies for bioequivalence.
The first clinical trial for topical product is likely to be
initiated in the latter half of 2018.

The plans are to start product filings by late 2017, continue
at a rapid pace in 2018-19, and commercialize upon

approval.

AUROBINDO

Specialty Products:

pMDls, Topicals & Transdermals
State-of-the-Art Instrumentation & Equipment
Top-Notch Scientific Leadership Team

40,000 =f. Facility to House
70+ R&D Scientists in 2017-18

Pilot & Exhibit cGMP Manufacturing

31

products
under development

USD 13.8

billion market size

Annual Report 2016-17
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Specialty injection products

Aurobindo has forayed into formulation feasibility, fine
tuning and scaling up of technology with a view to enter

specialty injection products.

Four depot formulations, based on biodegradable
microsphere and nano suspension are being developed.
Comparative pharmacokinetic studies performed with pilot
scale batches and commercial product in animal model
showed promising result. Work is progressing to scale-up
the microsphere based depot injections to commercial

scale.

4

products
under development

USD 3

billion market size

I
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Together, these four depot formulations account for a

market size of around USD 3 billion.

For these complex formulations, exhibit and bioequivalence
batches have to be produced on a commercial scale. This
involves much more upfront work on manufacturing system

and controls.

Dedicated manufacturing equipment for these products are
on order for installation at the Hyderabad based injectables
manufacturing unit. It is estimated to be installed by
November 2017 and scale-up batches are planned for the
last quarter of 2017. Exhibit batches are likely to be
produced starting first quarter of 2018.

Since these depot injections release the drug for longer
period, the bioequivalence studies take more time. The
exact duration varies among products, based on the product

type and FDA guidelines.

Simultaneous activities are on-going to transfer the
analytical test methods from Research and Development
team in the US to the quality control team at the
injectables unit at Hyderabad. Dedicated quality control
team is being trained on finished product test methods due

to the complex nature of some of the test methods.



Vaccines

Vaccines segment is another addition to the differentiated
portfolio of Aurobindo where there are unmet needs and
limited competition.

Development work on pneumococcal conjugate vaccine
(PCV) has been completed through use of novel vaccine
technology compressing time and cost. PCV is a
commercially available vaccine with limited competition

and a global branded market of more than USD 6 billion.

The GMP compliant pilot plant for clinical lot
manufacturing of PCV is completed, inspected by Indian
regulatory authorities and trial license was issued. Batches
of PCV were manufactured for use in clinical trials and the
stability studies are under progress. Submission of the
clinical batches to the National Regulatory Authority (NRA)
for release certification will be done as soon as the

stability studies are completed.

The Company has entered into an agreement with a leading
CRO in India to conduct the Phase I Clinical Trials (CT). The
CT protocols, trial centre and investigators are finalized.
The actual Phase | study would be initiated upon receiving
the approval from NRA and is expected to start by
December 2017.

As WHO Pre-Qualification (PQ) of the vaccine is mandatory
for supply to UN agencies, the Company has initiated
dialogue with the WHO PQ team at Geneva to finalize the

clinical trials as per WHO recommendations.

Construction of the commercial plant is under progress and
is expected to be ready by end of 2018. Considering the
increased demand for PCV, the plant capacity has been
increased to 100 million doses per annum while the first

phase launch is being targeted for 50 million doses of PCV.

Annual Report 2016-17
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Peptides

Peptides are naturally occurring biological molecules. They are short chains of amino acid monomers linked by peptide (amide) bonds.
Aurobindo has started investing in peptide technology. It has built a state-of-the-art facility with five modules commensurate with cGMP
standards and equipped with advanced instruments. The Company has already developed technologies for 20 peptides (APIs).

Over all, there are more than thirty peptide APIs which are available globally and Aurobindo is capable of making each of these peptides and
aspires to be an important player in the premium markets. Considering the capability that we have in terms of technology as well as
competency in our experienced and talented resources, Aurobindo is ready to compete with the best players in the industry.

Validation batches have been completed for four peptides and Drug Master Files have been filed by financial year ending March 2017. We plan
to file four more DMFs during 2017-18.

The peptides presently being developed include five microsphere and liposomal injectable products, at least two of which are expected to be
filed in 2017-18. The addressable market for the total of nine products taken up is about USD 3 billion.

Penems

Penems are B-lactam broad-spectrum antibiotic that act on cell walls known or suspected to be caused by multidrug-resistant (MDR) bacteria.
Their use is primarily in people who are hospitalized.

The Company has developed four penem injectable products and filing has been done for all of them in the regulated markets as well as in key
emerging markets. The annual sales in the US reported by IMS (March 2017) for these four penem products were around USD 501 million.

One ANDA was approved by the US FDA in March 2017 and the product has been launched in the US market in April 2017. This product is also
being marketed in several European countries and key emerging markets.

The Company is awaiting approval from the US FDA for the other penem products.

Manufacturing plant capacity is being augmented to cater to the global demand of these products. Operations management systems are being
implemented with professional guidance from subject matter experts.

Biocatalysts

Aurobindo invents, identifies and produces biocatalysts and fermentation processes which are subsequently developed to produce scalable
biocatalytic solutions, by reducing the use and cost of chemicals used within the processes in pharmaceutical manufacturing, whilst benefiting
from green technology. The high technical base and core competence of the Company has made it easier to initiate the entry in to enzyme
production.

So far, we have built 7,000+ biocatalysts across 15 classes of enzymes. Presently, we have identified six biocatalytic projects and are taking
them forward for GMP manufacture. We have the technology, and are using it to produce chiral intermediates and manufacture fermentation
based products.

Supplementing our initial R&D molecule and microbiology facility, we have invested in state-of-the-art fermentation development facility which
encompasses twelve 20 litre automated fermentation vessels, with associated downstream processing. Furthermore, we have invested in two
GMP production streams for fermentation and downstream processing.

There is now a team of over 30 professionals preparing for regulatory processes of five products, out of the six selected candidates. We have an
on-going patent development program and are simultaneously working towards scaling up for manufacture of three of those products.

Filings for the products are likely in third quarter of 2018.

I
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Investing in people

Year on year, as the organization catapults ahead to meet its newest strategies

and challenges, the immediate impact is felt on its processes, technology and

most importantly, its people. The very same people have now to perform with a

certain sense of urgency, do more with less, emphatically be compliant and feel

the heat of increase in their span of control.

Our human resources strategy is aimed to acquire the best
suited employees, to nurture them and align their personal
development with organizational goals.

The leadership is proactively guiding the people to take
ownership for their own growth and the team's pursuit of
perfection. The organization has made it clear that
managers are responsible for not only for their own
personal development, but also for the active development
of others, as well. As a result, every working minute, the
talent, dedication and resolve of the men and women of
Aurobindo is improving their reliability quotient.

Looking at the challenges ahead, the leadership aims to
better prepare our managers so that they may meet the
needs and requirements of all the stakeholders.
Development programs are hence tailored to each
individual's position, expertise and future goals. Nalanda is
one of them. It's a global and contemporary learning
platform, an initiative in embracing new age learning for

the growth and development of our people.

Exparianca

ALROBINI
EENTLINE ACADEAY

Nalanda was launched with a vision towards business excellence
through leadership and functional competency development and to
provide continuous impetus to develop second-line managers for all

critical functions.

We have adopted Kaizen in the work culture to focus on continual
improvement by engaging people to reduce waste, improve work
practices, add to personal efficiency, etc. Kaizen helps us improve the
following parameters:

O Safety: Target zero incidents;

] Quality: Minimize customer complaints, rejections, rework;

0 Productivity: Enhance manpower productivity and overall

equipment effectiveness (OEE);
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~P KCM: Kaizen™ Change Model
AUROBINDO
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0 Cost: Lower cost of carrying inventory, utilities designed for the block and area in-charges covering
etc; supervisory and managerial skills for project

implementations. 1,560 man days of training was

0 Delivery: Ensure On-time-in-full (OTIF)delivery; conducted during the year

and

Senior management are put through yearlong Management
0 Morale: Reduce absenteeism, labor turnover and
Development Programs called Bullet Proof Managers
increase employee engagement. . . .
ploy 9ag wherein they undergo 24 important competencies that any

A few key improvements have been made in the areas of manager requires to be a successful leader. This group is
58, decreased MTTR and MTBF (Mean Time to Repair and being trained and groomed to take the organization to the
Mean Time Between Failures) leading to increased OEE and next level.

the eventual improved OTIF delivery performance. All these Quality Behiviours

have transformed the levels of efficiency, quality and 5-Step

discipline. Instructional Design| B

. Functional
People development intervention has been taken to a Develepment
wider section of employees. On the shop floor, we are

skilling the manpower to perform at their optimum best. Train the Trainer ; s ort
Facilitation Skills ;.
5,968 mandays of training was conducted for the shop TelTs

Frogrammes

floor employees in 2016-17.

At the supervisory and managerial level, customized Cartification

programs such as Auro Disha and Naa Unnati are specially
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Auro Leaders
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Learning Journey - 6 Months
Customized Auro Leaders program is another initiative to The in-house Aurobindo Training and Development Centre (ATDC)
develop the second line leaders. The leaders are driven recruits, trains and helps absorb talented candidates for operations.
to achieve on their own goal setting, asked to take They are prepared both on theoretical and practical aspects of
360 degree view of their role and organizational needs. production and packaging operations, to meet the requirements of
A well rounded, multi-pronged approach is taken to ensure quality control, quality assurance, regulatory affairs, analytical
every manager is chiselled into an effective leader. techniques, stability/quality compliance, safety compliance and good

In every training session adequate inputs are provided on
safety, compliance and behavioural issues. The trainers are

able to measure using Kirkpatrick ROl model up to Level 3

from the various implementations. 27,637 employees =

(several of them more than once) have been covered on

compliance, safety and behavioural trainings.

Focused training starts on day one for the new recruits. A
unique intervention has been brought in where 30 graduate
engineer trainees have been recruited from premium o

colleges and are being groomed to grow into future leaders.

Organization
Business Objectives

Enhancing Evolve & Sustain
Leadership Pipeline Competencies

documentation practices.

We received recognition during the year for our achievements, such as:

Certificate of Honor in the category of Excellence in HR by
CPhI India & UBM India for the initiatives taken for e-
learning, skill development, HR automation, talent
engagement, leadership competencies & its integration with

HR sub-systems.

Certificate of Appreciation in the 12th edition of BML

Munjal Awards for Excellence in Learning & Development.

Driving Quantifiable
Results of
Investment

Enabling Optimal

Solutions
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Dedicated to customers

Committed to healthier life! That's the bottom line which motivates our conduct

of business. Our ambition is high: we want to be quality leaders. In addition to

continuously striving to grow the business, we are working to build on our

reputation for reliability.

We stay dedicated to our customers. We work hard every
day to live up to our renewed vision. That means, nothing

is too small to be ignored, and no compromise is made.

As an organization, we actively pursue integrity in quality
standards, standard operating procedures and compliance
standards. In a bid to minimize possible mistakes, we seek
ways and means to automate our processes, systems and

procedures.

Quality improvement, centralization of data, collaboration,
process automation, data governance and all related
systems stand integrated in to the companywide ERP. This
has added to the robustness of quality management across
the organization.

Automated Quality Management System and harmonization
has been implemented at all formulation units and
subsidiaries. An end-to-end Laboratory Information
Management system, Caliber LIMS, has been implemented
at all the formulations units. A Competency Management
System to manage the complete training lifecycle of the
work force as per the GMP requirements was planned and
executed with training programs in ways that suit the role

and responsibility of individual team members.

Corporate quality policies across the formulation units and
subsidiaries were prepared for six quality parameters
namely, facilities and equipment system, material system,

production system, packing and labeling system, laboratory

ATy
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We are ensuring that every Aurobindo

product is a promise to the patient: we

are committed to their healthier life.

control system and quality system. Based on these policies,
common procedures and site specific procedures were

prepared to strengthen the operating standards.

In order to further strengthen data integrity controls, and
as part of the overall compliance strategy, assessment of all
the existing computerized system validations, controls and
practices was done, followed by development and
harmonization of procedures. Suitable training was

imparted to the personnel.

In the laboratories, to ensure compliance, an additional
layer of review has been provided to actively evaluate the
data generated. The additional team reviews the data
generated in the laboratories to pre-empt non-
compliances/breach of data integrity, to sustain continuous

improvement of process and practices.

Quality and compliance is only as good as people respect

it. We go the extra mile to train people to reinforce the

quality culture. Quality Marshal Programme (QMP) is an
initiative to strengthen the quality culture through
continuous reinforcement of SOPs and adherence to quality
standards by application of learning with the help of

qualified resource pool.

Potential Quality Marshals are mapped across the value
stream with demonstrated high compliance behaviours,
training ability and audit experience, which then become
part of collaborative learning with cascading methodology
leading to critical talent development. The program aims
to develop close to 500 Quality Marshals across all units by
2019, and the training and certification processes are

moving ahead in full gear.

Key business outcomes noticed were greater understanding
and assimilation of SOPs, articulation with confidence,
open communication and effective process execution, all of

which helped raise our standards.

We are ensuring that every Aurobindo product is a promise

to the patient: we are committed to their healthier life.

Annual Report 2016-17
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Climbing the value chain

Aurobindo holds a well-diversified product portfolio created by some of the

best R&D professionals in the industry. Opportunities for the long-term,

sustainable growth are embedded in product development work, now underway.

The focus is on developing complicated molecules,
differentiated offerings, broad spectrum products, as well
as newer technologies. All these high-end technology
products are in various stages of development. For

instance,

0 we expect to take a lead molecule from our

biosimilar portfolio for clinical trial in 2018;

0 similarly, considerable work is ongoing to
develop dermatology, inhalers and nasal
products, with the first topical dermatology
product being taken up for bioequivalence in
late 2017;

0 injectable and solid dosage products are being

readied in oncology and hormone segments;

0 significant initiatives are being made to
progress towards clinical trials pneumococcal

conjugate vaccines;

o drug-device combination products is another

notable area of development;

0 we are also developing combination drugs of
proven compounds in therapeutic areas such as
anti-retroviral.

In addition, the R&D team constantly reviews the
production processes in relation to the sustainable use of
available resources and further develops the processes and
tests new technologies and materials in order to conserve
resources.

During the year, manufacturing processes of three active
pharmaceutical ingredients (APIs) were validated to bring
down the raw material cost. Additionally, processes of six
APIs have been modified to significantly lower the raw
materials cost, which would be validated in 2017-18.

Six NCE-1 ANDAs with Paragraph IV certification were filed
in the US. Additionally, chemical manufacturing processes
were validated for two new APIs to facilitate timely filing
of Paragraph IV ANDAs in the US.

At the same time, ten new molecules have been identified
during the financial year and process development has been
initiated for NCE-1 regulatory filing in the subsequent
financial years.

22 |

R

AUROBINDO



The focus is on developing complicated
molecules, differentiated offerings,
broad spectrum products, as well as

newer technologies.

We filed 31 ANDAs as compared to 22, in 2015-16; and
received final approvals for 61 ANDAs as compared to 49,
in the previous year; 16 US DMFs, 3 Japan DMFs and 7 CEPs
were filed during 2016-17. Additionally, 43 multiple
registration filings were made in Europe during this period.
Further, 34 DMFs were filed in different countries, which
include Australia, Canada, China, Korea, Russia, South

Africa, WHO and other emerging markets.

In 2016-17, analytical capabilities were further enhanced
to quantify toxic/genotoxic impurities at part per billion
level and for peptide mapping and impurity profiling of
peptides, by acquiring additional LCMS analysis resource
and through training. Capability to carryout solid state
NMR analysis and data interpretation was established.

A fully equipped analytical laboratory of appropriate design
to handle potent molecules has been added to the existing
analytical facilities during 2016-17. This laboratory is
equipped with state-of-the-art equipment i.e. LCMS, GCMS,
DSC, TGA and XRPD etc. in order to comply with the
stringent ICH guidelines for control of genotoxic impurities

and toxic metal ions.

These would further improve the quality of drug substances
as impurities of less than 1 ppm can be identified and
quantified with these new equipments. Additionally, an

advanced XRD machine has been acquired to detect and

quantify polymorph identification at very low levels.

In order to take-up development of additional oncology
molecules, another Chemical Research Laboratory has been
created with isolators and appropriate personal safety
protection equipment. Process development of six oncology
APIs is underway to commercially validate those in the next
financial year.

During 2016-17, the Company has identified to develop a
few niche products, which involve multi-step complex

chemistry and complicated purification technology.

Process intensification and process hazards evaluation
laboratory was further strengthened by acquiring new
equipment like Thermal Screening Unit (to study
decomposition temperature/gas evolution temperature of
process intermediates) for process safety study. Substantial
efforts were made to establish novel crystallization
techniques to directly obtain drug substances with the

desired particle size.

In the short-term, Aurobindo proposes to increase its
control substance filings to at least seven products per
year. The R&D center at North Carolina would be fully
operational in 2017-18 and filings for inhalation & topical

therapies are expected to commence.

As at March 31, 2017 Aurobindo has cumulatively filed 429
ANDAs, out of which 276 have final approval and 38 have
tentative approvals, including 10 ANDAs which are
tentatively approved under PEPFAR and the balance 115
ANDAs are under review. This product pipeline has
enormous potential and would help Aurobindo climb the

value chain.
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Environmental savings and improved safety

At Aurobindo, sustainability is an investment into the future and safety of
people is non-negotiable. Our organizational approach therefore extends beyond
environmental conservation and social development by including a continuous

Improvement of our systems and processes. We are rigorously executing measures

aimed at increasing efficiencies.

Environment

We have succeeded in cutting down energy consumption,
conserving material usage and optimizing operations. We
are therefore able to combine operational excellence with

cost savings and environmental protection.

Kaizen initiatives introduced in the manufacturing units
covers monitoring of power, water and effluent with daily
discussion at several appropriate levels. All levels of
management are involved in this cultural transformation,
which has created considerable discipline amongst
employees for judicious use of resources. Apart from
analyzing data in daily Kaizen, projects for energy
improvement in specific areas have been taken up to make

a difference in consumption levels.

Additional environmental management infrastructure,
particularly in wastewater management and sewage
treatment plants, has been installed and commissioned.
There was appreciable reduction in wastewater generation
due to improved steam condensate recovery. As an ongoing
effort, to raise the infrastructure, it is proposed to further
invest towards emission control, monitoring, solid and

hazardous waste management, etc.

A rigorous and continuous evaluation of environmental
performance has triggered a new initiative to address rain
water management across Aurobindo's manufacturing units.
As part of this drive, existing storm water drainage

systems/network has been re-engineered.

I

AUROBINDO

Aurobindo's largest APl manufacturing unit, Unit XI got
accredited to 1SO 14001 international standard. The year
also witnessed the Company obtain consents for expansion
of two APl manufacturing units. Regulatory approvals and
consents are in place for all the units while the Company
has ensured compliance with all applicable environmental

regulations.

The green belt development drive initiated by Aurobindo in
and around its manufacturing locations gained the
attention of public and regulators alike. This initiative will
continue and the Company will explore areas where it can

further develop greenery.
Safety

Our priority is to develop a culture where every team
member is accountable for his/her own safety, where team
members lead by example and where they are encouraged

to intervene when they see unsafe behaviour or conditions.

Placing safety first, every day, for every person, is at the
forefront of everything we do. This is about creating a
behaviour pattern that refuses to accept anything less than
zero incidents. We have trained and counselled our
employees to adopt safety as a way of life. We expect
everybody to carefully plan their work and act according to
the rules and procedures shared with every individual and

team.

We encourage all our employees to openly discuss safety at

all levels of the organization. A brief safety conversation



We have driven home to all employees
and contractors that every incident
can be prevented. It's in each one of
us to be responsible and reliable in

whatever we do.

with the employees on a daily basis at each shift, educates
everyone to work safely and identify safe and unsafe work

practices in the planned operations.

The management takes determined interest to increase safety
awareness with continuing safety leadership training. The
only way to prevent incidents is to look for deficient issues
and take corrective actions in advance. Continuous

monitoring is paying off.

All new processes and changes to existing processes are
reviewed by the safety team and tests are conducted to
ensure that safety issues in scale-up are identified and
addressed. HAZOP studies have been completed for 58
processes in 2016-17 and risk assessments are completed for
47 activities. HAZOP studies for every stream of products are

made in-line before every batch is to be charged.

|

. b Wr

.

We have installed earth interlock and monitoring systems
and new technology fire fighting equipment such as aerosol

based extinguishers.

A safety review at all the API units has been started in
order to avoid incidents by training the employee

personnel.

Contractors' men are trained. In addition, we have
instituted a reward and penalty system for the contractors

to complete their projects with zero safety incidents.

Across all manufacturing sites, training remains a focus
area. Against a planned target of 0.5% of all man-hours to
be set aside for safety training, we achieved 0.54% during

the year.

In order to further stress safety consciousness amongst the
employees, Auro safety month was celebrated in December
2016, where month long safety promotional activities were
taken up. Nitrogen blanketing, prevention of static
electricity, volatiles in work place and learning from past

incidents were the themes of the Auro safety month.

We have driven home to all employees and contractors that
every incident can be prevented. It's in each one of us to

be responsible and reliable in whatever we do.

We have been doing a lot to enhance the safety culture.
Despite our best efforts, as a learning organization, we
believe there is scope for further improvement. We are at

it. This will always remain a work-in-progress.
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Creating societal wealth

Being responsible is an attitude of mind, central to the core of how we run our
business at Aurobindo. We work to make people healthier and lead a better life.
We also have a broader obligation to the society, which we demonstrate with
our impact on the work place, the market place, the environment and the

community at large.

We believe social responsibility includes being a O Encouraging environment sustainability;

responsible neighbour. We are committed to serve as

. . . O Sustaining ecological balance & conservation of
stewards to raise the well-being of people who live and 9 g

- ] I natural resources;
work in the community where we operate. We have tried to

be a positive force and make a difference. q Developing rural sports; and

We prefer to make long-term relationships, rather than O Setting up old age homes, etc

short-term donations to charities. Our contributions have

been adding value to the day-to-day lives of people. Every A brief outline of the activities during 2016-17 is given in
project is examined, before undertaking it as well as after the following pages:

delivery, to ensure that our contribution does make an

impact.

Broadly, the activities undertaken by Aurobindo can be

grouped under the following heads:

0 Promoting education;

0 Supporting preventive health care;

O Eradicating hunger, poverty & malnutrition;

O Making available safe drinking water;
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PROMOTING EDUCATION

o Constructed a government degree college, added class rooms and toilets for schools;
0 Assisted in building libraries, provided chairs, desks and tables in class rooms;

0 Supplied school bags, note books and other stationary in several government schools;

0 Under the skill development program, arranged coaching for secondary grade teachers and paid

salaries for a few Vidya volunteers;
0 Provided free education to orphans and under privileged girl children;

0 Offered financial support to mentally handicapped children towards skill development activities.
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Aurobindo Geriatric Eye Care Centre

SUPPORTING PREVENTIVE HEALTH CARE

O Contributed to construction of Aurobindo Geriatric Eye Care Centre at L.V. Prasad Eye Institute, Visakhapatnam;
During the year, this facility treated 24,000 patients with over 4,000 operated upon, 50% of which was free of charge;

O Supplied medical equipment, beds, passenger lift to poly clinic;

0 Donated towards construction & supply of medical equipment to diabetic hospital for senior citizens & socially,
economically backward groups;

0 Conducted free health check up camps and distributed free medicines for the poor people;
0 Donated eye equipments, wheel chairs, diesel generator, inverter, patient waiting chairs and other medical equipments;
0 Donated medical cot, mattress, chair etc to government hospitals;

0 Donated healthcare equipments.

Thank you Aurobindo Pharma for helping
us serve the elders in our community !

a1
L=

3
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ERADICATING HUNGER, POVERTY & MALNUTRITION

O Distributed food and water, in several heavy rain affected parts of
Hyderabad;

O Contributed to set up fully automated centralized kitchen to cook

AUROBINDO JS5==

e b f

hot, nutritious food for 25,000 under privileged people.

K Hhaihh- Frew burvde prosgrsnmeee
MAKING AVAILABLE SAFE DRINKING WATER i fre Fassrwrnivernl Disguhels

O Set up water purification project (RO) water plants with Any Time
Water (ATW) cards & coin system, RO vending machines;

0 Provided water storage tanks, laid the pipelines, provided 3 phase
& submersible motors, construction of 40KL overhead water tanks

etc. for drinking water purpose;
O Supplied drinking water through water tankers to villages;
O Constructed & installed RO water plants;
0 Strengthened water tanks for drinking water;
0 Provided purified, chilled drinking water through water kiosks;

O Dug borewells and donated motor pumps and all other accessories

to two villages.

ENCOURAGING ENVIRONMENT SUSTAINABILITY

0 Donated towards preparation of detailed report on protection of

lake;

0 Donated towards laying/widening/repairing of rural roads and

construction of village sewage water drainage system;

O Construction of culvert for laying of roads for use of farmers;

0 Planted trees and erected tree guards and maintained them.

PROMOTION OF RURAL SPORTS

O Donated to rural sportsmen & women for training in rural sports

and nationally recognized sports.

A detailed report is provided in the Report of Corporate Social Responsibility activities
forming part of this annual report (Annexure 6 of the Board's Report). The CSR policy and

the report have been uploaded on the Company's website: www.aurobindo.com.
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Board of Directors

Mr. K. RAGUNATHAN

(born 1963) Non-Executive Chairman, an
Independent Director, is a Chartered Accountant by
profession and a leading management consultant.
He has over three decades of experience in
consulting services.

Mr. N. GOVINDARAJAN

(born 1968) Managing Director, is a B.E.
(Mechanical) from Annamalai University. He has
more than 25 years of experience across a variety
of domains such as active ingredients, CRAMS,
finished dosages & biotechnology.

Mr. M. MADAN MOHAN REDDY

Mr. K. NITHYANANDA REDDY

(born 1958) Whole-time Director & Vice Chairman,
a promoter of the Company. He holds a Masters
Degree in Science and has been associated with the
Company from the initial days. He is well-versed
with the manufacturing technology and supervises
the overall affairs of the Company.

Dr. M. SIVAKUMARAN

(born 1943) Whole-time Director, he holds a
Masters Degree in Science and has been awarded a
PhD in Organic Chemistry. He has more than four
decades of experience in the pharmaceutical
industry and is responsible for the technological
evolution of the Company. He looks after research
and development, new product development and
total quality management.

Mr. P. SARATH CHANDRA REDDY

(born 1960) Whole-time Director, has a Masters Degree in
Science (Organic Chemistry) and has held top managerial
positions in leading pharmaceutical companies. He
commands over 25 years of valuable experience in the experienced in general management and
pharmaceutical industry. He looks after formulations has expertise in project executions,
manufacturing of the Company. IT, procurement, etc.
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(born 1985) Whole-time Director, he is a
graduate in Business Administration.
He is a second generation entrepreneur
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Mr. P.V. RAMPRASAD REDDY

(born 1958) Non-Executive Director and a promoter

of the Company. He is a postgraduate in Commerce
and prior to promoting Aurobindo in 1986, he held
management positions in various pharmaceutical
companies. In 2008, the widely read World
Pharmaceutical Frontiers, announced he is among
the top 35 most influential people in the
pharmaceutical industry.

_
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Dr. (Mrs.) AVNIT BIMAL SINGH

(born 1964) Non-Executive, Independent
Director of the Company. She holds an M.B.B.S.
degree and is a Post Graduate in obstetrics &
gynecology. She is a medical practitioner and a
senior obstetrician/gynecologist based at
Hyderabad.

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. SANTHANAM SUBRAMANIAN

Company Secretary
Mr. B. ADI REDDY

Statutory Auditors

M/s. S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Oval Office, 18 iLabs Centre,

Hi-tech City, Madhapur,

Hyderabad - 500 081

Corporate website: www.aurobindo.com

2

Mr. M. SITARAMA MURTY

(born 1943) Non-Executive, Independent Director, did his
Masters in Electronics. He is a professionally qualified banker.
He has over three decades of experience as a banker and has
held various positions in nationalised banks and retired as
Managing Director & CEO of State Bank of Mysore, in 2003.
His specialised areas of interest are international banking,
foreign exchange, money markets, funds management, credit
management, rural development, computerisation, commercial
law and systems.

Mr. RANGASWAMY RATHAKRISHNAN IYER

(born 1953) Non-Executive, Independent Director, is a
postgraduate in Commerce and has Masters in Finance
Management from Jamnalal Bajaj Institute of Management
Studies. He has 37 years of experience with the pharmaceutical
industry in India, working with Wyeth Limited from 1980 to

2009, of which last 9 years as the Managing Director. Since 2010,

he is a consultant to several multinational and Indian pharma
companies.

Registrars & Transfer Agents

M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Karvy Selenium,

Tower B, Plot No.31-32,

Gachibowli, Financial District,
Nanakramguda,

Hyderabad - 500 032

Phone : +91 40 6716 2222

Fax  :+91 40 2300 1153

E-mail : einward.ris@karvy.com

CIN: L24239TG1986PLC015190

Bankers

Andhra Bank

Canara Bank

DBS Bank Limited

HDFC Bank Limited

ICICI Bank Limited

IDBI Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank
State Bank of Hyderabad
State Bank of India
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Regulatory Filings
as at March 31, 2017

FORMULATIONS
NDA/ANDAs

APIs
DRUG MASTER FILINGS

PATENTS

FILED

USA 429
Europe 211
South Africa 176
Canada 121
TOTAL 937
USA 220
Europe

New Registrations 118

Multiple Registrations 1,617
Others 749
Certificate of Suitability 125

TOTAL R SYAS)
APPLIED
630

APPROVED

GRANTED
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE is hereby given that the 30th Annual
General Meeting of the Members of Aurobindo
Pharma Limited will be held on Thursday, the
31st day of August, 2017 at 3.00 p.m. at
Kaveri Ball Room, Hotel Trident, Hi-tech City,
Near Cyber Towers, Madhapur, Hyderabad
500 081 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the Audited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2017, Statement of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flow Statement for the financial year
ended March 31, 2017 and reports of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2017, Statement of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flow Statement for the financial year
ended March 31, 2017 and report of
Auditors thereon.

3. To confirm the first interim dividend of
%1.25 and second interim dividend of 1.25,
in aggregate 2.50 per equity share of 1
each, as dividend for the financial year
2016-17.

4.  To appoint a Director in place of Mr. P.
Sarath Chandra Reddy (DIN: 01628013) who
retires by rotation at this Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, seeks
re-appointment.

5. To appoint a Director in place of Dr. M.
Sivakumaran (DIN: 01284320) who retires
by rotation at this Annual General Meeting
and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

6.  To appoint Statutory Auditors of the
Company and fix their remuneration and in

this regard to consider and if thought fit,
to pass with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of
Sections 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) read with the Companies (Audit &
Auditors) Rules, 2014, and such other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act or Rules framed
there under including any statutory enactment or
modification thereof and pursuant to the
recommendation of the Audit Committee,

M/s. B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Registration

No. 116231W/W-100024) be and are hereby
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company in place of M/s. S.R. Batliboi &
Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 101049W/E300004), the retiring
auditors, to hold office from the conclusion of
this 30th Annual General Meeting until the
conclusion of 35th Annual General Meeting of the
Company, subject to ratification by Members as
to the said appointment at every Annual General
Meeting, at such remuneration as may be decided
by the Board of Directors of the Company."

SPECIAL BUSINESS

7.  Re-appointment of Mr. P.V. Ramprasad
Reddy (DIN: 01284132), Director of the
Company, as Managing Director designated
as Executive Chairman of Aurobindo
Pharma USA Inc., a Wholly Owned
Subsidiary of the Company and in this
regard to consider and if thought fit, to
pass, with or without modification(s) the
following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

Aurobindo Pharma Limited
CIN - L24239TG1986PLC015190
Registered Office:

Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet,
Hyderabad - 500 038

Phone :+91 40 2373 6370

Fax 1 +91 40 2374 7340

E-mail : info@aurobindo.com

Website : www.aurobindo.com

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions
of Section 188 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and in
terms of applicable provisions of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory
amendment, modification or re-enactment
thereof), consent of the members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded for
re-appointment of Mr. P.V. Ramprasad Reddy
(DIN: 01284132), Director of the Company
as Managing Director designated as
Executive Chairman (or any other
designation which the Board of Directors of
Aurobindo Pharma USA, Inc., may decide
from time to time) in Aurobindo Pharma
USA Inc., a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the
Company with effect from December 1,
2017 for a period of five years at such
remuneration and on such other terms and
conditions as may be decided by Aurobindo
Pharma USA, Inc., provided however that
the aggregate amount of remuneration
(inclusive of salary, perquisites, allowances,
incentives, bonuses, retirement benefits,
insurance, other facilities etc.) shall not
exceed USD 350,000 (US Dollar three lakhs
fifty thousand only) per annum or
equivalent amount in any other currency
with an authority to the Board of Directors
of Aurobindo Pharma USA, Inc., to give
annual or other increments from time to
time not exceeding 10% of the immediately
previous drawn salary over and above the
aforesaid remuneration and he will also be
entitled to reimbursement of medical
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expenses for self and family, use of
Company's car and telephone at residence
and encashment of unavailed leave and
other benefits as per the rules of Aurobindo
Pharma USA Inc."

Appointment of Mr. Rangaswamy
Rathakrishnan lyer (DIN: 00474407) as an
Independent Director and in this regard to
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification(s) the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 149, 152 and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
there under read with Schedule 1V of the
Companies Act, 2013, and Companies
(Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory amendment, modification or
re-enactment thereof), Mr. Rangaswamy
Rathakrishnan lyer (DIN: 00474407) who
was appointed as an Additional Director of
the Company categorized as Independent
Director, by the Board of Directors with
effect from February 9, 2017 in terms of
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013
and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing from a Member
under Section 160 of the Companies Act,
2013 signifying his intention to propose
Mr. Rangaswamy Rathakrishnan lyer as a
candidate for the office of director, be and
is hereby appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company with effect from
February 9, 2017 to hold office up to
February 8, 2019, not liable to retire by
rotation."

To revise the remuneration of Mr. N.

if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V
and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such other consents/approvals
as may be required, and the authority vested with the Board of Directors by the Members at the
28th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on August 27, 2015, the remuneration of

Mr. N. Govindarajan, Managing Director of the Company be and is hereby revised with effect from
April 1, 2017 for the remaining period of his tenure i.e. up to May 31, 2018 as detailed below,
subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013 or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof:

a. | Salary %1,935,940 per month.

b. | House rent

%1,290,626 per month.
allowance

c. | Medical i. Reimbursement of medical expenses incurred for self and family
reimbursement subject to a ceiling of one month's salary in a year or 3 months'
salary over a period of 3 years.

ii. Mediclaim insurance as per rules of the Company.

d. | Leave travel

. For self & family once in a year as per the rules of the Company.
concession

e. | Other

%1,281,200 per annum.
allowances

f. | Provident fund, superannuation benefits and gratuity as per the rules of the Company
subject to the ceilings as per the guidelines for managerial remuneration in force from
time to time.

g. | Provision of Company's car with driver.

h.| Encashment of leave as per the rules of the Company.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in addition to the above salary and perquisites, commission will also be
payable up to 1% of the net profits of the Company calculated in the manner referred in Section
198 of the Companies Act, 2013 subject to a ceiling of ¥10 crore for each financial year with
effect from the financial year 2017-18 as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the
Company subject to the overall remuneration payable to Mr. N. Govindarajan, Managing Director of
the Company not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof."

By Order of the Board

. o -

Govindarajan (DIN: 00050482), Managing Hyderabad
June 20, 2017

B. Adi Reddy

Director and in this regard to consider and, Company Secretary
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Notes

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND
VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE
ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMESELF/
HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A person can
act as proxy on behalf of Members up to
and not exceeding fifty and holding in
the aggregate not more than ten per
cent of the total share capital of the
Company. Further, a Member holding
more than ten per cent of the total share
capital of the Company carrying voting
rights may appoint a single person as
proxy and such person shall not act as
proxy for any other person or Member. In
order to become valid, the proxy forms
should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48
hours before the time fixed for holding
the meeting. The proxy form is enclosed.

2. A Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the
Special Business set out in the Notice is
annexed.

3. Relevant documents referred to in the
accompanying Notice and the statement is
open for inspection by the Members at the
Registered Office of the Company on all
working days during business hours up to
the date of the meeting of the Company.

4. The Register of Members and Share Transfer
Books of the Company will remain closed
from August 25, 2017 to August 31, 2017
(both days inclusive).

5. The Board of Directors of the Company has
declared first interim dividend @ 125% i.e.
%1.25 per share of %1 each, and second
interim dividend @ 125% i.e. ¥1.25 per
share of %1 each for the year 2016-17. (The
Board of Directors of the Company did not
recommend any further dividend for the
year 2016-17.)

6.  The unpaid/unclaimed dividend for the year
2008-09 and unpaid/unclaimed interim
dividend for the year 2009-10 were
transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF). The Company has
uploaded the details of the unpaid and
unclaimed dividend amounts of the
previous years' on the website of the

10.

Company (www.aurobindo.com) and also on
the website of Ministry of Corporate Affairs.
The unpaid/unclaimed final dividend for the
year 2009-10 will be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund of
the Central Government on the due date.
The shares on which dividend remains
unclaimed for seven consecutive years will
be transferred to the IEPF as per Section
124 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the
applicable rules.

Members holding shares in physical form
are requested to notify immediately any

change in their address to the Company's
Registrar and Transfer Agents, M/s. Karvy

Computershare Private Limited. Members 11.

holding shares in electronic form may
intimate any such changes to their
respective Depository Participants (DPs).

To avoid loss of dividend warrants in transit
and undue delay in respect of receipt of
dividend warrants, the Company has
provided a facility to the Members for
remittance of dividend through electronic
mode. For this purpose, the details such as,
name of the bank, name of the branch,
9-digit code number appearing on the MICR

band of the cheque supplied by the bank, 12.

account type, account number, etc. are to
be furnished to your DP if the shares are in
electronic form or to the Registrar &
Transfer Agents, if they are held in physical
mode.

The Annual Report for 2016-17 is being
sent by electronic mode only to the
Members whose Email addresses are
registered with the Company/Depository
Participant(s) for communication purpose
unless any member has requested for a hard
copy of the same. For Members who have

not registered their E-mail addresses, 13.

physical copies of the Annual Report
2016-17 are being sent by the permitted
mode. For Members who have not registered
their E-mail addresses so far are requested
to register their Email address for receiving
all communication including annual report,
notices, circulars, etc., from the Company
electronically.

In terms of Section 108 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules,

14.

2014 and as per the requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Company is providing the facility to its
Members holding shares in physical or
dematerialized form as on the cut-off date,
i.e. August 24, 2017, to exercise their right
to vote by electronic means on all of the
agenda items specified in the
accompanying Notice of the Annual General
Meeting. Details of the process and manner
of E-voting along with the User ID and
Password are being sent separately to all
the Members along with the Notice.

Members may also note that the Notice of
the 30th Annual General Meeting and the
Annual Report for 2016-17 will be available
on the Company's website. The physical
copies of the aforesaid documents will also
be available at the Company's Registered
Office for inspection during normal business
hours on working days. Members who
require communication in physical form in
addition to E-communication, or have any
other queries, may write to us at
ig@aurobindo.com.

Brief resume of Directors of those proposed
to be appointed/re-appointed, nature of
their expertise in specific functional areas,
names of companies in which they hold
directorships and membership/
chairmanships of Board Committees and
shareholding in the Company as stipulated
under Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the
stock exchanges, are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report forming part
of the Annual Report.

Members are requested to bring their
attendance slip along with their copy of the
Annual Report to the meeting.

SEBI has mandated the submission of the
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every
participant in the securities market.
Members holding shares in electronic form
are, therefore requested to submit their PAN
to their depository participant(s). Members
holding shares in physical form are required
to submit their PAN details to the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agents.
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Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013

Item 7

The appointment of Mr. P.V. Ramprasad Reddy, Director of the Company as Managing Director designated
as Executive Chairman of Aurobindo Phama USA, Inc., was approved by the members of the Company at
its Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on September 12, 2012 with effect from December 1, 2012 for a
period of five years. The present term of Mr. P.V. Ramprasad Reddy as Managing Director designated as
Executive Chairman of Aurobindo Pharma USA, Inc. expires on November 30, 2017. It is proposed to
re-appoint Mr. P.V. Ramprasad Reddy as Managing Director designated as Executive Chairman of
Aurobindo Phama USA, Inc. for a further term of five years with effect from December 1, 2017.

Mr. P.V. Ramprasad Reddy, aged 59 years, is a post graduate in Commerce. He is one of the promoters of
Aurobindo Pharma Limited and a Director since inception of the Company and played an instrumental
role in the growth of the Company. Prior to promoting Aurobindo Pharma in 1986, he held management
positions in various pharmaceutical companies. Mr. P.V. Ramprasad Reddy is a director of Penaka Pharma
(India) Private Limited and RPR Sons Advisors Private Limited. He leads strategic planning of the
Company. He holds 18,000,000 equity shares of ¥1 each in the Company.

During the financial year 2016-17, he has attended 3 out of 4 meetings of the Board held. He is a
member of Project Finance Committee.

Information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of the
Boards and its Powers) Rules, 2014:

a. | Name of the related party Mr. P.V. Ramprasad Reddy

b. | Name of the Director or
Key Managerial
Personnel who is related

Mr. P. Sarath Chandra Reddy, Whole-time Director

c. | Nature of relationship Mr. P. Sarath Chandra Reddy is son of Mr. P.V. Ramprasad Reddy

d. | Nature, material terms, monetary value of the contract or arrangement:

Nature of the arrangement Mr. P.V. Ramprasad Reddy is proposed to be appointed as
Managing Director designated as Executive Chairman in

Aurobindo Pharma USA Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary.

Material terms The appointment, if approved by Members, shall be effective from

December 1, 2017 for a period of five years.

Monetary terms The aggregate amount of remuneration (inclusive of salary,
perquisites, allowances, incentives, bonuses, retirement benefits,
insurance, other facilities etc.) shall not exceed USD 350,000 (US
Dollar three lakhs fifty thousand only) per annum or equivalent
amount in any other currency with an authority to the Board of
Directors of Aurobindo Pharma USA, Inc. to give annual or other
increments from time to time over and above the aforesaid
remuneration not exceeding 10% of the immediately previous
drawn salary and he will also be entitled to reimbursement of
medical expenses for self and family, use of Company's car and
telephone at residence and encashment of unavailed leave and
other benefits as per the rules of Aurobindo Pharma USA, Inc.

e. | Any other information relevant
or important for the members
to take a decision on the
proposed resolution

He is one of the promoters of the Company and a director since
inception. He leads strategic planning and is instrumental in the
growth of the Company.

Except Mr. P.V. Ramprasad Reddy, Mr. P. Sarath Chandra Reddy and their relatives, none of the other
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are deemed to be concerned
or interested in the Resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in Item 7 for approval of the Members.
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Item 8

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on
February 9, 2017 appointed Mr. Rangaswamy
Rathakrishnan lyer as an Additional Director
categorized as Independent Director of the
Company with effect from February 9, 2017, and
accordinlgy, he holds office up to the ensuing
Annual General meeting of the Company. In terms
of Sections 149 and 152 and the Rules made
there under read with Schedule 1V of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have
reviewed the declaration made by

Mr. Rangaswamy Rathakrishnan lyer that he
meets the criteria of independence as provided in
Section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013. The
Board is of the opinion that he fulfills the
condition specified in the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made there under and is
independent of the management. It is proposed
to appoint Mr. Rangaswamy Rathakrishnan lyer as
an Independent Director of the Company as per
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has received a notice in writing
under the provisions of Section 160 of the
Companies Act, 2013 from a Member along with a
deposit of 100,000 proposing the candidature of
Mr. Rangaswamy Rathakrishnan lyer for the office
of Independent Director.

The Resolution seeks the approval of the Members
for appointment of Mr. Rangaswamy
Rathakrishnan lyer as an Independent Director of
the Company up to February 8, 2019 pursuant to
Section 149 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
there under. He is not liable to retire by rotation.

He does not hold any shares in the Company.

No Director, Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives, except Mr. Rangaswamy Rathakrishnan
lyer, to whom the Resolution relates, is
interested or concerned in the Resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution
set forth in Item 8 for approval of the Members.

Item 9

The Members of the Company at the 28th Annual
General Meeting held on August 27, 2015
approved re-appointment of Mr. N. Govindarajan
as Managing Director of the Company for a period
of 3 years with effect from June 1, 2015 with a
remuneration of %2.25 crore per annum and other



perquisites with liberty to the Board of Directors
to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the
re-appointment and/or remuneration as it may
deem fit and as may be acceptable to Mr. N.
Govindarajan, subject to the same not exceeding
the limits specified under Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof. In addition
to the salary and perquisites, commission will
also be payable up to 1% of the net profits of the
Company calculated in the manner referred in
Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 subject
to a ceiling of ¥4 crore for each financial year, as
may be decided by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

Further, the Board at its meeting held on
February 9, 2016 revised the remuneration of

Mr. N. Govindarajan from %2.25 crore to %3 crore
and other perquisites, per annum. In addition to
the salary and perquisites, the commission
payable to him was also revised to 1% of the net
profits of the Company calculated in the manner
referred in Section 198 of the Companies Act,
2013 subject to a ceiling of %9 crore for each
financial year, as may be decided by the Board of
Directors of the Company. The revision of

remuneration of Mr. N. Govindarajan was
approved by the Members of the Company at their
29th Annual General Meeting held on August 24,
2016.

Mr. N. Govindarajan, Managing Director is
responsible to the overall affairs of the Company.
The business operations of the Company are
substantially growing and there has been increase
in Managing Director's responsibilities. In view of
the same, it is appropriate to revise the
remuneration of Mr. N. Govindarajan, Managing
Director of the Company, commensurate with his
role and responsibilities. Accordingly, the Board
of Directors at its meeting held on May 29, 2017
revised the remuneration of Mr. N. Govindarajan,
Managing Director based on the recommendation
of Nomination and Remuneration/Compensation
Committee and subject to the approval of
Members of the Company, from %3 crore per
annum to %4 crore per annum with effect from
April 1, 2017 and other perquisites with no other
changes in the terms and conditions of his
appointment.

In addition to the salary and perquisites, the
Board of Directors of the Company, based on the
recommendation of Nomination and

Remuneration/Compensation Committee and
subject to the approval of the Members of the
Company also revised the commission payable to
Mr. N. Govindarajan up to 1% of the net profits of
the Company calculated in the manner referred in
Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 subject
to a ceiling of 10 crore (Previously: %9 crore) for
each financial year with effect from the financial
year 2017-18 as may be decided by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

The aforesaid revision of remuneration and
commission shall be within the ceiling limits as
mentioned in Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013.

No Director, Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives, except Mr. N. Govindarajan, to whom
the Resolution relates, is interested or concerned
in the Resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution
set forth in Item 9 for approval of the Members.

By Order of the Board

& o—.

B. Adi Reddy
Company Secretary

Hyderabad
June 20, 2017
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Board's Report

Dear Membery,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 30th Annual Report of the Company together with the audited

accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2017.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Standalone financials  Million
2016-17 2015-16
Revenue from operations (inclusive of excise duty) 97,812.1 93,227.6
Profit before depreciation, interest, tax and exceptional items 25,099.0 24,761.1
Depreciation 2,861.7 2,630.0
Finance cost 451.6 652.7
Profit before tax 21,785.7 21,478.4
Provision for tax 4,718.1 5,211.4
Net profit after tax 17,067.6 16,267.0
Other comprehensive income/(expense) (56.1) (14.4)
Total comprehensive income for the period 17,011.5 16,252.6

DIVIDEND

Your Directors have approved a second interim
dividend of 125% i.e. ¥1.25 per equity share and
together with the first interim dividend of 125%
i.e. ¥1.25 per equity share, the total dividend for
the financial year 2016-17 comes to 250% i.e.
%2.50 per share on the equity share of ¥1 against
250% i.e. ¥2.50 per share of %1 paid in the

previous year.

Pursuant to Regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, top five hundred listed entities
based on market capitalization are required to
formulate a Dividend Distribution Policy. The Board
has approved and adopted the Dividend
Distribution Policy and the same is available on the

Company's website viz. www.aurobindo.com.
PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Your Company delivered yet another year of
consistent and profitable growth, continued to
build a robust pipeline of products, stepped up
market development, significantly expanded
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manufacturing capacities, invested to further
improve reliability of deliverables and enhanced
the level of execution across the Company. There
was a sustained focus on research and
development, employee engagement, competency

enhancement and relentless pursuit of excellence

in quality.

The team at Aurobindo demonstrated resilience
despite several challenges, especially in dealing
with competitive pricing pressures in the market as
well as hardening of the rupee in the latter half of
the financial year. At the market place, the
momentum was maintained by improving the
product mix with high value, differentiated oral

solid and injectable products.

Your Company was quick to respond to the
challenges of the market environment by executing
improvements in operations. There was
considerable work done to scale up volumes,
improve efficiencies, optimize costs and fine-tune
supply chain and logistics in order to expand the
bottom line. Productivity enhancements and

process improvements were proactively undertaken

to benchmark the manufacturing systems with the

best in the industry.

The standalone revenue at ¥97,812.1 million
increased by 4.9% in 2016-17. Operating profit
including forex and other income was higher by
1.4% over the previous year. Profit before tax was
higher by 1.4% at ¥21,785.7 million over the
previous year. Net profit for the year 2016-17 at
%17,067.6 million was an increase of 4.9%
compared to 2015-16. The diluted earnings per
share for 2016-17 is ¥29.16 as compared to 327.84
in 2015-16.

At the consolidated level, your Company delivered
solid financial results fuelled by strong
performance in US and European markets. The
revenues increased to ¥150,898.6 million, a
growth of 8.1% over the previous year with an
EBITDA margin of 22.8%. EBITDA for the year was
%34,342.8 million as against ¥31,881.2 million in
the previous year and the diluted earnings per
share grew by 13.5% to %39.33.

US formulations business contributed 57% to the
overall formulations revenue during the year, as
against 55% in the previous year. The revenue
generated from the US business grew by 12.3% at
%68,272.3 million in 2016-17 over the previous
year sales of ¥60,785.5 million.

Your Company maintained its momentum of growth
with the launch of several new oral and injectable
products in the US, led by final approvals for 61
products from the US FDA during the financial year.
Aurobindo continues to witness strong pace of
approvals from US FDA, which helped to maintain
growth momentum in sales and improve market
presence. In keeping with the past track record,
speed to the market and effectiveness in execution
has remained the hallmark of Aurobindo's

performance.

As a result of customer centric approach and
relationship oriented marketing, your Company has
become the 6th ranked Rx supplier of prescriptions
dispensed (as per IMS National Prescription Audit,
April 2017). In the highly competitive US market,
your Company has diversified product basket in
oral solids including controlled substances and

injectables.



A few key developments in your Company in
2016-17 as regards product portfolio expansion

were as follows:

° Received final approvals for 61 ANDAs as
compared to 49, in 2015-16;

° Obtained US FDA approval for the Company's
first penem ANDA for an injectable product;

° Filed 31 ANDAs as compared to 22, in
2015-16;

° Commenced filing from new facility, Unit X.
As on March 31, 2017, the Company has
filed 4 ANDAs from the facility;

° Started filing for oncology products with US
FDA through the Company's joint venture
entity, Eugia; Filed 2 ANDAs;

° Launched 35 products in the US market

during the year under review;

° Capacity utilization was increased at every
production facility to meet the growing

portfolio.

As on March 31, 2017, your Company has
cumulatively filed 429 ANDAs, out of which 276
have final approval and 38 have tentative
approval, including 10 ANDAs which are tentatively
approved under PEPFAR and the balance 115
ANDAs are under review.

Your Company clocked a growth of 4.7% in Europe
to reach a revenue of ¥32,771.5 million in 2016-17
as against sales of ¥31,304.3 million in the
previous year. The focus continues to achieve
improved synergies between the acquired
businesses at Western Europe with the Company's
existing product pipeline. In all the addressable
markets, there was volume growth, improved
market presence as well as enhanced profitability,
supplemented by increased manufacturing in India
for larger number of products. This exercise of
transferring the manufacturing base to India has
streamlined and integrated the operations,
optimized costs, improved the information flow,
facilitated decision making and enabled better
supervision and control. All of these initiatives

have translated into increase in profitability.

In March 2017, formulations manufacturing facility

Unit XV at Parawada in Visakhapatnam was
commissioned. The unit is primarily for supplies to
European markets, and has been audited &
approved by European authorities. In order to
meet the growing demand, the volumes are being

ramped up.

During the year, your Company further
strengthened its branded products portfolio and
leveraged its position as a key player in select
European markets through couple of acquisitions.
Arrow Generiques S.A.S., the French subsidiary of
Aurobindo acquired the rights, title and interest in
products Calcium and Calcium Vitamin D3,
including the use of the Orocal trademark for the

France market.

Agile Pharma B.V., The Netherlands, the wholly
owned step-down subsidiary of your Company
acquired Generis Farmacéutica S.A., which is
engaged in the manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical products in Portugal. The
acquisition includes the manufacturing facility in
Amadora, Portugal, which has a capacity to
manufacture 1.2 billion tablets/capsules/sachets

annually.

Generis Farmacéutica S.A. is a generic
pharmaceutical firm that focuses on both the retail
and hospital segments apart from exports. Generis
has a wide portfolio of products with major share
in the therapeutic areas of cardiovascular (CVS),
Central Nervous System (CNS), anti-infectives and
genitourinary system ailments. Generis is the most
sold pharmaceutical brand in Portugal, and is the

2nd largest generic group in Portugal.

The acquisition establishes Aurobindo as the
leading generics group in Portugal. Synergies are
expected from Aurobindo's vertical integration and
pipeline breadth, improvement in Amadora plant
capacity utilization by servicing both local and
European markets, and operational advantages.
The acquisition will catapult your Company to the
leadership position in the Portuguese generic

pharma market.

Sales of formulations to the emerging markets such
as Brazil, Ukraine, Mexico and MENA (Middle East
and North Africa) as well as South Africa grew by
17% to %7,556.3 million against %6,461.0 million

reported in 2015-16. This segment remains a key
market for Aurobindo and renewed efforts are made
to position your Company's products as one of the
preferred suppliers in the existing and newer

geographies.

ARV formulations business clocked a revenue
%11,854.1 million and during the year , your
Company received US FDA approval for a valuable
product - considered as a first line for treatment
for HIV - under the PEPFAR program, and your
Company has also filed an ANDA related to a triple
combination product with the FDA.

Overall, formulations business constituted 79.8%
of the consolidated revenue, while active
pharmaceutical ingredients (API) accounted for
the balance 20.2%. During the financial year, sale
of formulations at ¥120,454.2 million grew by
8.9% across all geographies in comparison to the

previous year.

Revenue from API was %30,420.6 million during
the year under review, a growth of 5.5%. This
growth in revenue of high value APIs has been
achieved after meeting the very large in-house
demand for manufacture of formulations. In line
with anticipated further increase in formulations
business, the in-house capacity for APl has been
further raised, even as your Company has
contracted additional, newer, alternate sources for
APIs.

AuroHealth, a subsidiary of your Company, which
manufactures and markets pharma OTC products in
the US, continued to gain penetration in to several
key national retailers as well as select regional
accounts. This business gained traction during the
year and as at end of March 2017, AuroHealth was
shipping to 24 customers with a commercialized
basket of 56 products.

The dietary supplements business done by Natrol,
the nutritional supplementary maker that
Aurobindo acquired in 2014, was in line with the
expectations, even as work continues to enhance
the product pipeline. Natrol continues to be
amongst the top 20 branded dietary supplement
companies in the US. Existing products gained
market share, while newer products are being
launched. The revenues and bottom line expanded
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as planned and your Company sees further

headroom for growth.
OUTLOOK

The Company's endeavor has been to invest in
reliability; ensure patient safety through high-end
quality of products and processes; develop
alternate API and excipient sources to deliver
larger volumes, in line with customer expectations
on-time-in-full; possess high value, differentiated
portfolio of complex molecules; build state-of-the-
art manufacturing facilities that meet compliance
standards; ensure safe working environment to
protect the health of the employees; minimize
waste and maximize recycling of materials; reduce
the risk in operations; and be a preferred partner
to all the stakeholders. In effect, strive for
execution excellence and be a responsible

corporate citizen.

Aurobindo has made significant progress in all
these areas, but the team works with the belief
that there is room for improvement. Operational
excellence is often reviewed closely to further
improve productivity, become cost effective and be

reliable in every transaction.

The market environment is changing rapidly, with
newer challenges and newer opportunities. Your
Company has been conscious to work ahead of
time and has invested in several technologies and
platforms such as biotechnology, oncology,
hormones, steroids, biocatalysts, peptides,
vaccines, penems, depot injections, dermatology,
inhalers, nasal, patches and films to sustain the
growth.

Aurobindo is striving to stay ahead of the curve. A
large portfolio is being built of differentiated
products which would act as a moat against
competitive pressures; new manufacturing facilities
are under construction to cater to the growing
portfolio; several of the newer technologies would
help enhance margins; process improvements and
better logistics management are expected to

strengthen competitiveness.

Your Company's product portfolio and pipeline for
the US market have significant potential for
sustainable volume growth. This is a quality
conscious, knowledge driven market and your
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Company is far better positioned with offers in

several therapeutic segments.

Pricing pressures in US markets are expected to
stay and there is the risk of the ability to maintain
current margins. Price sensitivities will test all the
players in a crowded market where price tends to

sag while volume business gets done.

This threat does not affect Aurobindo significantly,
because of its large portfolio of products, control
over raw material sourcing and lower product
concentration. The Company is a dominant player
in the active ingredients business and has been
able to control its quality, improve on timelines,
be competitive on its costs and has the ability to
deliver at short notice. This is a unique advantage
that Aurobindo enjoys over competing
manufacturers across the world.

Competitive pressures and resultant price erosion
in US markets has galvanized your Company to
focus on the organizational strength, leverage the
full capabilities and competencies of the cadre of
dedicated and highly experienced professionals.
Your Company will continue to work to protect the
revenues and bottom line, to turn challenges and

opportunities into successes.

Research and development (R&D) activity being
undertaken is focused on difficult to manufacture,
differentiated products, with possible low
competitive pressure. Work is on-going in
differentiated molecules, both for oral and

injectable products.

For instance, your Company successfully developed
and filed 4 penems for the US market and received
approval for one product, an injection drug, at the
end of the financial year. This product was
successfully launched in April 2017. Penems are
difficult to develop products. The development and
filing is in-line with the strategy of moving

towards complex/specialty products.

The recent acquisition of 5 biosimilar molecules is
in furtherance of the same strategy. These are
complex biosimilars, and the plans are to take a
lead molecule from this transaction for clinical
trials in 2017. This is an anti-antiogenesis drug
used in treatment of multiple-cancers including

metastatic colon or rectal cancer, non-squamous

and non-small cell lung cancers. Apart from these
molecules, your Company is working on
development of biosimilars in therapeutic
segments such as oncology, auto immune disorders

and ophthalmology.

In keeping with the need to manufacture a
growing product pipeline, your Company, in
addition to commissioning the formulations
manufacturing facility at Unit XV referred earlier,
has initiated significant improvements in

capacities to boost volumes, as given below:

° Unit X: Your Company is building a US FDA
compliant oral manufacturing facility at
Naidupet, Andhra Pradesh, which will be
commissioned in 2017-18. It is presently at
project stage, where validation batches are
being taken and is being got ready for
regulatory inspection;

° Unit XVI: Your Company is building another
US FDA compliant Betalactum injectables
manufacturing facility at Jedcherla, near
Hyderabad. It is planned to get the facility
commissioned in 2017-18;

° Your Company is in the processes of tripling
the capacity at AuroLife manufacturing
facility, which will significantly boost
volumes for the US market.

In order to sustain future growth and spread the
geographical risk, Aurobindo has been steadily
expanding its European footprint since 2006, via
acquisitions across several key markets and
building a diversified product basket. Most
notably, in 2014 the acquisition of Actavis's
commercial operations in seven Western European
countries added traction to the Company's
presence in these developed markets. The
acquisition of Generis, referred to earlier, builds

upon an already successful growth strategy.

Members will recall, Arrow Generiques S.A.S., the
French subsidiary of Aurobindo acquired select
commercial products in Calcium and Calcium
Vitamin D3, including the use of the Orocal
trademark. This acquisition enables Arrow
Generiques to continue to increase its branded
products portfolio and leverage its position as a

key player in the market, with focus on selling



generics in the retail and hospital markets in
France. The Company is well balanced between
generics/branded products/biosimilars in the retail
and hospital markets. A dedicated Business Unit
with sales and marketing team has been set up

specifically to enhance this business.

Arrow Generiques has continued developing the
brand awareness among prescribers through
promotion of mature products and launch of
specialties for patients care. The present
arrangement will boost the position of Arrow
Generiques and open new opportunities for the

future.

Aurobindo is committed to the larger cause of
bringing affordable HIV drugs to millions of
patients. Today, in addition to its existing
powerful portfolio of products, your Company is
bringing a one-of-its-kind generic version of a
valuable drug, as also developing a fixed dose
combination drug, to help achieve the UNAIDS
90-90-90 goals and an AIDS-free generation. The
UNAIDS 90-90-90 goal is an ambitious treatment
target aimed at goals briefly described below:

° By 2020, 90% of all people living with HIV
will know their HIV status.

° By 2020, 90% of all people with diagnosed
HIV infection will receive sustained

antiretroviral therapy.

° By 2020, 90% of all people receiving
antiretroviral therapy will have viral

suppression.

Your Company is striving to help achieve these
goals by proactively meeting the needs by offering
products in several countries. The World Health
Organization has recommended Aurobindo's first-
line therapy against HIV which is expected to see
rapid growth in demand now that a cost-effective
generic product is made available to the market.
Your Company's products have the potential to

improve the lives of millions of patients.
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

As in earlier years, your Company's new product
development initiatives ranged from conventional
oral and injectable products to more complex and

advanced dosages. The focus was to prioritize on

the more complex and niche products including
oral and sterile, peptide drug products. Filing
ANDAs of such products involved innovative and

development intensive work.

The oncology, dietary supplements and the OTC
teams made significant contributions by
developing new products. A notable activity during
the financial year was the start of development
work on 58 products in the oncology and 8
products in the hormone segments, both in
injectable and solid dosage forms. Regulatory
filings are expected to happen for all these
products within the next 3 years. Out of these 66
products that have been shortlisted, two products
were filed in the US in 2016-17 and the plans are
to file, at least 15 products in 2017-18. Further,
product development has been initiated in new
segments such as dermatology and nasal drug

delivery.

The continuous innovative and skilful work being
done by the R&D team is seen in the number of
approvals received over the years with revenue
growth and productivity gains. The regulatory
product approvals for the ANDAs filed in the past
as well as increased contribution/
commercialization of the development projects
already undertaken, demonstrate the intellectual

property strengths of your Company.

To take-up development of additional oncology
molecules, another Chemical Research Laboratory
has been created with isolators and appropriate
personal safety protection equipment. Process
development of six anti-cancer APIs is underway to
commercially validate those in the next financial

year.
ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH & SAFETY

In keeping with the increasing manufacturing
infrastructure and in order to continuously upgrade
the environmental and safety standards, your
Company took several initiatives, all of which were
dedicated to ensure renewability of the natural
resources, reduce environmental footprint, and
ensure all our employees, contractors and visitors
go home safely. This is an area of management
where prevention and proactive supervision is

embedded in the systems and processes.

While several steps have been taken to enhance
these standards and raise awareness across the
organization, Team Aurobindo believes that it is an
area where there is no finishing line and shall
remain a work-in-progress. A few of the actions

taken during the year are listed below:
Environment

In 2015-16, the Company planned additional
environmental management infrastructure,
particularly in wastewater management. These
have been installed in 2016-17, commissioned and
are working satisfactorily. This year too,
environment management across all facilities
attained a steady state and have proved that the
systems are consistent with environmental

regulations and customer expectations.

During the year under review, there was a surge in
environmental assessments of APl and
formulations units by experts from reputed
multinational customers and your Company
demonstrated its efforts on environmental
management to the satisfaction of all stakeholders.
This journey moves forward as part of continual

improvement of the organization's efforts.

In 2016-17, the biggest of Aurobindo's APl
manufacturing units, Unit X1, got accredited to 1SO
14001 international standard. A rigorous and
continuous evaluation of environmental
performance triggered a new initiative of
comprehensive and robust rain water management
across Aurobindo's manufacturing units. As part of
this drive, existing storm water drainage system/

network stands re-engineered.

As part of setting up of dedicated sewage
treatment plants (STP), three sewage treatment
plants were installed; one each in two of the
manufacturing units and one in a formulation
manufacturing unit. These STPs are in addition to

the ones planned and installed in 2015-16.

During 2016-17, your Company was successful in
obtaining consent for expansion of two API
manufacturing units. Regulatory approvals and
consents are in place for all the units while the
Company has ensured compliance with all

applicable environmental regulations.
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Safety

Your Company engaged the employees and
contractors to commit themselves for their own
safety and those of their colleagues. In order to
motivate the contractors, a reward and penalty
system for contractors was initiated so as to

complete their projects with zero safety incidents.

As an awareness initiative, a month long safety
program was organized, where promotional
activities were taken up to increase awareness of
prevention of hazards, and unsafe actions among
the work force. Nitrogen blanketing, prevention of
static electricity, volatiles in work place and
learning from past incidents were the themes of
the safety month. The program has inspirational
impact on the need for employees to align with

the best interests of each other.

Training remains a continual effort to create a
culture of safety. Formal safety training inputs
were provided, accounting for 0.54% of total man-
hours of each employee. Shift pep talks are
organized in APl units to communicate the
hazards and precautions that need to be taken in

the operations planned for each shift.

All new processes and changes to existing
processes are reviewed by the safety team and
tests are conducted to ensure that safety issues in
scale-up are identified and addressed. HAZOP
studies have been completed for 58 processes
during the year and risk assessments are

completed for 47 activities.

Over and above the routine up gradations, your
Company installed earth interlock and monitoring
systems. A new technology fire fighting system
with aerosol based extinguishers was installed to

raise the in-house capability.
HUMAN RESOURCES

Aurobindo has aligned its human resources
learning and development to the needs of a
growing and fast track organization. Year-on-year
as the organization catapults ahead to meet its
newest strategies and challenges, the immediate
impact is felt on its processes, technology and
most importantly its people. The very same people
have to now perform with a certain sense of
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urgency, do more with less, be assertive yet be
compliant and feel the heat of increase in their

span of control.

This presupposes skilling the existing manpower to
perform at their optimum best. The shop floor
resources are hence encouraged to stay focused on
key development areas as they are the doers, and
hence are required to maintain the necessary cGMP
compliance levels. Shop floor executives are
continuously trained and groomed in the area of
compliance, supported adequately to raise their

competence, confidence and anytime readiness.

Key employees at the shop floor undergo classroom
training, on-the-job training and assessments.
5,968 mandays of training was conducted for them
in 2016-17.

Customized programs such as Auro Disha, Naa
Unnati specially designed for the block and area
in-charges covering supervisory and managerial
skills with emphasis on project implementations
was organized. Such projects ranged from process
improvements to cost efficiencies with the support
of their managers. 1,560 mandays of training was
conducted in 2016-17 for supervisory and

managerial resources.

Mid-level managers were put through year-long
management development programs to bullet proof
them wherein they undergo and participate in 24
important competencies to raise them to be
successful leaders. They are required to implement
projects on cost improvements, customer service
and process improvements. 120 participants are
undergoing a full year of training in four batches.
Each batch on an average has helped save
significant amount of cost, where the savings are
objectively accounted for, even as the managers
are raising their expertise to their next level.
Individual's career plan is tailored and aligned with

the organization's strategic growth requirements.

A unique intervention has paved its way into the
organization where 30 General Executive Trainees
are being hired from premium colleges and are
being groomed to grow into future leaders. A
yearlong hand-holding process is organized to help
them understand the complexities of the
organization. They are put through classroom

training, on-the-job training, projects, robust
reviews and minimum of three rotations. Three

batches have been hired into the system.

During the year, 27,637 employees have been
covered in compliance, safety and behavioral
training. Several employees underwent multiple,

need based programs.

Aurobindo Training and Development Centre (ATDC)
recruits, trains and helps absorb talented
candidates. During the year, your Company
recruited 257 employees (29 M. Pharmacy, 113
M.Sc., 55 B. Pharmacy degrees and 60 ITI/Diploma
holders). During training, they are prepared both
on theoretical and practical aspects to meet the
requirements of quality control, quality assurance;
regulatory affairs, analytical techniques, stability/
quality compliance, safety compliance and good

documentation practices.

ITI/Diploma candidates are trained on production
and packaging operations. Apart from imparting
technical knowledge, ATDC plays a critical role in
holistic learning which includes internalizing the
corporate culture, work ethics and behavior
attributes towards effective leadership
development and progression and making a

difference to the organization.
AWARDS

For its HR practices, your Company received
recognition during the year, such as:

° Certificate of Honor in the category of
Excellence in HR by CPhl India & UBM India
for the initiatives taken for e-learning, skill
development, HR automation, talent
engagement, leadership competencies & its
integration with HR sub-systems.

° Certificate of Appreciation in the 12th
edition of BML Munjal Awards for Excellence

in Learning & Development.

Your Company has received an award for Most
Consistent IR (Investor Relations) Practice in Large
Cap category for 2016-17 conducted by KPMG, BSE,
Bloomberg and IR Society.

Aurobindo Pharma is a winner of the Clarivate

Analytics India Innovation Awards 2016. Clarivate



Analytics - formerly the IP & Science division of
Thomson Reuters -honors the top 50 most
innovative companies in India according to
patent-related metrics that get to the essence of

what it means to be truly innovative.
SUBSIDIARIES/JOINT VENTURES

As per the provisions of Section 129 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014, a separate statement
containing the salient features of the financial
statement of subsidiary companies/associate
companies/joint ventures is detailed in Form

AOC-1 and is in Annexure-1 to this Report.

During the year, the following companies were
incorporated as step down subsidiaries of the
Company:

a. Auro AR LLC;

b.  Auro Pharma USA LLC;

c. Aurogen South Africa (Pty) Limited;
d.  Auro Vaccine LLC, USA;

e.  Aurovitas Pharma Polska, Poland.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared by the Company in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 110 and 111
as specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and as per the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013. The Company has placed
separately, the audited accounts of its subsidiaries
on its website www.aurobindo.com, in compliance
with the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Audited financial statements of the
Company's subsidiaries will be provided to the

Members, on request.
VIGIL MECHANISM

The Board of Directors has adopted the Whistle
Blower Policy which is in compliance with Section
177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
22 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Whistle
Blower Policy aims for conducting the affairs in a
fair and transparent manner by adopting highest
standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity

and ethical behavior. All permanent employees and
whole-time directors of the Company are covered

under the Whistle Blower Policy.

A mechanism has been established for employees
to report their concerns about unethical behavior,
actual or suspected fraud or violation of Code of
Conduct and Ethics. It also provides for adequate
safeguards against the victimization of employees
who avail of the mechanism and allows direct
access to the Chairperson of the audit committee
in exceptional cases. The Whistle Blower Policy is
available on the Company's website:
http://www.aurobindo.com/about-us/

corporategovernance.

PREVENTION AND PROHIBITION OF SEXUAL
HARASSMENT

Your Company has constituted an internal
complaints committee in compliance with the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and the Rules there under. The Company has a
policy on prevention & prohibition of sexual
harassment at workplace. The policy provides for
protection against sexual harassment of women at
workplace and for the prevention and redressal of
such complaints. During the year, no complaints

have been received.
RATING

India Ratings and Research (Ind-Ra) has revised
Aurobindo 's outlook to Positive from Stable and
affirmed its long-term rating of the Company at
'IND AA+'.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board and Committee meetings are pre-
scheduled and a tentative calendar of the meetings
finalized in consultation with the Directors to
facilitate them to plan their schedule. However, in
case of special and urgent business needs,
approval is taken by passing resolutions through
circulation. During the year under review, four
Board Meetings and five Audit Committee Meetings
were convened and held. The details of the
meetings including composition of Audit

Committee are provided in the Corporate

Governance Report. During the year, all the
recommendations of the Audit Committee were

accepted by the Board.
DIRECTORS

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. P. Sarath Chandra Reddy and Dr. M.
Sivakumaran will retire at the ensuing annual
general meeting and being eligible, seek
reappointment. The Board of Directors recommends
their re-appointment.

The appointment of Mr. Rangaswamy
Rathakrishnan lyer as an Independent Director of
the Company for a period of two years upto
February 8, 2019 is being proposed at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The Board of Directors

recommends his appointment.

Dr. D. Rajagopala Reddy resigned as Independent
Director of the Company with effect from

February 10, 2017. The Board has placed on record
its sincere appreciation and gratitude for
contributions made by him during his tenure as

Independent Director of the Company.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

The Members of the Company at their 29th Annual
General Meeting held on August 24, 2016 have
appointed Mr. P. Sarath Chandra Reddy as
Whole-time Director for a period of three years
with effect from June 1, 2016.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013 your Directors confirm that:

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts,
the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures, if any;

b.  appropriate accounting policies have been
selected and applied consistently.
Judgement and estimates which are
reasonable and prudent have been made so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of your Company as at the end of the
financial year and of the profit of your

Company for the year;
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c. proper and sufficient care has been taken for
the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding
the assets of your Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other

irregularities;

d.  the annual accounts have been prepared on

a going concern basis;

e.  proper internal financial controls have been
laid down to be followed by your Company
and such internal financial controls are

adequate and are operating effectively; and

f. proper systems to ensure compliance with
the provisions of all applicable laws have
been devised, and such systems are adequate

and are operating effectively.
DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors have submitted the
declaration of independence stating that they
meet the criteria of independence as provided in
sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company recognizes and embraces the
importance of a diverse board in its success. The
Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy
which sets out the approach to diversity of the
Board of Directors. The Board Diversity Policy is
available on the Company's website: http://
www.aurobindo.com/about-us/corporate-

governance.
BOARD EVALUATION

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 mandates that
the Board shall monitor and review the Board
evaluation framework. The Companies Act, 2013
states that a formal annual evaluation needs to be
made by the Board of its own performance and
that of its committees and individual directors.
Schedule 1V of the Companies Act, 2013 states
that the performance evaluation of independent
directors shall be done by the entire Board of
Directors, excluding the director being evaluated.
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The evaluation of all the Directors and the Board
as a whole was conducted based on the criteria
and framework adopted by the Board including
performance and working of its Committees.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION

The policy of the Company on directors'
appointment and remuneration, including criteria
for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of a director and other matters are
adopted as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. The remuneration paid to the Directors
is as per the terms laid out in the nomination and
remuneration policy of the Company. The
nomination and remuneration policy as adopted by
the Board is placed on the Company's website:
http://www.aurobindo.com/about-us/corporate-
governance.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

The Company has not transferred any amount to
general reserve out of the profits of the year.

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Loans, guarantees or investments covered under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part
of the Notes to the financial statements provided
in this Annual Report.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
prepared in Form No. AOC-2 pursuant to clause (h)
of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
and is in Annexure-2 to this Report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required under Section 92(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the
extract of Annual Return prepared in Form MGT-9 is
in Annexure-3 to this Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS &
OUTGO

Information with respect to conservation of

energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earnings & outgo pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of
the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014 is in Annexure-4 to this Report.
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Risk Management Committee of the Company
consists of the following Directors viz.

Mr. M. Sitarama Murty, Mr. N. Govindarajan and

Mr. P. Sarath Chandra Reddy. Mr. M. Sitarama Murty
is the Chairman of the Committee. The Company
has established a separate department to monitor
the enterprise risk and for its management.

The Committee had formulated a risk management
policy for dealing with different kinds of risks
which the Company faces in its day-to-day
operations. Risk management policy of the
Company outlines different kinds of risks and risk
mitigating measures to be adopted by the Board.
The Company has adequate internal financial
control systems and procedures to combat the risk.
The risk management procedure is reviewed by the
Audit Committee and Board of Directors on regular
basis at the time of review of quarterly financial
results of the Company. A report on the risk and
their management is enclosed as a separate

section forming part of this report.
AUDITORS & AUDITORS' REPORT

The statutory auditors' report is annexed to this
report. The notes on financial statements referred
to in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and
do not call for any further comments. There are no
specifications, reservations, adverse remarks on
disclosure by the statutory auditors in their report.
They have not reported any incident of fraud to
the Audit Committee of the Company during the

year, under review.

Pursuant to Section 139 (2) of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, the Company at its 27th Annual
General Meeting (AGM) held on August 27, 2014,
had appointed M/s. S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP,
Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors for a
period of 3 years i.e. up to the conclusion of the
30th AGM to be held in the year 2017. The present
term of M/s. S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP,



Statutory Auditors, would expire at the conclusion

of the ensuing AGM.

The Board of Directors of the Company has
proposed the appointment of M/s. BSR &
Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office
from the conclusion of 30th AGM until the
conclusion of the 35th AGM.

The Company has received a letter from M/s. B SR
& Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants
confirming that they are eligible for appointment
as Statutory Auditors of the Company under
Section 139 of Companies Act, 2013 and meet the
criteria for appointment as specified in Section
141 of the Companies Act, 2013.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

The internal audit of the Company was conducted
by a professional firm of Chartered Accountants up
to September 2016. From October 2016, internal
audit is being conducted by an in-house team of
professionals. The internal audit reports are being

reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company.
COST AUDIT

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company is
maintaining the cost records as its business is
covered under the regulated sector viz. drugs and
pharmaceuticals. Audit of the Company's cost
records is not applicable since the Company's
revenues from exports, in foreign exchange, exceed

75% of its total revenues.
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The internal financial controls (IFC) framework
institutionalized in Aurobindo last year has been
evaluated in-depth for its adequacy and operating
effectiveness, wherein the Company has covered
financial reporting controls, operational controls,
compliance related controls and also Information
Technology (IT) controls, comprising IT general
controls (ITGC) and application level controls. The
ITGC would include controls over IT environment,
computer operations, access to programs and data,

program development and program changes. The

application controls would include transaction
processing controls in ERP Oracle system which
supports accurate data input, data processing and
data output, workflows, reviews and approvals as

per the defined authorization levels.

In order to further strengthen the existing IFC
framework and to support the growing business,
the Company has redefined all the process level
controls at activity level which has brought in
more clarity and transparency in day-to-day
processing of transactions and in addressing any
related risks. All the controls so redefined &
identified have been properly documented and
tested with the help of an independent auditor to
ensure their adequacy and effectiveness.

The internal auditors conduct ' Process & control
review' on a quarterly basis as per the defined
scope and submit the audit findings along with
management comments and action taken reports

to Audit Committee for its review.

The IFC framework at Aurobindo ensures the

following:

° Establishment of policies & procedures,
assignment of responsibility, delegation of
authority, segregation of duties to provide a

basis for accountability and controls;

° Physical existence and ownership of assets

at a specified date;

° Enabling proactive anti-fraud controls and a
risk management framework to mitigate

fraud risks to the Company;

° Recording of all transactions occurred during
a specific period. Accounting of assets,
liability, and revenue and expense

components at appropriate amounts;

° Preparation of financial information as per
the timelines defined by the relevant

authorities.
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has
appointed M/s. D.V. Rao & Associates, a firm of

Company Secretaries in practice to undertake the
secretarial audit of the Company for the financial
year 2016-17. The Secretarial Audit Report issued
in form MR-3 is in Annexure-5 to this Report.
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse
remarks in the Secretarial Audit Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company is striving to help create a healthy,
improved life of people in its neighborhood.
Broadly, the initiatives are to execute on the
stated CSR policy of 'give back to the society' and

make an impact on the lives of people.

The activities undertaken in 2016-17 can be

summarized under the following heads:

° Promoting education;

° Supporting preventive health care;

° Eradicating hunger, poverty & malnutrition;
° Making available safe drinking water;

° Encouraging environment sustainability;

. Sustaining ecological balance & conservation

of natural resources;
° Developing rural sports; and
° Setting up old age homes, etc

A detailed account of the CSR activities forms part
of the annual report on CSR placed on the
Company's website at: http://www.aurobindo.com/
social-responsibility/csr-activities. Report on
Corporate Social Responsibility as per Rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 is in Annexure-6 to this Report.

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF APPOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

The statement of particulars of appointment and
remuneration of managerial personnel as per Rule
5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
is in Annexure-7 to this Report.

INSURANCE

All properties and insurable interests of the
Company including building, plant and machinery
and stocks have been fully insured.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no material changes and commitments in
the business operations of the Company from the
financial year ended March 31, 2017 to the date of
signing of the Director's Report. There were no
significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and Company's operations in

future.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A separate section on Corporate Governance
standards followed by your Company, as stipulated
under Schedule V (C) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 is enclosed as a separate

section forming part of this report.

The certificate of the Practicing Company Secretary
Mr. S. Chidambaram with regard to compliance of
conditions of corporate governance as stipulated
under Schedule V(E) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 is annexed to the Corporate

Governance Report.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for
the year under review as stipulated under SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 is presented in a separate

section forming part of this report.
FIXED DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits
from the public within the purview of Chapter V of
the Companies Act, 2013.
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INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Industrial relations at all units of the Company
have been harmonious and cordial. The employees
are motivated and have shown initiative in

improving the Company's performance.

TRANSFER OF UNPAID AND UNCLAIMED AMOUNT
TO IEPF

The dividends which remain unpaid/unclaimed for
a period of seven years, have been transferred on
due dates by the Company to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established

by the Central Government.

Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules,
2016 (‘the Rules’) mandates that companies shall
apart from transfer of dividend that has remained
unclaimed for a period of seven years from the
unpaid dividend account to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund (IEPF), also transfer the
corresponding shares with respect to the dividend,
which has not been paid or claimed for seven
consecutive years or more to IEPF. Accordingly, the
dividends that remain unclaimed for seven years
and also the corresponding shares would be

transferred to IEPF account on due dates.
SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up share capital of the Company increased
by ¥712,823 during the year due to the allotment of
712,823 equity shares of %1 each on exercise of
stock options under the Employee Stock Option
Plan-2006 (ESOP 2006) of the Company. The paid up
share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2017
was 585,882,409 equity shares of %1 each.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Members at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on September 18, 2006 approved
formulation of Employee Stock Option Scheme-
2006 (ESOP 2006) for the eligible employees and
Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Details of the stock options as on March 31, 2017
is provided on the Company's website:
http://www.aurobindo.com/about-us/corporate-
governance. The details of the employee stock
options also form part of the notes to accounts of

the financial statements in this Annual Report.
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

A detailed Business Responsibility Report in terms
of the provisions of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 is available as a seperate

section in this Annual Report.
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Management

Discussion & Analysis

ECONOMIC BACKGROUND

India has emerged as the fastest growing major
economy in the world as per the Central Statistics
Organisation and International Monetary Fund.
The Government of India has forecasted that the
Indian economy will grow by 7.1% in 2016-17. As
per the Economic Survey 2016-17, the economy
should grow between 6.75% and 7.5% in
2017-18. The improvement in India's economic
fundamentals has accelerated since 2014 with the
combined impact of strong government reforms,
Reserve Bank of India's inflation focus supported
by benign global commodity prices.

India's consumer confidence index stood at 136
in the fourth quarter of 2016, topping the global
list of countries on the same parameter, as a
result of strong consumer sentiment, according to
market research agency, Nielsen.

Corporate earnings in India are expected to grow
by over 20% in 2017-18 supported by
normalization of profits, especially in sectors like
automobiles and banks, while GDP is expected to
grow by 7.5% during the same period, according
to Bloomberg consensus.

Moody's has affirmed the Government of India's
Baa3 rating with a positive outlook stating that
the reforms by the government will enable the
country perform better compared to its peers over
the medium term. With the expected normal
monsoon in 2017, and the implementation of
GST, there is considerable optimism across all
sections of the economy.

PHARMA INDUSTRY - A PERSPECTIVE

According to the Ministry of Commerce &
Industry, Government of India, Indian
pharmaceuticals market is the third largest in
terms of volume and thirteenth largest in terms
of value. India is the largest provider of generic

drugs globally with the accounting for 20% of
global exports in terms of volume.

India enjoys an important position in the global
pharmaceuticals industry. The country also has a
large pool of scientists and engineers who have
the potential to steer the industry ahead to an
even higher level.

The Indian pharma industry, which is expected to
grow by over 15% per annum between 2015 and
2020, will outperform the global pharma industry,
which is set to grow at an annual rate of 5% in
the same period. The market is expected to grow
to USD 55 bhillion by 2020, thereby emerging as
the sixth largest pharmaceutical market globally
by absolute size (Source: www.ibef.org of Ministry
of Commerce & Industry, Government of India,
updated June 2017).

India has maintained its lead over China in
pharmaceutical exports with a year-on-year
growth of 11.4% to USD 12.9 billion in

2015-16, according to data from the Ministry of
Commerce and Industry. In addition, Indian
pharmaceutical exports are estimated to have
grown between 8-10% in 2016-17. Imports of
pharmaceutical products rose marginally by 0.8%
year-on-year to USD 1,641.1 million.

Overall drug approvals given by the US Food and
Drug Administration (USFDA) to Indian companies
had nearly doubled to 201 in 2015-16 from 109
in 2014-15. The country accounts for around 30%
(by volume) and about 10% (by value) in the

USD 70-80 billion US generics market.

India's biotechnology industry comprising bio-
pharmaceuticals, bio-services, bio-agriculture,
bio-industry and bioinformatics is expected grow
at an average growth rate of around 30% a year
and reach USD 100 billion by 2025.

The Government of India unveiled 'Pharma Vision
2020" aimed at making India a global leader in

end-to-end drug manufacture. Approval time for
new facilities has been reduced to boost
investments. The government proposes to set up
chemical hubs across the country, provide early
environment clearances in existing clusters and
help create adequate infrastructure.

Some of the major initiatives taken by the
government to promote the pharmaceutical sector
in India are as follows:

e  The Government of India plans to set up
eight mini drug-testing laboratories across
major ports and airports in the country,
which is expected to improve the drug
regulatory system and infrastructure
facilities by monitoring the standards of
imported and exported drugs and reduce the
overall time spent on quality assessment.

e India is expected to rank among the top five
global pharmaceutical innovation hubs by
2020, based on Government of India's
decision to allow 50% public funding in the
pharmaceuticals sector through its Public
Private Partnership (PPP) model.

e Indian Pharmaceutical Association (IPA), the
professional association of pharmaceutical
companies in India, plans to prepare data
integrity guidelines which will help to
measure and benchmark the quality of
Indian companies with global peers.

e  The Government of India plans to incentivise
bulk drug manufacturers, including both
state-run and private companies, to
encourage 'Make in India' program and
reduce dependence on imports of Active
Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API), nearly
85% of which come from China (Source:
www.ibef.org of Ministry of Commerce &
Industry, Government of India, updated June
2017).
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e  The Department of Pharmaceuticals has set
up an inter-ministerial co-ordination
committee, which would periodically review,
coordinate and facilitate the resolution of
the issues and constraints faced by the
Indian pharmaceutical companies.

The Indian pharmaceutical market size is
expected to grow to USD 100 hillion by 2025,
driven by increasing consumer spending, rapid
urbanization, and raising healthcare insurance
among others (Source: www.ibef.org of Ministry
of Commerce & Industry, Government of India,
updated June 2017).

Across the world, speedy introduction of generic
drugs into the market has remained in focus and
is expected to benefit the Indian pharmaceutical
companies. In addition, the thrust on rural health
programs, lifesaving drugs and preventive
vaccines also augurs well for the pharmaceutical
companies.

Traditionally pharmaceutical companies undergo
an expensive and time consuming process to
develop new drugs. It often entails many years
and billions of dollars in research and
development, as well as an arduous approval
process by the US FDA. In exchange, the FDA
generally provides drug companies with 12 years
of patent protection and, in effect, a monopoly
on sales during that period. This allows the drug
companies to recoup their costs, earn a profit,
and start the process anew for the next wave of
new and innovative drugs.

Demand for generic drugs will continue to rise as
payers take advantage of patent expiries to
reduce costs. A generic drug can only be
introduced once patent protection on the
associated brand-name drug has expired, and
exclusivity is granted only to the companies
which challenge patents. Generally generics sold
at steep discounts to their branded counterparts,
and often gain large portions of market share
from branded drugs in a short amount of time
following patent expirations.

According to the IMS and the DCAT, generics
remain the biggest contributor to the
pharmaceutical industry's global growth.
According to the IMS report ‘Global Outlook for
Medicines through 2018, generics will be
responsible for 52% of growth in global medicine
spending between 2014 and 2018. The scope of
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generics is immense, and it's only set to grow as
more drugs come off their patents.

A generic drug (commonly referred as generics) is
a drug defined as 'a drug product that is
comparable to a brand/reference listed drug
product in dosage form, strength, quality and
performance characteristics and intended use.'
Generic drugs are subject to the regulations of
the governments of countries where they are
dispensed.

A generic drug must contain the same active
ingredients as the original formulation. According
to the US FDA, generic drugs are identical or
within an acceptable bioequivalent range to the
brand-name counterpart with respect to
pharmacokinetic and pharmacodynamic
properties. By extension, therefore, generics are
considered (by the FDA) identical in dose,
strength, route of administration, safety, efficacy,
and intended use. In most cases, generic products
are available once the patent protections afforded
to the original developer have expired.

In contrast, generic drug companies operate very
differently. The amount of money they need to
invest to produce a generic is much less than the
traditional branded drug companies, since the
drug has already been formulated and approved.

In order to protect the traditional branded drug
companies and allow them to earn a return on
investment, generic drugs can only be introduced
after the patent protection has expired, if the
patent protection has not been further extended
by the FDA. Even then, the FDA-approved copies
of branded drugs are only given a short 180-day
exclusivity period if their generic is the first to
launch in the market (Para IV).

Once generic drugs are introduced to the market,
they are typically sold at steep discounts (50% to
90%) compared to the branded alternative and,
as a result, on average, branded drugs typically
lose 70% or more of their market share to
generics in a short amount of time.

As per IMS report, today in the US, generic drugs
account for 90% of all prescriptions filled and
may account for 92% of prescription volumes by
2021. According to a report by IMS Health,
generic drugs are expected to account for 52% of
global pharmaceutical spending growth,
compared to 35% for branded drugs. It was
reported by IMS in Q2 2015, the U.S. healthcare

system saved USD 1.68 trillion in the last ten
years due to the availability of low cost generics.

Major factors driving the growth of generics
include popular branded drugs losing their patent
protection (known as a 'patent cliff'), support for
generics from governments, new complex generics
coming into the market, and industry
consolidation.

As per the 'Outlook for Global Medicines through
2021' published by Quintiles IMS Institute in
December 2016, total volume of medicines
consumed globally will increase by about 3%
annually through 2021, only modestly faster than
the population and demographic shifts, but
driven by very different factors around the world.
Spending on medicines will grow by 4-7%,
primarily driven by newer medicines in developed
markets and increased volume in emerging
markets.

Developed markets will offset increased costs
from new medicines with the use of generics, and
a greater focus on pricing and access measures,
while emerging markets will struggle to live up to
the promised access expansions made when their
economic outlooks were stronger. Global medicine
spending is estimated to reach nearly USD 1.5
trillion by 2021 on an invoice price basis, up
nearly USD 370 billion from the 2016 estimated
spending level.

Most global spending growth, particularly in
developed markets, will be driven by oncology,
autoimmune and diabetes treatments where
significant innovations are expected. The U.S.
will continue as the world's largest
pharmaceutical market and emerging markets will
make up 9 of the top 20 markets. China will
continue as the #2 market, a rank it has held
since 2012. Developed market spending growth
will be driven by original brands, while emerging
markets will continue to be fueled by non-
original products that make up an average 91% of
emerging market volume and 78% of spending.

The US nutraceutical market is at around USD 38
billion and is expected to grow to USD 46 billion
by 2018 as per 2015 Nutrition Business Journal.
According to a market report published by
Transparency Market Research 'Nutraceuticals
Market - Global Industry Analysis, Size, Share,
Growth and Forecast, 2015-21', global
nutraceuticals market was valued at USD 165.6



billion in 2014 and is expected to reach USD
278.9 billion by 2021, growing at a CAGR of 7.3%
from 2015 to 2021. North America is expected to
dominate the global nutraceuticals market in
terms of demand over the forecast period.

The growth drivers for the US nutraceutical
market is ageing population, increased consumer
focus on proactive health management, increase/
perceived increase in condition-specific disorders,
growing consumer interest in drug-free/natural
health solutions that are proven effective. Key
macro segments in the US nutraceutical category
is vitamins, specialty supplements, herbs &
botanicals, sports nutrition, meal replacements
and minerals.

Seen from India perspective, the country has over
10,500 manufacturing units and over 3,000
pharma companies and exports all forms of
pharmaceuticals from active pharmaceutical
ingredients (APIs) to formulations, both in
modern medicine and traditional Indian
medicines.

The Indian pharma industry stands diversified
into various spheres of activities including
research and development (R&D), manufacturing
of branded, generic and branded generic drugs,
manufacturing APIs, laboratory testing and
clinical research.

Indian pharmaceutical manufacturing facilities
registered with US FDA as on April 2015 was the
highest at 605 (Source: Pharmexcil annual report
2016) for any country outside the US. In a study
of the top 20 countries that have filed Drug
Master Files, India stood first with 3,820 DMFs
that are currently active, filed as at December
2015. The trend continues even today.

Indian pharma exports have consistently
improved over the years. India exports over USD
16.9 billion worth of medicines, of which more
than 50% were to regulated markets. The US with
33% is the India's largest pharma export
destination followed by Africa and the European
Union. (Source: Pharmexcil annual report
2015-16). These figures indicate that Indian
medicines have established themselves as
affordable and reliable, across the world.

India's exports of generics have been growing at
a rate of nearly 22% annually over the past four
years. It is estimated that around 40% of the
generic drugs in the US come from India. The
growth momentum is likely to continue.

The drugs and pharmaceuticals sector attracted
cumulative foreign direct investment (FDI)
inflows worth USD 14,706.9 million between April
2000 and March 2017, according to data released
by the Department of Industrial Policy and
Promotion (DIPP).

Several state governments are encouraging the
pharmaceutical industry. For instance, the State
of Telangana has proposed to set up India's
largest integrated pharmaceutical city spread over
11,000 acres near Hyderabad, complete with
effluent treatment plants and a township for
employees, in a bid to attract investment of ¥300
billion in phases.

The enormous opportunity for the industry can be
best illustrated from the projected human
resource requirement of the Indian pharma sector,
estimated to be about 2.15 million by 2020.

The Indian pharmaceuticals market increased at a
CAGR of 17.5% during 2005-16 with the market
increasing from USD 6 billion in 2005 to USD 36.7
billion in 2016 and is expected to expand at a
CAGR of 15.9% to USD 55 billion by 2020. More
important, by 2020, India is likely to be among
the top three pharmaceutical markets by
incremental growth and sixth largest market
globally in absolute size.

There are however estimates which suggest more
aggressive growth. As per India Ratings, a Fitch
Group company, the industry is estimated to grow
at 20% compounded annual growth rate (CAGR)
over the next five years.

COMPANY PERSPECTIVE

Normally, generic pharmaceutical companies have
challenges that need to be addressed. The
successful companies drive their growth by
improving their fundamentals in critical areas
such as:

e  Backward integration into active
pharmaceutical ingredients;

e  Manufacture at their state-of-the-art
facilities;
e  Aggressive portfolio build up in niche,

specialty, and differentiated products;

e Investment in compliance and regulatory
standards to provide for patient-safety;

e  Rapid geographic expansion into both
developed and emerging markets.

Early access to high-quality active pharmaceutical
ingredients that are not infringing patents is
critical to succeed in regulated finished-dose
markets as a significant part of generics' profits is
made during the early days of their availability. It
needs to be emphasized that finished dosages
have to be non-infringing.

The foregoing are precisely the strengths of
Aurobindo. The Company is one of the largest
vertically integrated pharmaceutical companies in
India. In addition to being the market leader in
semi-synthetic penicillins, the Company has a
presence in key therapeutic segments such as
antibiotics, neurosciences, cardiovasculars, anti-
retrovirals, diabetics, anti allergies and
gastroenterology among others.

Strengthened by manufacturing facilities
approved by US FDA, UK MHRA, MCC-SA,
ANVISA-Brazil for both APIs & formulations and
with a global presence with own infrastructure,
strategic alliances with 51 subsidiaries & joint
ventures, Aurobindo features among the top 3
companies from India in terms of consolidated
revenues. The Company exports to over 150
countries across the globe with more than 88%
of its revenues derived out of international
operations. The customers include top
multi-national companies.

After creating a name for itself in the
manufacture of active pharmaceutical ingredients
and ensuring a firm foundation of cost effective
production capabilities together with a clutch of
loyal customers, the Company has entered the
high-margin specialty generic formulations
segment, with a global marketing network. The
business is systematically organized with an
identified accountability structure and a focused
team for each key international market.
Aurobindo's business strategy includes gaining
volumes and market shares in every business/
segment it enters.

In less than a decade, Aurobindo has evolved into
a knowledge driven company manufacturing
active pharmaceutical ingredients and
formulation products. It is R&D focused and has a
multi-product portfolio with several
manufacturing facilities.

Leveraging on its large state-of-the-art
manufacturing infrastructure for APls and
formulations, wide and diversified basket of
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products and confidence of its customers, the
Company aims to sustain its growth momentum.
Aurobindo's strategic competitive advantage
includes eleven units ensuring captive source of
APls/intermediates and eight units manufacturing
formulations, designed to meet the requirements
of both advanced as well as emerging market
opportunities. These 19 units in India are in
addition to four formulations units overseas.

Aurobindo makes use of in-house R&D for filing of
patents, Drug Master Files (DMFs), Abbreviated
New Drug Applications (ANDAs) and formulation
dossiers across the world. The Company is among
the largest filers of DMFs and ANDAs globally.

Aurobindo's R&D strengths, across various
molecules including oral and injectables, lie in
developing intellectual property in non-infringing
processes and resolving complex chemistry
challenges. In the process, Aurobindo develops
new drug delivery systems, dosage formulations
and applies new technology for improved
processes.

The medium term strategy of the Company is to
continuously globalize and enhance value to
shareholders and customers. In global markets,
the Company continues to retain and enhance
cost-efficient quality leadership in its chosen
segments, such as newer anti-infectives and
lifestyle disease drugs. It is the endeavor of the
Company to achieve this by resolving complex
chemistry challenges, improving process
efficiencies, adopting global scale manufacturing
and using cost-effective market networks
throughout its addressable markets. Aurobindo
aims to repeat its success year after year and
emerge as a major player in the developed
markets.

The long-term growth strategies being put into
action include:

e  Developing a broad portfolio of DMFs/ANDAs
through non-infringing processes and with
backward integration across the basket;

e  Becoming a significant player in the
generics market, especially in the regulated
markets with differentiated products;

e  Managing cost efficiency in a mega-
manufacturing environment approved by US
FDA/European regulatory authorities; and in
the process, enhance the attractiveness of
Aurobindo to alliance partners;
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e  Resolving complex chemical challenges and
offering advanced drugs to the global
markets;

e Increasing penetration in controlled
substances;

e  Globalizing and further penetrating the
markets through joint ventures/
subsidiaries/organic means into Japan,
Brazil and other Latin American countries as
well as into Europe; and,

e  Emerging as a leading player in global high-
quality innovative specialty generic
formulations.

In the competitive US market, the focus is on
building customer relationships, expanding
volume and market share on new and existing
products. Marketing efforts have already started
showing results. Aurobindo had been ranked #6
generics supplier as per IMS total prescriptions
dispensed for the 12-months ending April 2017.

In 2014, the Company had acquired certain
products from Actavis in Western Europe to
strengthen its formulations presence in those
markets. Aurobindo is now gaining traction in
several west European countries supported by a
robust infrastructure already in place. The
acquired business turned profitable last year and
continue to do as per expectation during the year
under review on the back of increased focus,
product pruning and cost efficiencies. The focus
on profitability will be further strengthened with
the acquisition of Generis in Portugal.

Aurobindo, with a large portfolio of anti-retroviral
products for HIV/AIDS relief, is in the top five
preferred global suppliers to reputed global
funding agencies such as PEPFAR, USAID,
UNITAID, Global Fund, World Bank and Clinton
Health Access Initiative.

The evolving focus of the Company is on complex
molecules, differentiated technology platforms
and specialty products. The corporate plans are to
ensure growth through organic means and
adopting strategic joint ventures and alliances.
The objective is to maximize the revenues and
margins while risks are minimized.

Aurobindo has tie-ups with select customers,
giving them a competitive edge through faster
product development and optimized costs. The

strategy is based on co-working and collaborative
alliances and the Company has successfully
established strategic partnerships with global
pharmaceutical majors.

Aurobindo has made significant foray into
nutraceuticals, especially with the acquisition of
Natrol in California, US, which is amongst the top
20 branded nutraceutical companies in the US
with more than 35 years old, well established
brands. This entity brings enormous growth
potential with its portfolio of dietary
supplements, sports nutrition, functional foods,
vitamins, minerals and weight loss products,
diverse customer base of long-term relationships
with key distribution and retail partners and
strong customer partnerships across multiple
distribution channels. Since the US, the world's
largest nutraceuticals market is expected to grow,
there is considerable headroom for Aurobindo to
expand its nutraceuticals product market.

The forward plans include newer technologies
such as peptides, vaccines, biocatalysts as well as
newer product lines such as oncology, hormones,
steroids, inhalers, biosimilars, patches and films.

STRENGTHS
A few strengths of the Company are as follows:

e  Amongst the deepest portfolio of ANDAS in
global generic companies with a diverse
product basket of 3,472 formulation filings
in US, EU, South Africa and Canada markets
& 2,829 API filings worldwide including
multiple registrations;

e  Complete portfolio of products in SSPs,
cephalosporin, ARV, anti-infectives and
other non-beta lactams, sterile and non-
sterile antibiotics;

e APl integration for almost 70% of its
products - a key differentiator in the fiercely
competitive global generic markets;

e  One of the leading vertically integrated
pharma companies in India;

e  Uncompromised investment in quality
systems & processes, with every employee
sensitized to the need to comply with
regulatory and customer requirements;

e  Strict confidentiality and utmost secrecy are
maintained through absolute adherence to
the non-disclosure clause;



e  Efficient supply chain management and
optimal utilization of capacities, are ensured
enabling Aurobindo to pass on substantial
cost benefits to its customers;

e  Sticking to set deadlines. For instance, the
Company commercialized an API involving a
14-step process with five chiral centers in
just 13 weeks;

e A huge library with syndicated databases is
available and the latest software ensures
quick and efficient literature/patent survey
and retrieval of information;

e  Multi-disciplinary project teams interface
with the customers' right from the start to
ensure a seamless integrated approach. Their
responsiveness enables rapid execution of
projects;

e  Besides conforming to cGMP and cGLP due
attention is given to safety, health and
environment aspects;

e A right mix of instrumentation and
production expertise with due emphasis on
profiling, characterization of compounds and
reduction in impurities, chiral resolution and
impurity profiling ensure the highest quality
of deliverables and yield optimization;

e  The manufacturing infrastructure, the
knowledge base at the research centers and
the ability to deal successfully with its
process chemistry strengths are the forte of
Aurobindo.

All the strengths have been tested from the
perspective plan to manufacturing plant and later
in the market place. There is a powerful
marketing infrastructure backed up by state-of-
the-art manufacturing systems that are driving
the business.

THREATS AND CHALLENGES

The pharmaceutical industry is highly competitive
and the challenges are from both the Indian
manufacturers who have similar production
facilities as well as those abroad. Human
resources with similar skills, talents and
experiences in the industry are mobile between
competing companies.

Price pressures in US markets are expected to
stay. Going forward, there is a risk of inability to
maintain current margins on its products. Price

sensitivities get tested in a crowded market
where price tends to sag while volume business
gets done.

Competing pharmaceutical companies have
several similar bio-equivalent products in the
same market manufactured at facilities that have
been approved by the highest regulatory
authorities. All of them stay focused on the same
markets resulting in price elasticity being tested
and margins eroding.

Yet, it must be appreciated that Indian
manufacturers in general, and Aurobindo in
particular, have made an impact on the global
stage and have worked hard to get shelf space.
This threat does not affect Aurobindo, because of
its control over raw material sourcing. The
Company is a dominant player in the active
ingredients business and has been able to control
its quality, improve on timelines, be competitive
on its costs and has the ability to deliver at short
notice. This is a unique advantage that Aurobindo
enjoys over manufacturers across the world.

The Company has been timing its launches to
take advantage of products going off-patent and
the opportunities available in a first-mover
market. This strategy is built around the in-house
R&D capabilities, technology strength in
manufacturing facilities and the marketing
infrastructure. Aurobindo has worked on its
speed-to-market abilities and is quick to convert
product approvals into invoices.

The scientists and professionals of Aurobindo
have been trained to create opportunities,
replicate the successes and drive business
growth. The Company has unmatched strengths to
cope with the challenges of the market such as
experienced staff with ability to anticipate
market needs, plan for product launches with
supportive documentation, create products that
meet regulatory norms and execute plans within
tight cost and time budgets.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Internal Financial Controls (IFC) Framework
institutionalized in Aurobindo last year has been
evaluated in-depth for its adequacy and operating
effectiveness, wherein the Company has covered
financial reporting controls, operational controls,
compliance related controls and also Information
Technology (IT) controls comprising IT general
controls (ITGC) and application level controls. The

ITGC would include controls over IT environment,
computer operations, access to programs and
data, program development and program changes.
The application controls would include
transaction processing controls in ERP Oracle
system which supports accurate data input, data
processing and data output, workflows, reviews
and approvals as per the defined authorization
levels.

In order to further strengthen the existing IFC
framework and to support the growing business,
the Company has redefined all the process level
controls at activity level which has brought in
more clarity and transparency in day-to-day
processing of transactions and in addressing any
related risks. All the controls so redefined &
identified have been properly documented and
tested with the help of an independent auditor to
ensure its adequacy and effectiveness.

The internal auditors on a quarterly basis conduct
'Process & control review' as per the scope
defined and submit audit findings along with
management comments and action taken reports
to Audit Committee for its review.

The IFC framework at Aurobindo ensures the
following:

e  Establishment of policies & procedures,
assignment of responsibility, delegation of
authority, segregation of duties to provide a
basis for accountability and controls;

e  Physical existence and ownership of assets
at a specified date;

e  Enabling proactive anti-fraud controls and a
risk management framework to mitigate
fraud risks to the company;

e  Recording of all transactions occurred during
a specific period. Accounting of assets,
liability, and revenue and expense
components at appropriate amounts;

e  Preparation of financial information as per
the timelines defined by the relevant
authorities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Aurobindo is a professionally managed company
with highly competent and committed industry
professionals forming a tight-knit team of
dedicated colleagues. The corporate promise,
‘Committed to healthier life' reiterates that the
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team is focused on performing and delivering on
patient-safety.

The knowledge, expertise and skills of the
Aurobindo team form a strong foundation of the
Company's progress, and hence considerable
strategic emphasis is laid at people development
and leadership. The overall target is to enhance
business growth by enabling engagement and
performance. This is achieved by having the right
people supported by participative leadership
working together towards organizational goals.
APL Corporate Values forms the foundation for
this development.

Aurobindo Pharma has a team of over 16,000
professionals from 30 countries working at its
various divisions - APl manufacturing,
formulation manufacturing, chemical R&D,
formulation R&D and overseas operations. About
80% of these employees are graduates, post
graduates and PhDs.

As part of its investment in learning and
development, the Company has recrafted its
human resource philosophy. In brief, they are
iterated below:

e  Attract, build and retain right talent at all
levels;

e  Create and nurture a performance culture
through continuous capability building,
performance measurement and leveraging of
IT;

e  Foster leadership at all levels through trust,
empowerment and openness;

e  Strengthen collaborative approach for
business excellence;

e  Promote a vibrant work culture based on
innovation and to incentivize people based
on productivity/outstanding performance.

The emphasis has been on the five critical
dimensions of people management:

e  Establishment of vibrant organizational
culture;
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e Talent attraction and retention;
e  Continuous capability building;

e  Recognition of outstanding performance of
the team/individuals; and,

e  Staff welfare.

A key initiative undertaken is 'Mission Quality'
which aims to create and augment the quality
culture across the organization to assess the staff
and executives on quality standards compliance.
An assessment based on key performance indices
and quality metrics has been carried out at the
formulations unit to identify Master Quality
Leaders (MQL) who will facilitate the quality
initiatives across the organization.

Quality Marshal Program (QMP)is another
initiative to strengthen the quality culture
through continuous reinforcement of SOPs and
adherence toquality standards by application of
learning with the help of qualified resource pool.

For pharma industry, in general, it isn't the
process deficiency that is a challenge rather how
the efficiency of the process is effectively
communicated during the audit interaction holds
all the aces; and this efficiency in communication
needs continuous practice. It was addressing this
very need, the Quality Marshal Program was
envisaged to strengthen quality culture through
learning partnerships and develop confidence and
communication towards increasing audit interface
capabilities.

Potential Quality Marshals are mapped across the
value-stream with demonstrated high compliance
behaviors, training ability and audit experience.
They then become part of collaborative learning
with cascading methodology leading to critical
talent development. The program aims to develop
close to 500 Quality Marshals across all units by
2019, and the training and certification processes
are going on in full gear.

Industrial relations continue to be cordial and

harmonious. The management has initiated
various measures such as formation of bipartite
forums and joint management councils to
promptly redress staff grievances and to improve
welfare amenities in the plants.

The Company cares for its employee and
contractor safety as well as environment
protection. In its approach to business,
Aurobindo integrates a robust and sustainable
safety system that aims for zero incidents. The
objective is to guarantee a high degree of safety
in the workplace.

Aurobindo works in harmony with environmental
and social responsibilities. Continuous efforts are
made to optimize use of resources, minimize
waste, reuse and recycle materials and reduce the
eco-footprint, to create more value with less
environmental impact.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Aurobindo's CSR charter covers the following
areas of activities:

e  Promoting education;

e  Supporting preventive health care;

e  FEradicating hunger, poverty & malnutrition;
e  Making available safe drinking water;

e  Encouraging environment sustainability;

e  Sustaining ecological balance &
conservation of natural resources;

e  Developing rural sports; and

Setting up old age homes etc.

As part of societal commitment, Aurobindo
provides support to the neighborhood with
educational aids for school children, construction
of toilets and provision of safe drinking water.
The primary focus is to promote education,
encourage good health, provide drinking water
and support sanitation.



Management of Risks

OVERVIEW

The objective of Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
framework at Aurobindo is to address all major risks
in a proactive manner to sustain business growth.
Aurobindo’s ERM practices are based on COSO-ERM
framework. The ERM is designed to minimize an
adverse impact of the risks and it enables the
company to leverage market opportunities
effectively and enhances its competitive advantage
on a medium and long term and creates value for
its stakeholders. The risk management process
encompasses the following steps:

e  Risk identification
e  Risk assessment
e  Risk mitigation
e  Risk monitoring

Aurobindo has aligned risk management process
with every part of the critical business processes
to ensure that the processes are designed and
operated effectively towards the achievement of
business objectives. Risks are addressed across all
key business functions in a holistic manner rather
than in silos.

RISK IDENTIFICATION & ASSESSMENT PROCEDURE

A bottom-up approach is adopted for the
identification of risks for each function through
face-to-face meetings, brain storming sessions and
risk assessment templates. Risk registers are
updated with existing and emerging risks. Internal
audits and periodic assessment of business processes
also help in risk identification of both operational
and enterprise wide risks.

The risk assessment is aimed at evaluating and
prioritizing risks so that risk levels are managed
within defined tolerance thresholds and also to
maximize response and recovery efforts. The risk
assessment is done in the following manner.

e  Assessing impact of risks to business and
probability of risks occurring

e  Determining risk rating based on probability
and impact of risk by using a scale of 1 to 5,
with 1 being the lowest probability/severity
and 5 the highest.

e Considering the effectiveness of existing
controls that address the risk and evaluating
which risks need treatment and priority.

Risk analysis and evaluation is carried out using
scenario-based assessments to determine the
potential impact and likelihood of risk occurrence.
Identified risks along with impact are compared with
established thresholds to determine the priority and
method of risk mitigation.

RISK MITIGATION & MONITORING PROCEDURE

The Company adopts meaningful risk mitigation
strategies tailored to each identified risk. Risk
mitigation procedures involve undertaking the
appropriate actions by the business heads/process
owners who are accountable to mitigate risks in a
time bound manner.

RISK CATEGORIES

The Risk management framework covers the
following broad categories of risks to business
objectives:

e  Strategic risks are the risks arising due to
the decisions the management makes with
reference to markets, product & process
development, resources, business growth &
revenue model, acquisitions, investment model
etc. which can impact business objectives.
Ownership of these risks would be with the
top management.

e  Operational risks are attributable to business
operations such as production capacities,
quality assurance, customer demands, material
availability, human safety etc.which can have
impact on business. Ownership of these risks
would be with operations team.

e Projects risks are the risks arising due to
delays in commissioning the projects which

could lead to cost & time overruns and loss of
business.

e  Compliance risks are the risks arising due to
adverse developments in regulatory
environment and statutory provisions that
impact the company’s reputation and business.

e Financial risks are the risks that relate to
financial performance targets of revenue and
profit goals of the company. These risks could
have impact on the Company’s financial
statements and transmission of accurate
financial information to stakeholders.

e Information technology (IT) risks could have
potential impact on information assets and
processing systems.

RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The risk management framework operates at various
levels across the Company and the governance
structure is as given below:
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The risk governance structure of the Company is
headed by Board of Directors who formed the RMC.
The RMC is responsible for framing, implementing
and monitoring the risk management framework for
the Company and responsible for reviewing the risk
management plan and ensuring its effectiveness.
The Audit Committee has additional oversight in
the area of financial risks and controls. Risk
Management Head (RMH) acts as a nodal point for
coordinating risk management activities. RMH also
appraises the Audit Committee with identified risks
and its mitigation. RMH is supported by business
heads who are the risk owners to implement the
risk management framework in their respective
business units.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS (IFC)
HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR

The Company has deepened existing IFC Framework
institutionalized last year and identified additional
controls and processes which have been assessed
and documented in ‘Risk Control Matrix' (RCM) and
this effort has brought in more transparency and
clarity at activity/sub-process level. All the controls
so documented have been tested for its design and
operating effectiveness.

BUSINESS RISKS AT AUROBINDO

Some of the key existing and emerging risks
affecting Aurobindo’s business are listed below:

Economic & geopolitical risks

Economic and political instability arising from
changes in foreign policies & political leadership in
countries such as USA, Europe and emerging markets
(EM), where Aurobindo has business presence could
adversely affect the Company’s operations and
revenues.

Aurobindo has its business operations predominately
in USA, Europe and the emerging markets with a
balanced product basket that contains several
therapeutic segments. The revenue breakup of the
Company for financial year 2016-17 is as given
below:

e International sales constitute about 88% of
the Company’s total revenue with the rest 12%
being domestic sales;

e  Formulations business contributes 79.8% to
the Company’s total revenue and the rest
20.2% comes from active pharmaceutical
ingredients;

e  About 57% of the formulations sales come from
the US, about 27% from Europe, 6% from anti-
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retroviral business segment and the balance
10% emerging markets.

Continuous efforts are being made to strengthen
business presence in other potential markets such
as Japan, Brazil, South Africa, Canada, North and
West Africa and Middle East. Initiatives are being
taken to strengthen the presence in Western Europe,
while newer markets are being added in countries
such as Poland and Czech Republic. Such well-
designed moves would also help consolidate
Aurobindo’s volumes and revenues over the long
term, thereby spreading the risk portfolio.

As a de-risking strategy, the Company is focusing
on territory expansions, partnerships, globalization
and getting into new product segments. The
Company is developing a broad portfolio of products
through non-infringing processes to become a
significant player in the generics arena.

Competition risks

Aurobindo’s products face tough competition from
other pharmaceutical companies in India and abroad
where multiple players are present, and introduction
of new products by competitors may impair the
Company’s competitive advantage and lead to loss
of market share.

Aurobindo with its unique capabilities has been able
to face competition from its peers. The competition
risks would not significantly impact the Company’s
business owing to its integrated manufacturing
process and operational efficiencies which would
ensure timely launching of new products in the
market at competitive prices.

For most of its generic formulations, the Company
is vertically integrated which ensures timely material
availability and effective cost control to focus on
improving profit margins. New products continue
to get launched by experienced and talented R&D
teams who would develop new processes/products
continuously to meet customer needs and build
market share.

Instability in any one economy will not have a major
influence on the Company. Overall, the healthcare
industry is not price elastic and is hence, reasonably
insulated from recession.

Regulatory, Statutory & Legal compliance risks

The pharmaceutical industry is constantly being
challenged by critical compliance risks i.e. to comply
with rigorous regulatory & legal requirements and
compliance is evolving from an isolated departmental
initiative to an enterprise level risk management
challenge. This could render Aurobindo’s technology

and products non-competitive or restrict the
Company’s ability to introduce new products thereby
adversely impacting business.

Aurobindo has a talent pool of over 1,400 scientists,
who have adequate experience in handling complex
chemistry and filing applications with the regulatory
authorities. The strong scientist pool have helped
Aurobindo receive a total of 314 ANDA approvals
(276 final approvals including 16 for Aurolife Pharma
LLC, and 38 tentative approvals including 10 under
PEPFAR) from US FDA as at March 31, 2017.
Cumulative filings total 429 ANDAs.

Similarly, as on March 31, 2017, the team has filed
over 384 DMFs including 220 with US FDA. So far,
531 patent applications are pending with various
authorities and 99 have been granted patents.

Aurobindo is committed to supplying highest quality
medicines to customers for promoting healthier
lives. Hence, the Company strives to conform to
regulatory and compliance standards to meet
stringent requirements of customers to ensure the
medicines provide health care for the consumers.
Robust quality systems & control measures are
available to ensure that the quality is ensured by
process design.

Every effort is being made to ensure that there is
no compromise on quality of products and processes.
Continuous monitoring is being done by QC/QA team
to deliver highest quality products.

During the financial year 2016-17, the Company
has rolled over the 'Statutory & Legal compliance
system/tool' (compliance solution — Vision 360) for
ensuring compliance with all applicable laws of the
Company. The compliance system is being used by
the concerned compliance owners and is getting
stabilized across all functions & departments. The
system is designed to meet the compliance
monitoring goal of the company. Periodic updates
to system are made as and when there is a change
in any applicable laws.

Aurobindo’s commitment to Employee Health and
Safety: The Company’s Board and executive
management have a strong commitment towards
creating and providing a safe working environment
for all its employees and other stakeholders.
Aurobindo has a full-fledged EHS (Environmental,
Health, and Safety) team which is continuously
addressing the issues of environmental safeguards
by conducting periodical safety audits and training
programs.



Pricing risks

Some of Aurobindo’s products are subject to price
controls or other pressures on pricing. The price
controls limit the financial benefits of growth in the
life sciences market and the introduction of new
products.

Due to perfect competition in generic drug industry,
prices are a function of supply and demand. Prices
change in response to supplies and competitive
pressures. Domestic pricing is also influenced by
global trends in both availability and price of
imported active ingredients.

Aurobindo is able to cope with pricing pressures
and focus on quality assurance to minimize the
possibilities of commoditization. Also, the Company
has a well-diversified product basket in US which
helps in mitigating the pricing pressure. The in-
house R&D is striving to develop cost effective
products by redefining the production process/
facility. Also, the company focuses on quality
assurance through improved throughput and is
moving up the value chain by offering differentiated
and special products and technology platforms.

Patent protection risks

Aurobindo’s success depends on the Company’s ability
to obtain patents, protect trade secrets and other
proprietary information and operate without
infringing on the intellectual property rights of other
Pharma companies. Aurobindo’s inability to obtain
timely ANDA approval, thus missing out on early
launch opportunities and litigation outcomes could
affect product launch date.

Aurobindo has a dedicated team of scientists whose
primary task is to ensure that the products are
manufactured using only non-infringing processes
and related compliances by reviewing and
monitoring IPR issues continuously.

Also, the IPR team evaluates and provides stage-
wise IP clearances during product/process
developmental activities and also provides frequent
updates and alerts on relevant IP (patent, trademark
etc.) to R&D scientists for the products and suggests
remedial measures to deal with IP related issues.
The IP team is also involved in product selection
activity to ensure that right products are selected
for development and no potential opportunity is
missed out.

As of March 31, 2017 the Company has 531 patent
applications pending with various authorities.
Aurobindo takes adequate care to respect trade
secrets, know-how and other proprietary information

and ensure that the employees, vendors and
suppliers sign confidentiality agreements.

Market risks

Aurobindo is significantly dependent on US market
for its business. Failure to develop profitable
operations in that market could adversely affect the
Company’s business, operations and financial
condition. This scenario poses the risk of
concentration and dependence on one market.

In order to reduce the concentration risk, the
Company has been spreading its business
(Formulations and API) into European, Japanese and
emerging markets. Aurobindo with its effective
marketing strategy is also increasing sales volumes
for both the businesses in existing markets and is
making regular efforts to widen geographical spread
by entering into large potential markets in Latin
America and emerging markets. The Company has
the right balance between high margin-low volume
products and low margin-high volume products. The
product base has been streamlined to have a right
balance between various product groups.

As part of product portfolio growth strategy, the
Company has made an entry into US market for the
sale of quality nutritional supplements which
enhance revenues and improve margins.

The Company has been continuously expanding end-
to-end manufacturing capacities and the capacity
utilization is being ramped up to its potential and
also regular monitoring of on-going capital projects
for their timely completion. This is to ensure the
availability of capacities. Production planning team
at Aurobindo monitors and utilizes production
capacities at optimum levels with the support of
an effective marketing strategy along with proper
coordination and discussion with production heads
and SCM head.

Financial risks

Failure to maintain appropriate credit ratings
(Downward movement in rating) could affect the
Company’s cost of borrowings thereby having adverse
impact on profitability. While the company’s exports
are significantly high, financial obligations towards
import payments and ECB payments are also high
and due to any adverse foreign currency fluctuations
could have impact on financial position.

The Company has good and standard history of
servicing various borrowings. The company has a
dedicated treasury team to review regularly the
customer collections and import payments and
necessary actions are taken wherever necessary.

Also, the treasury team continuously monitor day-
to-day fund requirements and manages the banking
relations effectively.

Aurobindo is predominately an export oriented
company. Over 88% of the Company’s revenue is
from international markets. At the same time, the
Company is having sizable imports/working capital
in foreign currency and long-term ECB to fund the
export oriented projects. As such, the Company’s
growing exports and its collections provide the
natural hedge to the imports and working capital
in the foreign exchange fluctuations.

The Company is conscious of impact on earnings in
the event of currency fluctuations. The forex position
is reviewed on a monthly basis by the borrowing
committee and quarterly by the Board of Directors/
Audit Committee. Based on the decision of the
borrowing committee, the treasury team would
ensure the execution of transactions through forward
cover.

People risks

Aurobindo’s success depends largely upon an effective
HR strategy that includes recruitment, learning &
development, succession planning and retention of
competent personnel. The HR strategy is aligned to
business plan and growth of the Company. It is a
challenge for Aurobindo in maintaining good
industrial & employee relations. Labour unrest could
impact the Company’s operations. The industry is
human capital intensive with a high rate of attrition
and this could have an impact on the Company’s
operations.

The HR team at Aurobindo has identified and
developed people with potential to fill key business
leadership positions. In addition, the Company is
also recruiting and building a team of achievers
with proper leadership training. Aurobindo has been
fine tuning its HR strategy in order to meet business
goals and future growth. Second-in-command in
each key function and decentralized management
style has developed a much stronger organization
culture.

There is a proactive approach to HR management,
and at Aurobindo,
responsibility with authority. Emphasis is on
accountability with clear job descriptions and the
employees are encouraged to raise the bar and
perform to their potential. The professional approach
in day-to-day management has enabled employees
to stay motivated. Regular interactions and
communications help the personnel update and

employees are given
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upgrade their knowledge and skills and help
minimize the operational risks.

The Company’s newly implemented on-line employee
appraisal system makes the appraisal process more
robust and to measure work performance vis-a-vis
KRAs defined for the employees. HR team strives to
ensure that annual performance assessments are
conducted effectively with necessary feedback and
counselling.

The employee attrition in the Company is lower than
the industry average. Industrial relations (IR) team
is making continuous efforts to maintain a cordial
relationship with employees with a view to achieve
best performance.

Raw-material import risks

Aurobindo’s dependency on China market for import
of raw-material is very high and this may lead to risk
of import disruptions, short supplies and production
bottlenecks due to unforeseen changes in government
regulations & economic policies of China.

While the Company’s dependence is substantial on
China for raw material, continuous efforts are being
made to create newer second sources of supplies
and to develop alternative vendors. Regular tracking
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is done by the procurement in coordination with
‘Production planning & Inventory Control (PPIC)’
teams on the market trends & dynamics for keeping
optimum levels of inventories to meet the
production requirement.

Information technology (IT) risks

Achievement of business objectives for Aurobindo
depends on the existence of a robust IT strategy that
includes adequate IT infrastructure, data storage &
processing capabilities, data confidentiality, integrity
and availability at all times. Occurrence of any
unforeseen threats to IT systems could have adverse
impact on data processing, data availability and
continuity of operations.

Aurobindo’s business presence is spread across the
globe with manufacturing facilities and selling and
distribution network. Business transactions are
supported by ERP systems with strong security &
password controls, regular data back-up & recovery,
job scheduling and strong change management
controls.

The Company has robust IT controls related to back-
up, storage and system access including role based
access control for the applications and there is a
defined workflow for the process. These are well

documented in SOPs and reviewed periodically for
its effectiveness. For all mission critical IT
applications and services, the Company has built
highly available and secure infrastructure. For
business continuity, the Companyhas a disaster
recovery site which hosts ERP applications.

Aurobindo has an experienced IT operations team
which ensures day-to-day smooth functioning of IT
infrastructure and applications including network
infrastructure, server and device management,
computer operations, and help desk services for the
Company. All incidents are tracked through ticketing
tool and there is a well-defined process for its
closure in a timely manner.

The IT Governance Committee of the company
periodically reviews the IT related matters relating
to policies & practices, budgets proposals for
procurement of new applications and hardware,
renewal of licenses, process automation to support
the business functions etc. and advises Board for
its consideration.

The IT team at Aurobindo conducts periodic review
and evaluation of IT process and in case of any
process gaps and concerns, appropriate corrective
measures are taken in a time bound manner.



Business Responsibility Report

OVERVIEW

Aurobindo Pharma Limited is one of the largest generic pharmaceutical companies in the world with presence in over 150 countries, with 23 manufacturing
facilities, employee base of more than 16,000 (including all subsidiaries) and a diversified product basket. While the Company has presence across the world, the
key markets for Aurobindo are the US and Europe.

The Company believes in doing business in a responsible manner. The Business Responsibility Report is aligned to the National Voluntary Guidelines (NVGs) on
social, environmental and economic responsibilities of business released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and is in compliance with Regulation 34(2)(f) of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All the facts and figures reported in the Business
Responsibility Report pertain to the parent company i.e. Aurobindo Pharma Limited.

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1.  Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company L24239TG1986PLC015190
2. Name of the Company Aurobindo Pharma Limited
3. Company Address Registered Office: Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet, Hyderabad 500 038, Telangana, India

Corporate Office: Water Mark Building, Plot No. 11, Survey No.9, Kondapur, Hitech City,
Hyderabad - 500 084, Telangana, India

4.  Website www.aurobindo.com

5. E-mail ID info@aurobindo.com

6.  Financial year reported April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017

7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in S.No. | NIC code of product/service | Description
(industrial activity code-wise) 1. 21001/21002 Manufacturing generic pharmaceuticals and

active pharmaceutical ingredients

8.  List three key products/services that the Company The Company develops and manufactures an extensive range of pharmaceutical products

manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet) across seven major therapeutic segments encompassing antibiotics, anti-retrovirals,

cardiovascular, central nervous system, gastroenterological, anti-allergies and anti-diabetics.
The Company has a diversified product basket developed by the in-house R&D team.

9.  Total number of locations where business activity is The Company along with its subsidiaries has marketing and sales offices in 30 countries
undertaken by the Company and markets its products globally in over 150 countries.

a. Number of international locations

The subsidiaries of the company have manufacturing facilities in New Jersey & Los
Angeles, California in U.S.A. and in Brazil, and 2 R&D centers in U.S.A. Apart from
these, the Company has offices in various European, African and Asian countries.

b. Number of national locations

The parent company has 14 manufacturing units and 2 R&D centers. In addition to
these, there are 4 manufacturing units under construction. The subsidiaries & joint
ventures of the parent company have 5 manufacturing units and one is under
construction.

10. Markets served by the Company - Local/state/ Apart from the domestic market, the Company also markets its products globally in over
national/international 150 countries across 6 continents. More than 82% of the Company sales are generated from
the international markets.
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SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

1. Paid up capital

%585.9 million

2. Total turnover

Gross turnover of ¥97,812 million on standalone basis

3. Total profit after taxes

%17,068 million on standalone basis

4. Total spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
as percentage of profit after tax (%):

CSR Spent during the financial year 2016-17 was ¥194 million
(1.1% of standalone profit after tax)

5.  List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above
has been incurred

Education

Health

Sanitation

Road and public safety

Rural sports promotion, environmental sustainability,
old age homes, rural development and animal welfare

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

1.  Does the Company have any subsidiary company/
companies?

Yes. Aurobindo has 51 subsidiary companies located in India and other countries
as on March 31, 2017.

2. Do the subsidiary company/companies participate
in the BR initiatives of the parent company? If yes,
then indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s)

The parent company undertakes majority of the BR initiatives.

3. Do any other entity/entities (e.q. suppliers, distributors etc.)
that the Company does business with, participate in the
BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the
percentage of such entity/entities?

Entities like suppliers, distributors do not participate in the Company

BR initiative in the reporting period.

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

1.  Details of Director responsible for BR

a.

b.

Details of the Director responsible for implementation of the BR policies

Particulars Details

Name Mr. N. Govindarajan
Designation Managing Director

DIN Number 00050482

Telephone number +91 40 6672 5246

E-mail ID secretarial@aurobindo.com

Details of the BR head: Same as above
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2. Principles of BR policies as per National Voluntary Guidelines:
Details of compliance
% (%] & g @
S. Questions Ethics = g _§§ % % z = b, = g g
@ T = e 3 3
o (=)
P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
1. | Do you have policies for Y The Y Y Y Y Y The Company
2. | Has the policy being formulated in Company in its
consultation with the relevant Y continuously Y Y Y Y Y operations
stakeholders? focuses on ensures
the optimal customer
3. | Does the policy conform to any utilization value.
national/ international Y of resources Y Y Y Y* Y
standards? from its
4. | Has the policy being approved by the product
Board? design to
Is yes, has it been signed by MD/ Y disposal. Y Y Y Y Y
owner/CEO/appropriate Board
Director?
5. | Does the Company have a specified NA
committee of the Board/Director/
official to oversee the Y Y Y Y Y Y
implementation of the policy?
6. | Indicate the link for the policy to be Employees self service in
viewed on-line? - IHRMS - -
7. | Has the policy been formally
communicated to all relevant internal Y Y Y Y Y Y
and external stakeholders?
8. | Does the Company have in-house v v v v v v
structure to implement the policies?
9. | Does the Company have a grievance
redressal mechanism related to the Systems
policies to address stakeholders' Y in place Y Y Y
grievances related to the policies?
10. | Has the Company carried out The CSR
independent audit/evaluation of the Y Y Y Y Y assessment
working of this policy by an internal is done
or external agency? internally.
The company abides by the law of land and the policies are framed considering the national standards.
*Policy is in line with 1SO 14001 international standards.
**The policies are available at the following link:
http://www.aurobindo.com/about-us/corporate-governance
3. Governance related to BR a. Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO assess
the BR performance of the Company.
Reviewed annually.
b. Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this

report? How frequently it is published?
This is Aurobindo's 2nd Business Responsibility Report and is part of the Annual Report 2016-17.

Previous year Business Responsibility Report can be accessed from the following hyperlink (which
is part of Annual report 2015-16): http://www.aurobindo.com/docs/annual-reports/aurobindo-
AR-2016-final.pdf
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SECTION E
PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE
Principle 1 - Ethics

1.

Does the policy relating to ethics,
bribery and corruption cover only the
Company? Does it extend to the group/
joint ventures/ suppliers/contractors/
NGOs/others?

Aurobindo is committed to building a
strong ethical organization. The Company's
Code of Conduct affirms its commitment to
the highest standards of integrity and
ethics. The Code of Conduct guides all
supervisory, executive and managerial
employees of the Company including the
Board Members. The policy is communicated
to the employees across all the locations.
The policy documents are made available in
the internal portal for ready reference.

How many stakeholder complaints have
been received in the past financial year
and what percentage was satisfactorily
resolved by the management?

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the
Company has received and resolved 50
complaints from investors. All complaints
were resolved to the satisfaction of the
shareholders and there were no pending
complaints at the year end.

Principle 2 - Product Life Cycle Sustainability

1.
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List up to 3 of your products or services
whose design has incorporated social or
environmental concerns, risks and/or
opportunities.

Our following products help address social
or environmental concerns in their design

a Lamivudine Salicylate Monohydrate
b.  Ampicillin Trihydrate (Enzymatic route)
c.  Lopinavir intermediate

d.  Gabapentin

e. Metformin

For each such product, provide the
following details in respect of resource
use (energy, water, raw material etc.) per
unit of product.

Product wise details are mentioned as
follows:

Lamivudine is an anti retroviral medication
used to prevent and treat HIV/AIDS. It is
also used to treat chronic hepatitis B when
other options are not possible. It is
effective against both HIV-1 and HIV-2. In
an effort to save natural resources as a part
of business responsibility to protect
environment, the production stream has
been optimized to increase the productivity
20 to 30 TPM and quality consistently. This
has been achieved by improving the stage
yield and reducing the batch failure rates.
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The solvent consumption has also been
reduced by recovering and reusing all
solvents in the process. Mainly recovery of
L-Menthol has helped to reduce the usage
of fresh raw material to reach 30 TPM and
thereby, reduced the solvent and power
requirements.

Ampicillin Trihydrate (Enzymatic Route):
Ampicillin is in the penicillin group of
beta-lactam antibiotics and is part of the
amino penicillin family. It is roughly
equivalent to amoxicillin in terms of
activity. Ampicillin is able to penetrate
Gram-positive and some Gram-negative
bacteria. It differs from penicillin G, or
benzyl penicillin only by the presence of an
amino group. Ampicillin is used to treat or
prevent many different types of infections
such as bladder infections, pneumonia,
gonorrhea, meningitis, or infections of the
stomach or intestines. Ampicillin acts as an
irreversible inhibitor of the enzyme trans
peptidase, which is needed by bacteria to
make the cell. Ampicillin is usually
bacteriolytic that fights bacteria. Power
and fuel cost reduction was achieved by
improving the scale of operations. By
introducing the Ampicillin enzymatic route,
34% of raw material usage was reduced and
84% of solvent usage was reduced. It
reduces the consumption of all resources
including power, utilities.

Lopinavir intermediate: Lopinavir is an
antiretroviral of the protease inhibitor
class, a co-formulation with a sub-
therapeutic dose of ritonavir, as a
component of combination therapy to treat
HIV/AIDS. Increased the yield up to 25%
by making process improvements and

recycling completely to minimize the waste.

Gabapentin: Gabapentin is used in the
treatment of postherepetic neuralgia,
epilepsy. This drug product is having the
WHO GMP certificate. Significant
improvements have been done in
manufacturing this API, by reducing the
usage of water by 93%, by reducing
aqueous effluents by 94%. This was
achieved by developing a new
manufacturing technology.

Metformin is the most used anti-
hyperglycemic agent for the treatment of
Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus. Metformin
intoxication can be due to massive
ingestion or to a progressive accumulation
due to renal failure. The drug is having the
WHO GMP certificate. Improving the output
to reduce the power and fuel cost was
achieved by enhancing the scale of
operations and batch size in the process.
The process does not have any
environmental effects, since water is not
being used & almost 94% of recovery is
being reduced in solvent waste.

Does the Company have procedures in
place for sustainable sourcing (including
transportation)?

The Company has laid down a standard
operating procedure for the selection of its
vendors and approving the same for
sourcing of material. There is a system in
place for evaluating the EHS resources and
compliance of key suppliers and vendors for
key raw material intermediates and API
sourcing.

Has the Company taken any steps to
procure goods and services from local &
small producers, including communities
surrounding their place of work?

The Company follows a strict sourcing code
of conduct with respect to the compliance
and quality. The Company procures goods
and services from local vendors in the
vicinity of the manufacturing locations who
fulfill the above key criteria of compliance
and quality.

Does the Company have a mechanism to
recycle products and waste? If yes what
is the percentage of recycling of products
and waste. Also, provide details thereof.

Yes, the Company has a mechanism to
recycle or dispose materials including waste
in a responsible manner.

0 The Company has decided to
eliminate synthetic process to
enzymatic route by making them
100% solvent free. Example:
Amoxicillin Trihydrate, Ampicillin
Trihydrate, Cephalexin monohydrate
and Cefadroxil Monohydrate.

0 Treated sewage wastewater for
landscape and elimination of waste
generation in the process.

0 All organic wastes generated from
process operations are disposed off to
cement manufacturing industries for
use as auxiliary fuel called 'co-
processing' of wastes.

0 Around 36% raw material usage was
reduced, which decreased load on
environment >10%.

O Solvent vapour exposure to
environment was significantly
reduced by replacing centrifuges with
closed filtration operations (ANFDs).

0 Around 88% solvent usage was
reduced and which reduced the
fugitive emissions significantly >10%.

0 In cephalexin, process emission (CO2)
was completely eliminated by the
changeover to enzymatic route.

0 To reduce the solvents venting out to
the atmosphere, the Company has
implemented nitrogen blanketing
system in 87 centrifuges and Vent
Gas Cooling System (VGCS) on
vacuum pump vents.



Principle 3 - Employee well being

1.

Please indicate the total number of employees.

Company has 13,982 employees as on March 31, 2017 in the parent company.

Please indicate the total number of employees hired on temporary/contractual/casual basis.
Company has over 8,300 contractual employees as on March 31, 2017.

Please indicate the number of permanent women employees.

Company has 530 women employees as on March 31, 2017.

Please indicate the number of permanent employees with disabilities.

No data available.

Do you have an employee association that is recognized by management?

Yes.

What percentage of your permanent employees is members of this recognized employee
association?

As the majority of the office bearers/active members of the association has left the organization,
no activity has been observed during last financial year. Harmonious industrial relations were
maintained across all the manufacturing locations.

Please indicate the number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary
labour, sexual harassment in the last financial year and pending, as on the end of the
financial year.

S.No. | Category

No of complaints filed
during the financial year

No of complaints pending as
on end of the financial year

Child labour/forced labour/
involuntary labour

Nil. The Company does not hire Nil
child labour, forced labour,
involuntary labor

Sexual harassment Nil Nil

Discriminatory employment Nil Nil

8.

What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety & skill up-gradation
training in the last year?

O Permanent employees: Employee training is a continuous process in the organization and all
the employees are given mandatory safety training at the time of joining the organization.
Further there is continuous skill based trainings imparted to over 90%our employees.

O Permanent women employees: No separate data record is maintained.

0 Casual/temporary/contractual employees: All our contractual employees are imparted with
trainings

0 Employees with disabilities: NA

Principle 4 - Stakeholders engagement

1.

Has the Company mapped its internal and external stakeholders?
Yes.

Out of the above, has the Company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized
stakeholders?

Yes.

Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company to engage with the disadvantaged,
vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders. If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words
or so.

The Company believes in greater engagement with its stakeholders and being sensitive towards
their needs and expectations. This is one of the corporate values that focuses on being
responsive, listening to stakeholders, being proactive and transparent.

The Company has a whistle blower policy that provides support to employees, channel partners
and vendors to report significant deviations from key management policies and report any non-
compliance and wrong practices. The Company also has an investor grievance cell where the
investors can raise their concerns and are resolved appropriately.

Principle 5 - Human Rights

1.

Does the policy of the Company on
human rights cover only the Company or
extend to the group/joint ventures/
suppliers/contractors/NGOs/others?

The policy covers the employees of the
organization.

How many stakeholder complaints have
been received in the past financial year
and what per cent was satisfactorily
resolved by the management?

None received.

Principle 6 - Environment

1.

Does the policy related to Principle 6
cover only the Company or extends to the
group/joint ventures/suppliers/
contractors/NGOs/others.

The Company has a well-defined
environment, health and safety (EHS)
policy that caters to the employees, group,
JVs and the contractors working at the
sites. The Company is committed to operate
all its units in an environmentally friendly
manner while protecting health and safety
of its employees.

Does the Company have strategies/
initiatives to address global
environmental issues such as climate
change, global warming, etc?

The Company has initiated participation
and membership in Pharmaceutical Supply
Chain Initiative (PSCI) and International
Federation of Pharmaceutical Manufacturers
& Associations (IFPMA). These international
fora are engaged in addressing global
environmental concerns such as
pharmaceuticals in environment, anti-
microbial resistance, etc. Aurobindo is part
of BDMA initiatives to address on similar
issues.

Does the Company identify and assess
potential environmental risks?

Yes.

Does the Company have any project
related to Clean Development
Mechanism?

At present, the Company does not have any
project related to Clean Development
Mechanism.

Has the Company undertaken any other
initiatives on - clean technology, energy
efficiency, renewable energy, etc?

Yes, the Company has undertaken several
initiatives in terms of energy efficiency and
cleaner technologies. In continuation of
earlier initiatives on energy efficiency and
cleaner technologies, the Company has
installed two stage RO systems that
facilitate reduction in wastewater volumes
requiring physical treatment like MEE,
which resulted in reduction in steam
consumption.
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In cleaner technologies, the Company is
continuing with established practices of
segregation, storage and disposal
appropriately to secure land fill facilities or
cement units. The organic wastes, liquid
and solid, are disposed off to cement units
for co-processing where the wastes serve as
auxiliary fuel for the cement units.

Are the emissions/waste generated by
the Company within the permissible
limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the
financial year being reported?

Yes.

Number of show cause/legal notices
received from CPCB/SPCB which are
pending (i.e. not resolved to
satisfaction) as at end of the financial
year.

No pending notices as on March 31, 2017.

Principle 7 - Policy advocacy

1.
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Is your Company a member of any trade
and chamber or association? If yes, name
only those major ones that your business
deals with.

The Company is associated with various
trade organizations, chambers, etc as
follows:

The Company is a member of various trade
bodies and chamber associations in India
such as,

1.  Export promotion council for EOUs & SEZs

2. Indian Drug Manufacturers
Association

3. Indian Chamber of Commerce &
Industry

4. The Federation TG and AP Chambers
of Commerce & Industry (FAPCCI)

Confederation of Indian Industry
Andhra Chamber of Commerce
Bulk Drug Manufacturers Association

® N o g

Pharmaceuticals Export Promotion
Council of India

9. Indo American Chamber of Commerce

10. JNPC Manufactures Association

11. Telangana Chambers of Commerce and
Industry

Have you advocated/lobbied through
above associations for the advancement
or improvement of public good?

The Company focuses on the advancement/
improvement of public good through its
well defined CSR activities.
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Principle 8 - Community Development (CSR)

1.

Does the company have specified
programs/initiatives/projects in pursuit
of the policy related to Principle 8?7

Aurobindo is committed to continuously
improving its social responsibilities,
environment and economic practices to
make positive impact on the society. The
Company focuses on some of the key
priorities of the communities such as:

0 Education
O Health

] Sanitation

O Road and public safety

O Rural sports promotion,
environmental sustainability, old age

homes, rural development and animal
welfare

The Company also provides infrastructure
support to the above mentioned areas.

Are the programs/projects undertaken
through in-house team/own foundation/
external NGO/government structures/any
other organization?

Aurobindo has a fully functional CSR team
for the implementation and monitoring of
various CSR projects. Any use of the
external agencies viz NGOs, government
offices etc are project based. Further, the
Company has established a Foundation viz.
Aurobindo Pharma Foundation for
undertaking primarily CSR activities.
Accordingly, the Company has started CSR
activities under the said Foundation.

Have you done any impact assessment of
your initiatives?

We review our projects time to time. Each
project has specific deliverables to be met.
The internal teams ensure the
implementation of the projects undertaken.

What is your Company's direct
contribution to community development
projects?

Aurobindo has spent ¥194 million on CSR
activities during the financial year
2016-17. The amount was spent on areas as
referred in point 1.

Have you taken steps to ensure that this
community development initiative is
successfully adopted by the community?

The community development program
revolves around education, health,
sanitation etc. Overall, these programs have

benefitted more than 60,000 students and
1.2 lakh families during the year.

Education: The Company has built a
government degree college at Patancheru;
provided classroom infrastructure for more
than 200 schools. The Company has also set
up various libraries for the students,
provided skill development and employment
enhancing skills in rural areas.

Health: The Company has provided medical
equipment & other infrastructure in some of
the trust based hospitals. Aurobindo
Geriatric Eye Care Centre (AGE) at L. V.
Prasad Eye Institute, provides eye care
treatment covering all districts of northern
Andhra Pradesh and neighboring Odisha
State.

Sanitation: The Company has installed
several RO water purifiers and also setup
overhead water tanks across the villages.

Rural sports promotion: In order to
promote rural sports, training is provided to
rural sports men and women in games such
as chess, badminton and power lifting etc.

Further details on the CSR projects undertaken
during 2016-17 are mentioned in a separate
section of the annual report.

Principle 9 - Customer value

1.  What percentage of customer
complaints/consumer cases are pending
as on the end of financial year?

Aurobindo has a well-defined mechanism to
handle customer complaints. As on March
31, 2017 less than 1% of the complaints
were pending beyond the acceptable
timelines as per the Standard Operating
Procedures (SOP).

2. Does the Company display product
information on the product label, over
and above what is mandated as per local
laws?

The product labeling is to be approved by
the regulatory authorities of the country
where the product is to be sold. The
Company mentions all the product
information required by the regulatory
agencies.

3. Is there any case filed by any
stakeholder against the Company
regarding unfair trade practices,
irresponsible advertising and/or anti-
competitive behavior during the last five
years and are pending as at the end of
financial year.

There is no pending case as on March 31,
2017.
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Part 'B": Associates and joint ventures
(Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to associate companies and joint ventures)

T Million

Sl Name of joint venture
No.

Novagen Pharma
(Pty) Limited

Eugia Pharma

Specialities Limited

Tergene Biotech
Private Limited

1. Latest audited balance sheet date

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2017

2. | Shares of joint venture held by the Company at the year end

Number 927,237 198,901,611 3,390,000
Amount of investment in joint venture 80.03 1,989.02 33.90
Extent of holding 50% 67.82% 60%

Hyderabad, June 20, 2017

Managing Director

DIN: 00050482

B

Santhanam Subramanian
Chief Financial Officer

3. | Description of how there is significant influence Joint venture Joint venture Joint venture
4. | Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
5. | Networth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited balance sheet 329.03 1,972.38 (32.09)
6. Profit for the year 100.18 (12.08) (48.25)
Considered in consolidation 50.09 (8.19) (28.95)
Not considered in consolidation 50.09 (3.89) (19.30)
For and on behalf of the Board
o Ikl
N. Govindarajan Dr. M. Sivakumaran

Director
DIN: 01284320

. o -

B. Adi Reddy
Company Secretary

Particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties

Annexure-2
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
(Referred to in sub-section(1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto)

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:

All contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are at

arms length basis.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name of the Nature of Nature of Duration Salient terms % Million
related party relationship contracts/ of the of the contracts
arrangements/ contracts/ or arrangements
transactions arrangements/ or transactions
transactions including the
value, if any
Aurobindo Pharma Wholly Sale of goods On going Based on transfer 20,628.9
USA Inc., U.S.A. owned & services pricing guidelines
subsidiary

Appropriate approvals have been taken for related party transactions. No amount was paid as advance.

Hyderabad, June 20, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board

B e

K. Ragunathan
Chairman
DIN: 00523576
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Annexure-3
Form No. MGT-9

Extract of Annual Return
For the financial year ended on March 31, 2017
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

iv.

V.

Vi.

Vii.

CIN

Registration date

Name of the Company
Category/sub-category of the Company

Address of the Registered Office and contact details

Whether listed company

Name, address and contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Phone

Fax

Email

L24239TG1986PLC015190
December 26, 1986

Aurobindo Pharma Limited

Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet
Hyderabad - 500 038, Telangana
: +91 40 2373 6370
: +91 40 2374 3740
: info@aurobindo.com

Yes. Listed on BSE Limited and

Public company, limited by shares

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Unit: Aurobindo Pharma Limited

Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot No.31-32,
Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad - 500032

Phone

Fax

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

: +91 40 6716 2222
: +91 40 2300 1153
E-mail : einward.ris@karvy.com

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company:

SI.No. | Name and description of main products/services NIC code of the product/service % to total turnover of the Company

1. Manufacturing generic pharmaceuticals and active

pharmaceutical ingredients 21001/21002 100

1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Holding/ % of Applicable
S.No. Name and address of the company CIN/GLN subsidiary/ shares Section
associate held

1. APL Pharma Thai Limited

438, Soi Phattanakaran, 30 Phattanakaran,

Road Khweang Suanluang, Khet Suanluang, Bangkok - 10250 Thailand Foreign company Subsidiary 97.92 2(87)
2. All Pharma (Shanghai) Trading Company Limited,

Room 3304, No.8 Xingly Road, Shanghai, P.R. China Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
3. Aurobindo Pharma Industria Farmaceutica Ltda

VP-06-E Qd. 09 Mod 12 a 15, Daia Anapolis,

Rua 15 De Dezembro, 128, CEF 75132135, Goias State, Brazil Foreign company Subsidiary 99.97 2(87)
4. Aurobindo Pharma Produtos Farmaceuticos Ltda

2 Andar Sala 205, Centro, Anapolis, Goias State, Brazil Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
5. Aurobindo Pharma Japan K.K.

9th Floor, Youth Building, 1-3-8 Nihonbashi Bakuro-cho,

Cho-ku, 103-0002, Tokyo, Japan Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
6. Auro Healthcare (Nigeria) Limited

Plot No.4, Oyetubo Street, Off Obafemi,

Awolowo Way, lkeja, Logos, Nigeria Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
7. Auro Pharma Inc

3700 Steeles Avenue, W. Suite # 402, Woodbridge, ONL4L 8K8, Canada | Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
8. Aurobindo Pharma (Pty) Limited

53 Phillip Engelbrecht Avenue, Woodhill Office Park,

Building No. 1, Meyersdal Ext 12, 1448, Johannesburg, South Africa Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

(Contd.)
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PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES (Contd.)

Holding/ % of Applicable
S.No. Name and address of the company CIN/GLN subsidiary/ shares Section
associate held

9. Novagen Pharma Pty Limited

100, Sovereign Drive, Route 21, Corporate Park, Nellmapius Road,

Irene, Pretoria, South Africa Foreign company Joint venture 50 2(6)
10. Aurovida Farmaceutica SA DE CV

Calle 14 de Agosto #45 Colonia Lomas Manuel Avila Camacho Deleg.

Naucalpan de Juarez C.P. 53910, Eastado de Mexico Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
11. Aurobindo Pharma Colombia SAS

Calle 100W 17A-36, Oficina 1003, Bogota, Colombia Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
12. Aurogen South Africa (Pty) Limited

53 Phillip Engelbrecht Avenue, Woodhill Office Park, Building No.1,

Meyersdal Ext 12,1448, Johannesburg Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
13. Aurobindo Pharma USA Inc.

279 Princeton Hightstown Road, East Windsor, NJ 08520, U.S.A. Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
14. Aurolife Pharma LLC

2400 Route 130 North, Dayton, NJ 08810, U.S.A. Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
15. Auromedics Pharma LLC

279 Princeton Hightstown Road, East Windsor, NJ 08520, U.S.A. Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
16. | Auro Health LLC

2572 Brunswick Pike, Lawrenceville, NJ 08648, U.S.A. Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
17. Natrol LLC

21411 Prairie Street, Chatsworth, CA 91311, U.S.A. Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
18. Auro AR LLC

6 Wheeling Road, Dayton, NJ 08810, U.S.A. Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
19. Aurobindo Pharma USA LLC

279 Princeton Hightstown Road, East Windsor, NJ 08520, U.S.A. Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
20. Auro Vaccines LLC

279 Princeton Hightstown Road, East Windsor, NJ 08520, U.S.A. Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
21. | Helix Healthcare B.V.

Prins Bernhardplein 200, 1097 JB Amsterdam, Post Bag No. 990,

1000 AZ, The Netherlands Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
22. Agile Pharma B.V.

Prins Bernhardplein 200, 1097 JB Amsterdam, Post Bag No. 990,

1000 AZ, The Netherlands Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
23. Laboratorios Aurobindo S.L.U.

Avda. De Burgos, 16D, 5 deg Planta - Edificio Euromor,

28036, Madrid, Spain Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
24. Pharmacin B.V.

Molenvliet 103, 3335 LH Zwinindrecht, The Netherlands Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
25. Milpharm Limited

Ares Block, Odyssey Business Park, South Ruislip,

Middlesex, London, U.K. Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
26. Aurobindo Pharma (Malta) Limited

Vault-14, Level-2, Valletta Waterfront, Floriana, Malta Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
27. APL Swift Services (Malta) Limited

Vault-14, Level-2, Valletta Waterfront, Floriana, Malta Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
28. | Aurobindo Pharma GmbH, Germany

Willy-Brandt-Allee 2, 81829 Munchen, Germany Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
29. Aurobindo Pharma B.V.

Baarnschedijk 1, 3741 LN Bsaaarn, The Netherlands Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
30. Aurobindo Pharma (Romania) s.r.l.

Bucuresti Sectorul 1, Soseaua, Bucuresti - Ploiesti,

Nr 42-44, Complex, Baneasa Business & Technology Park,

Cladirea B, Aripa B2, Etaj 2, Romania Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
31. Aurobindo Pharma (Portugal) Unipessoal Limitada

Av. do Forte, 3, Parque Suecia, Ed. 1V, 2°, 2794-038 Carnaxide, Portugal Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

(Contd.)
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PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES (Contd.)

Holding/ % of Applicable
S.No. Name and address of the company CIN/GLN subsidiary/ shares Section
associate held

32. Aurex B.V.

Baarnsche Dijk 1, 3741 LN Baarn, The Netherlands Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
33. Aurobindo Pharma (Italia) S.r.I.

Via San Giuseppe, 102, 20147 Saronno (Varese), Italy Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
34. Aurovitas, Unipessoal LDA

Do Forte, No 3, Parque Suecia, Edificio IV, 20 Carnaxide, Lisboa,

Concelho, Portugal Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
35. Arrow Generiques SAS

26 Avenue Tony Garnier, 69007 Lyon, France Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
36. 1980 Puren Pharma GmbH

Willy-Brandt-Allee 2; D-81829 Miinchen, Germany Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
37. Puren Pharma GmbH & Co. KG

Willy-Brandt-Allee 2; D-81829 Miinchen, Germany Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
38. Aurovitas Spain SA

Avda. De Burgos, 16D, 5 deg Planta - Edificio Euromor,

28036, Madrid, Spain Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
39. Aurovitas Pharma Polska Sp. z o.0.

ul. Sokratesa, nr 13D, lok. 27, miejsc. Warszawa,

01-909, kraj Polska Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
40. Aurobindo llac Sanayi Ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi

Egitim Mh. Poyraz Sk. Sadikoglu Plaza 5, No.27,

Kadikoy, Istanbul, Turkey Foreign company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
41. APL Research Centre Limited

Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500 038 U24116TG2006PLC051171 | Subsidiary 100 2(87)
42. APL Healthcare Limited

Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500038 U24239TG2006PLC052053 | Subsidiary 100 2(87)
43. Auronext Pharma Private Limited

Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500038 U74999TG2009PTC109591 | Subsidiary 100 2(87)
44. Auro Peptides Limited

Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500 038 U24232TG2012PLC078350 | Subsidiary 95 2(87)
45, Aurobindo Antibiotics Limited

Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500 038 U242327G2012PLC081892 | Subsidiary 100 2(87)
46. Curepro Parenterals Limited

Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500 038 U242327G2013PLC087101 | Subsidiary 100 2(87)
47. Eugia Pharma Specialities Limited

Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500 038 U24297TG2013PLC087048 | Subsidiary 67.82 2(87)
48. Hyacinths Pharma Private Limited

Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500 038 U242327G2010PTC069638 | Subsidiary 100 2(87)
49. Silicon Life Sciences Private Limited

Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500 038 U85100TG2008PTC057669 | Subsidiary 100 2(87)
50. AuroZymes Limited

Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500 038 U242327G2013PLC091383 | Subsidiary 100 2(87)
51. Tergene Biotech Private Limited

Plot No.2, Maitri Vihar, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500 038 U24230TG2008PTC113178 | Subsidiary 60 2(87)
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SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)
i. Categorywise share holding

No. of shares held at the beginning of the year No. of shares held at the end of the year
April 1, 2016 March 31, 2017
Category of shareholders Demat | Physical Total % of Demat| Physical Total % of Change
total total | during the
shares shares year (%)
Promoter and promoter group
Indian
a. Individual/HUF 279,366,856 —-| 279,366,856 47.74 | 72,164,968 —| 72,164,968 12.32 -35.42
b. Central government/state
government(s) - - - - - - - - -
c. Bodies corporate 17,384,716 - 17,384,716 2.97 | 213,760,966 —| 213,760,966 36.49 33.51
Financial Institutions/Banks - - - - - - - - -
Others - - - - - - - - -
Sub-Total A(1) 296,751,572 - | 296,751,572 50.71 | 285,925,934 —| 285,925,934 48.80 -1.91
Foreign
a. Individuals (NRIs/Foreign
individuals) 18,000,000 - 18,000,000 3.08 | 18,000,000 —-| 18,000,000 3.07 -
b. Bodies corporate - - - - - - - - -
c. Institutions - - - - - - - - -
d. Qualified Foreign Investor - - - - - - - - -
e. Others - - - - - - - - -
Sub-Total A(2) 18,000,000 - 18,000,000 3.08 | 18,000,000 —-| 18,000,000 3.07 0.00
Total A = A(1) + A(2) 314,751,572 —| 314,751,572 53.79 | 303,925,934 —| 303,925,934 51.87 -1.91
Public shareholding
Institutions
a. Mutual Funds/UTI 41,717,018 - 41,717,018 7.13 | 70,950,268 —-| 70,950,268 12.11 4.98
b. Financial Institutions/Banks 535,319 - 535,319 0.09 2,326,571 - 2,326,571 0.40 0.31
c. Central government/state
government(s) - - - - - - - - -
d. Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
e. Insurance companies 246,902 - 246,902 0.04 1,456,754 - 1,456,754 0.25 0.21
f. Foreign Institutional Investors | 160,362,472 —-| 160,362,472 27.40 | 122,986,244 —| 122,986,244 20.99 -6.41
g. Foreign Venture Capital
Investors - - - - - - - - -
h. Qualified Foreign Investor - - - - - - - - -
i. Others - - - - - - - - -
Sub-Total B(1) 202,861,711 - | 202,861,711 34.67 | 197,719,837 —| 197,719,837 33.75 -0.92
Non-institutions
a. Bodies corporate 11,314,520 | 100,970 11,415,490 1.95 | 18,959,315 98,910 19,058,225 3.25 1.30
b. Individuals
i. Individuals holding nominal
share capital up to %2 lakhs | 33,710,818 | 2,622,558 36,333,376 6.21 | 41,709,012 2,468,067 | 44,177,079 7.54 1.33
ii. Individuals holding nominal
share capital in excess of
32 lakhs 15,955,644 - 15,955,644 2.73 | 12,913,627 —-| 12,913,627 2.20 -0.52
c. Others
Clearing members 1,007,268 - 1,007,268 0.17 2,927,903 - 2,927,903 0.50 0.33
Non-Resident Indians 2,807,530 - 2,807,530 0.48 1,958,718 15,000 1,973,718 0.34 -0.14
NRI Non-repatriation - - - - 483,964 - 483,964 0.08 0.08
Trusts 36,995 - 36,995 0.01 2,702,122 - 2,702,122 0.46 0.45
d. Qualified Foreign Investor - - - - - - - - -
Sub-Total B(2) 64,832,775 | 2,723,528 67,556,303 11.54 | 81,654,661 2,581,977 | 84,236,638 14.38 2.83
Total B = B(1)+B(2) 267,694,486 | 2,723,528 | 270,418,014 46.21 | 279,374,498 2,581,977 | 281,956,475 48.13 1.91
Total (A+B) 582,446,058 | 2,723,528 | 585,169,586 | 100.00 | 583,300,432 (2,581,977 585,882,409 | 100.00 0.00
Shares held by custodians,
against which Depository
Receipts have been issued
1. Promoter and Promoter Group - - - - - - - - -
2. Public - - - - - - - - -
Grand Total (A+B+C) 582,446,058 | 2,723,528 | 585,169,586 | 100.00 | 583,300,432 2,581,977 | 585,882,409 | 100.00
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ii.  Shareholding of promoters

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
SI. | Shareholder's name No. of % of total % of shares No. of | % of total % of shares % change in
No. shares shares pledged/ shares shares pledged/ | share holding
of the encumbered of the encumbered during the
Company to total Company to total year
shares shares
1. Mr. P.V. Ramprasad Reddy 18,000,000 3.08 0.00 18,000,000 3.07 0.00 -0.01
2. Mrs. P. Suneela Rani* 205,036,760 35.04 0.62 - - - -35.04
3. Mrs. K. Kirthi Reddy 20,700,000 3.54 0.03 20,700,000 3.53 0.03 -0.01
4. Mr. K. Nithyananda Reddy 27,524,700 4.71 0.14 25,359,572 4.33 0.00 -0.38
5. Mrs. K. Rajeswari 1,775,500 0.30 0.03 1,975,500 0.34 0.03 0.04
6. Trident Chemphar Limited** 12,147,226 2.07 0.07 867,226 0.15 0.00 -1.93
7. Mrs. Kambam Spoorthi 7,600,000 1.30 0.42 7,600,000 1.30 0.42 0.00
8. Dr. M. Sivakumaran 14,691,360 2.51 0.00 14,491,360 2.47 0.00 -0.04
9. Mrs. P. Neha Reddy 130,000 0.02 0.00 1,30,000 0.02 0.00 0.00
10. | Axis Clinicals Limited 5,237,490 0.90 0.18 658,000 0.11 0.11 -0.79
11. | Mr. K. Prasad Reddy 301,156 0.05 0.05 3,01,156 0.05 0.05 0.00
12. | Mr. M. Sumanth Kumar Reddy 1,600,000 0.27 0.16 1,600,000 0.27 0.20 0.00
13. | Mr. K. Suryaprakash Reddy 7,380 0.00 0.00 7,380 0.00 0.00 0.00
14. | RPR Advisors Private Limited,
Mrs. P. Suneela Rani (Joint holding)* - - - 196,376,250 33.52 0.00 33.52
15. | Axis Clinicals Limited, Trident
Chemphar Limited, RPR Sons
Advisors Private Limited
(Joint holding)** - - - 15,859,490 2.71 0.00 2.71
Total 314,751,572 53.79 1.70 | 303,925,934 51.87 0.66 -1.92

* The entire shareholding of Mrs. P. Suneela Rani was transferred as capital contribution to RPR Enterprises, a partnership firm and holding shares jointly in the name
of its partners viz., RPR Sons Advisors Private Limited (as a trustee of Penaka Family Trust, which is the other partner in RPR Enterprises) and Mrs. P. Suneela Rani.

** 0n March 31, 2017 entire shareholding of Trident Chemphar Limited in the Company was transferred as capital contribution to Auryn Labs, a Partnership firm and
holding shares jointly in the name of its partners viz., Axis Clinicals Limited, Trident Chemphar Limited and RPR Sons Advisors Private Limited. However, the
transfer was not effected in the system of the depository as on March 31, 2017.

iii.  Change in promoters' shareholding

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative shareholding

of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company of the Company

At the beginning of the year 314,751,572 53.79 314,751,572 53.79
Date wise increase/decrease in promoters
shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/decrease
Sold on October 7, 2016 10,825,638 1.84 303,925,934 51.95
At the end of the year* 303,925,934 51.87

* Percentage change is also due to issue and allotment of shares under ESOP to the employees of the Company and consequent increase in the total share

capital of the Company.

Notes: 1. 200,000 equity shares of %1 each were transferred by Dr. M. Sivakumaran, a promoter director to Mrs. K. Rajeswari, a promoter on March 3, 2017 through
open market transaction. This was an inter se transfer between the promoters.

70

2. 196,376,250 equity shares of ¥1 each were transferred by Mrs. P. Suneela Rani, a promoter, to RPR Sons Advisors Private Limited, a promoter, in its
capacity as a trustee of the Penaka Family Trust which is a partner of RPR Enterprises, on January 19, 2017. This 33.56% holding were an inter se transfer

between the promoters.

3. Axis Clinicals Limited and Trident Chemphar Limited, promoters, transferred 4,579,490 equity shares of ¥1 each and 12,147,226 equity shares of ¥1 each
respectively to Auryn Labs, a partnership firm registered under the Indian Partnership Act, 1932 and represented by Axis Clinicals Limited, Trident
Chemphar Limited and RPR Enterprises represented through RPR Sons Advisors Private Limited, on March 31, 2017. This 2.86% was an inter se transfer

between the promoters.
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iv.  Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than directors, promoters and holders of GDRs and ADRS)
Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding
Sl Name of the shareholder of the year during the year
No. No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company of the Company

1. HDFC Trustee Company Limited-HDFC Equity Fund
At the beginning of the year 23,183,860 3.96 23,183,860 3.96
Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year
April 8, 2016 20,680 0.00 23,204,540 3.97
April 8, 2016 -109,200 -0.02 23,095,340 3.95
April 15, 2016 -75,000 -0.01 23,020,340 3.93
April 22, 2016 -170,000 -0.03 22,850,340 3.90
April 29, 2016 465 0.00 22,850,805 3.90
April 29, 2016 759,255 -0.13 22,091,550 3.78
May 6, 2016 94 0.00 22,091,644 3.78
May 6, 2016 -100,000 -0.02 21,991,644 3.76
May 13, 2016 28,771 0.00 22,020,415 3.76
May 20, 2016 410,970 0.07 22,431,385 3.83
May 27, 2016 7,000 0.00 22,438,385 3.83
May 27, 2016 -73 0.00 22,438,312 3.83
June 3, 2016 100,029 0.02 22,538,341 3.85
June 3, 2016 -4,900 0.00 22,533,441 3.85
June 10, 2016 -50,000 -0.01 22,483,441 3.84
June 17, 2016 31,583 0.01 22,515,024 3.85
June 24, 2016 108,490 0.02 22,623,514 3.87
June 30, 2016 55,386 0.01 22,678,900 3.88
June 30, 2016 -50,000 -0.01 22,628,900 3.87
July 8, 2016 85 0.00 22,628,985 3.87
July 8, 2016 -50,000 -0.01 22,578,985 3.86
July 15, 2016 267,029 0.05 22,846,014 3.90
July 15, 2016 -100,030 -0.02 22,745,984 3.89
July 22, 2016 5,600 0.00 22,751,584 3.89
July 22, 2016 -565,009 -0.10 22,186,575 3.79
July 29, 2016 140,000 0.02 22,326,575 3.82
July 29, 2016 -978,744 -0.17 21,347,831 3.65
August 5, 2016 42,059 0.01 21,389,890 3.66
August 5, 2016 -538,000 -0.09 20,851,890 3.56
August 12, 2016 287 0.00 20,852,177 3.56
August 12, 2016 -364,000 -0.06 20,488,177 3.50
September 2, 2016 595,422 0.10 21,083,599 3.60
September 9, 2016 -1,979 0.00 21,081,620 3.60
September 16, 2016 1,329 0.00 21,082,949 3.60
September 16, 2016 -17 0.00 21,082,932 3.60
September 23, 2016 4,153 0.00 21,087,085 3.60
September 30, 2016 178,900 0.03 21,265,985 3.63
September 30, 2016 -84,017 -0.01 21,181,968 3.62
October 7, 2016 606,702 0.10 21,788,670 3.72
October 7, 2016 -2,800 0.00 21,785,870 3.72
October 14, 2016 229,542 0.04 22,015,412 3.76
October 21, 2016 72 0.00 22,015,484 3.76
October 28, 2016 21,625 0.00 22,037,109 3.77
October 28, 2016 -100 0.00 22,037,009 3.77
November 4, 2016 528,166 0.09 22,565,175 3.86
November 4, 2016 -500,000 -0.09 22,065,175 3.77
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Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (Contd.)

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative shareholding

Sl Name of the shareholder of the year during the year
No. No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company of the Company

November 11, 2016 500,389 0.09 22,565,564 3.86
November 11, 2016 -91,000 -0.02 22,474,564 3.84
November 18, 2016 410,244 0.07 22,884,808 3.91
November 18, 2016 -10,500 0.00 22,874,308 3.91
November 25, 2016 250,412 0.04 23,124,720 3.95
December 2, 2016 268,105 0.05 23,392,825 4.00
December 2, 2016 -36 0.00 23,392,789 4.00
December 9, 2016 89 0.00 23,392,878 4.00
December 16, 2016 811 0.00 23,393,689 4.00
December 23, 2016 266,330 0.05 23,660,019 4.04
December 23, 2016 -1,000,000 -0.17 22,660,019 3.87
December 30, 2016 679,323 0.12 23,339,342 3.99
January 6, 2017 208,510 0.04 23,547,852 4.02
January 6, 2017 -39,900 -0.01 23,507,952 4.02
January 13, 2017 200,174 0.03 23,708,126 4.05
January 13, 2017 -21,703 0.00 23,686,423 4.05
January 20, 2017 92,077 0.02 23,778,500 4.06
January 27, 2017 8,040 0.00 23,786,540 4.06
January 27, 2017 -21,000 0.00 23,765,540 4.06
February 3, 2017 -3,857 0.00 23,761,683 4.06
February 10, 2017 -21,050 0.00 23,740,633 4.06
February 17, 2017 410 0.00 23,741,043 4.06
February 24, 2017 320,171 0.05 24,061,214 4.11
March 3, 2017 436,480 0.07 24,497,694 4.19
March 10, 2017 20,249 0.00 24,517,943 4.18
March 17, 2017 23,159 0.00 24,541,102 4.19
March 24, 2017 316,240 0.05 24,857,342 4.24
March 24, 2017 -100,784 -0.02 24,756,558 4.23
March 31, 2017 186,615 0.03 24,943,173 4.26
At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 24,943,173 4.26

2. Reliance Capital Trustee Company Limited
A/c Reliance Vision Fund
At the beginning of the year 2,458,693 0.42 2,458,693 0.42
Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year
April 8, 2016 106,990 0.02 2,565,683 0.44
April 8, 2016 -3 0.00 2,565,680 0.44
April 22, 2016 -116 0.00 2,565,564 0.44
April 29, 2016 331,100 0.06 2,896,664 0.50
April 29, 2016 -23 0.00 2,896,641 0.50
May 6, 2016 23,800 0.00 2,920,441 0.50
May 13, 2016 63 0.00 2,920,504 0.50
May 27, 2016 -75,600 -0.01 2,844,904 0.49
June 3, 2016 16,500 0.00 2,861,404 0.49
June 3, 2016 -97 0.00 2,861,307 0.49
June 10, 2016 -54 0.00 2,861,253 0.49
June 17, 2016 60,209 0.01 2,921,462 0.50
June 17, 2016 -12 0.00 2,921,450 0.50
June 24, 2016 7,000 0.00 2,928,450 0.50
July 1, 2016 -181,300 -0.03 2,747,150 0.47

(Contd.)
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Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (Contd.)

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative shareholding

Sl Name of the shareholder of the year during the year
No. No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company of the Company
July 8, 2016 15 0.00 2,747,165 0.47
July 15, 2016 -104,238 -0.02 2,642,927 0.45
July 22, 2016 -90,500 -0.02 2,552,427 0.44
July 29, 2016 -31,500 -0.01 2,520,927 0.43
August 5, 2016 307,300 0.05 2,828,227 0.48
August 12, 2016 30,100 0.01 2,858,327 0.49
August 12, 2016 -9,800 0.00 2,848,527 0.49
August 19, 2016 119,700 0.02 2,968,227 0.51
August 19, 2016 -21 0.00 2,968,206 0.51
August 26, 2016 354,200 0.06 3,322,406 0.57
September 2, 2016 -93,909 -0.02 3,228,497 0.55
September 9, 2016 7,700 0.00 3,236,197 0.55
September 9, 2016 -30,041 -0.01 3,206,156 0.55
September 16, 2016 -28,449 0.00 3,177,707 0.54
September 23, 2016 -960,400 -0.16 2,217,307 0.38
September 30, 2016 -666,186 -0.11 1,551,121 0.27
October 7, 2016 2,801 0.00 1,553,922 0.27
October 14, 2016 197,400 0.03 1,751,322 0.30
October 14, 2016 -21 0.00 1,751,301 0.30
October 21, 2016 272,469 0.05 2,023,770 0.35
October 28, 2016 196,000 0.03 2,219,770 0.38
November 4, 2016 -9,800 0.00 2,209,970 0.38
November 11, 2016 821,881 0.14 3,031,851 0.52
November 11, 2016 -350,700 -0.06 2,681,151 0.46
November 18, 2016 406,525 0.07 3,087,676 0.53
November 25, 2016 656,869 0.11 3,744,545 0.64
November 25, 2016 -18 0.00 3,744,527 0.64
December 2, 2016 650,203 0.11 4,394,730 0.75
December 2, 2016 -12,157 0.00 4,382,573 0.75
December 9, 2016 -2,100 0.00 4,380,473 0.75
December 16, 2016 276,300 0.05 4,656,773 0.80
December 16, 2016 -1,554 0.00 4,655,219 0.80
December 23, 2016 718,400 0.12 5,373,619 0.92
December 30, 2016 158,872 0.03 5,532,491 0.95
December 30, 2016 -46 0.00 5,532,445 0.95
January 6, 2017 261,894 0.04 5,794,339 0.99
January 6, 2017 -37 0.00 5,794,302 0.99
January 13, 2017 -70,316 -0.01 5,723,986 0.98
January 20, 2017 -138,048 -0.02 5,585,938 0.95
January 27, 2017 -14,303 0.00 5,571,635 0.95
February 3, 2017 -5,280 0.00 5,566,355 0.95
February 10, 2017 601,037 0.10 6,167,392 1.05
February 10, 2017 -25 0.00 6,167,367 1.05
February 17, 2017 400,000 0.07 6,567,367 1.12
February 17, 2017 -37,216 -0.01 6,530,151 1.12
February 24, 2017 680,600 0.12 7,210,751 1.23
February 24, 2017 -703 0.00 7,210,048 1.23
March 3, 2017 485,821 0.08 7,695,869 1.32
March 10, 2017 614,200 0.10 8,310,069 1.42
(Contd.)
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Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (Contd.)

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative shareholding

SI. Name of the shareholder of the year during the year
No. No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company of the Company

March 10, 2017 -312 0.00 8,309,757 1.42
March 17, 2017 371,087 0.06 8,680,844 1.48
March 17, 2017 -21 0.00 8,680,823 1.48
March 24, 2017 957,454 0.16 9,638,277 1.65
March 24, 2017 -4,252 0.00 9,634,025 1.64
March 31, 2017 361,400 0.06 9,995,425 1.71
March 31, 2017 -1,939 0.00 9,993,486 1.71
At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 9,993,486 1.71

3. | Abu Dhabi Investment Authority - Behave Holdings
At the beginning of the year 9,262,761 1.58 9,262,761 1.58
Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year
April 22, 2016 -106,461 -0.02 9,156,300 1.56
April 29, 2016 -441,066 -0.08 8,715,234 1.49
May 6, 2016 296,361 0.05 9,011,595 1.54
May 6, 2016 -13,500 0.00 8,998,095 1.54
May 13, 2016 -453,490 -0.08 8,544,605 1.46
May 27, 2016 590,210 0.10 9,134,815 1.56
May 27, 2016 -3,277 0.00 9,131,538 1.56
June 3, 2016 -499,386 -0.09 8,632,152 1.48
June 24, 2016 -302,653 -0.05 8,329,499 1.42
July 15, 2016 34,727 0.01 8,364,226 1.43
September 2, 2016 -143,953 -0.02 8,220,273 1.40
September 16, 2016 6,363 0.00 8,226,636 1.41
September 23, 2016 -89,847 -0.02 8,136,789 1.39
December 2, 2016 -87,255 -0.01 8,049,534 1.38
December 16, 2016 28,006 0.00 8,077,540 1.38
December 16, 2016 -393,264 -0.07 7,684,276 1.31
December 23, 2016 36,493 0.01 7,720,769 1.32
December 23, 2016 -36,493 -0.01 7,684,276 1.31
February 17, 2017 -162,342 -0.03 7,521,934 1.29
February 24, 2017 -351,068 -0.06 7,170,866 1.23
March 3, 2017 -281,455 -0.05 6,889,411 1.18
March 10, 2017 -866,748 -0.15 6,022,663 1.03
March 17, 2017 -30,370 -0.01 5,992,293 1.02
At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 5,992,293 1.02

4. | Birla Sun Life Trustee Company Private Limited
A/c Birla Sun Life Balanced Fund
At the beginning of the year 1,897,228 0.32 1,897,228 0.32
Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year
April 8, 2016 25,127 0.00 1,922,355 0.33
April 8, 2016 -100,100 -0.02 1,822,255 0.31
April 15, 2016 -4,778 0.00 1,817,477 0.31
April 22, 2016 -5,937 0.00 1,811,540 0.31
May 6, 2016 74 0.00 1,811,614 0.31
May 6, 2016 -1,686 0.00 1,809,928 0.31
May 13, 2016 38 0.00 1,809,966 0.31
May 13, 2016 -503 0.00 1,809,463 0.31
May 20, 2016 13,800 0.00 1,823,263 0.31

(Contd.)
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Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (Contd.)

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative shareholding

SI. Name of the shareholder of the year during the year
No. No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company of the Company

May 27, 2016 70,000 0.01 1,893,263 0.32
June 3, 2016 30,000 0.01 1,923,263 0.33
June 10, 2016 25,000 0.00 1,948,263 0.33
June 17, 2016 -60,000 -0.01 1,888,263 0.32
June 24, 2016 13,756 0.00 1,902,019 0.33
June 30, 2016 50,000 0.01 1,952,019 0.33
July 15, 2016 234,000 0.04 2,186,019 0.37
July 22, 2016 3,400 0.00 2,189,419 0.37
July 22, 2016 -1,824 0.00 2,187,595 0.37
August 5, 2016 122,500 0.02 2,310,095 0.39
August 12, 2016 87,500 0.01 2,397,595 0.41
August 19, 2016 5,700 0.00 2,403,295 0.41
August 26, 2016 262,000 0.04 2,665,295 0.46
August 26, 2016 -25,200 -0.01 2,640,095 0.45
September 2, 2016 170,000 0.03 2,810,095 0.48
September 23, 2016 266,100 0.05 3,076,195 0.53
September 30, 2016 1,673,000 0.29 4,749,195 0.81
September 30, 2016 -66,500 -0.01 4,682,695 0.80
October 7, 2016 400,000 0.07 5,082,695 0.87
October 14, 2016 2,251,598 0.38 7,334,293 1.25
October 28, 2016 121,300 0.02 7,455,593 1.27
November 4, 2016 554,000 0.09 8,009,593 1.37
November 4, 2016 -4,000 0.00 8,005,593 1.37
November 11, 2016 786,000 0.13 8,791,593 1.50
November 11, 2016 -6,300 0.00 8,785,293 1.50
November 18, 2016 114 0.00 8,785,407 1.50
December 2, 2016 28,225 0.01 8,813,632 1.51
December 9, 2016 -322,000 -0.06 8,491,632 1.45
December 16, 2016 100,000 0.02 8,591,632 1.47
December 16, 2016 -570,100 -0.10 8,021,532 1.37
December 23, 2016 -446,752 -0.08 7,574,780 1.29
December 30, 2016 184,000 0.03 7,758,780 1.33
December 30, 2016 -86,800 -0.01 7,671,980 1.31
January 13, 2017 -100,000 -0.02 7,571,980 1.29
January 20, 2017 240,422 0.04 7,812,402 1.34
January 27, 2017 -2,000 -0.01 7,810,402 1.33
February 3, 2017 100,000 0.02 7,910,402 1.35
February 10, 2017 -252,000 -0.04 7,658,402 1.31
February 17, 2017 -100,000 -0.02 7,558,402 1.29
February 24, 2017 487,500 0.08 8,045,902 1.37
March 17, 2017 -150,000 -0.03 7,895,902 1.35
March 24, 2017 169,000 0.03 8,064,902 1.38
March 24, 2017 -165,000 -0.03 7,899,902 1.35
March 31, 2017 476,000 0.08 8,375,902 1.43
At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 8,375,902 1.43

5. Stichting Depositary APG Emerging Markets Equity Pool
At the beginning of the year 7,445,434 1.27 7,445,434 1.27
Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year
April 15, 2016 -204,631 -0.03 7,240,803 1.24
April 29, 2016 -156,567 -0.03 7,084,236 1.21

(Contd.)
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Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (Contd.)

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative shareholding

Sl Name of the shareholder of the year during the year
No. No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company of the Company

May 13, 2016 107,694 0.02 7,191,930 1.23
May 20, 2016 -73,136 -0.01 7,118,794 1.22
May 27, 2016 92,169 0.02 7,210,963 1.23
June 10, 2016 39,797 0.01 7,250,760 1.24
June 17, 2016 46,009 0.01 7,296,769 1.25
July 15, 2016 -81,529 -0.01 7,215,240 1.23
July 22, 2016 38,878 0.01 7,254,118 1.24
July 29, 2016 -6,183 0.00 7,247,935 1.24
August 5, 2016 -20,541 0.00 7,227,394 1.24
August 19, 2016 -153,623 -0.03 7,073,771 1.21
August 26, 2016 -85,806 -0.01 6,987,965 1.19
September 2, 2016 779,136 0.13 7,767,101 1.33
September 16, 2016 -155,919 -0.03 7,611,182 1.30
September 23, 2016 -15,585 0.00 7,595,597 1.30
September 30, 2016 -256,333 -0.04 7,339,264 1.25
October 7, 2016 -28,501 0.00 7,310,763 1.25
October 14, 2016 64,949 0.01 7,375,712 1.26
October 21, 2016 -293,882 -0.05 7,081,830 1.21
November 4, 2016 -407,250 -0.07 6,674,580 1.14
November 18, 2016 -188,746 -0.03 6,485,834 1.11
November 25, 2016 232,521 0.04 6,718,355 1.15
December 2, 2016 -557,429 -0.10 6,160,926 1.05
December 16, 2016 214,918 0.04 6,375,844 1.09
January 20, 2017 399,811 0.07 6,775,655 1.16
January 27, 2017 124,348 0.02 6,900,003 1.18
February 3, 2017 140,009 0.02 7,040,012 1.20
March 3, 2017 -194,107 -0.03 6,845,905 1.17
March 10, 2017 -172,547 -0.03 6,673,358 1.14
March 17, 2017 -437,721 -0.07 6,235,637 1.06
March 31, 2017 212,845 0.04 6,448,482 1.10
At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 6,448,482 1.10

6. Jhunjhunwala Rakesh Radheshyam
At the beginning of the year 6,525,000 1.12 6,525,000 1.12
Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year
October 7, 2016 -175,000 -0.03 6,350,000 1.09
January 6, 2017 800,000 0.14 7,150,000 1.22
January 6, 2017 -800,000 -0.14 6,350,000 1.09
March 31, 2017 6,350,000 1.08
At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 6,350,000 1.08

7. SBI Magnum Equity Fund
At the beginning of the year 5,465,293 0.93 5,465,293 0.93
Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year
April 8, 2016 636,216 0.11 6,101,509 1.04
April 8, 2016 -85,341 -0.01 6,016,168 1.03
April 15, 2016 687 0.00 6,016,855 1.03
April 15, 2016 -916 0.00 6,015,939 1.03
April 22, 2016 1,998 0.00 6,017,937 1.03
April 29, 2016 4,551 0.00 6,022,488 1.03
April 29, 2016 -1,282 0.00 6,021,206 1.03

(Contd.)
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Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (Contd.)

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative shareholding

Sl Name of the shareholder of the year during the year
No. No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company of the Company
May 6, 2016 102,691 0.02 6,123,897 1.05
May 13, 2016 200,588 0.03 6,324,485 1.08
May 20, 2016 8,679 0.00 6,333,164 1.08
May 27, 2016 16,416 0.00 6,349,580 1.09
May 27, 2016 -120 0.00 6,349,460 1.09
June 3, 2016 110,458 0.02 6,459,918 1.10
June 3, 2016 -60,000 -0.01 6,399,918 1.09
June 10, 2016 1,221 0.00 6,401,139 1.09
June 10, 2016 -853 0.00 6,400,286 1.09
June 17, 2016 118,559 0.02 6,518,845 1.11
June 24, 2016 16,062 0.00 6,534,907 1.12
June 30, 2016 211,172 0.04 6,746,079 1.15
June 30, 2016 -9,136 0.00 6,736,943 1.15
July 1, 2016 99,990 0.02 6,836,933 1.17
July 1, 2016 -37 0.00 6,836,896 1.17
July 8, 2016 393,276 0.07 7,230,172 1.24
July 8, 2016 -5,500 0.00 7,224,672 1.23
July 15, 2016 177 0.00 7,224,849 1.23
July 15, 2016 -8,503 0.00 7,216,346 1.23
July 22, 2016 1,258 0.00 7,217,604 1.23
July 22, 2016 -404 0.00 7,217,200 1.23
July 29, 2016 5,403 0.00 7,222,603 1.23
August 5, 2016 5,980 0.00 7,228,583 1.24
August 12, 2016 212,300 0.04 7,440,883 1.27
August 12, 2016 -203,000 -0.03 7,237,883 1.24
August 19, 2016 2,321 0.00 7,240,204 1.24
August 26, 2016 9,982 0.00 7,250,186 1.24
August 26, 2016 -50 0.00 7,250,136 1.24
September 2, 2016 20,315 0.00 7,270,451 1.24
September 2, 2016 -1,500 0.00 7,268,951 1.24
September 9, 2016 20,602 0.00 7,289,553 1.25
September 16, 2016 825,127 0.14 8,114,680 1.39
September 16, 2016 -90,000 -0.02 8,024,680 1.37
September 23, 2016 16,738 0.00 8,041,418 1.37
September 30, 2016 15,211 0.00 8,056,629 1.38
September 30, 2016 -28,701 0.00 8,027,928 1.37
October 7, 2016 201,088 0.03 8,229,016 1.41
October 14, 2016 4,197,793 0.72 12,426,809 2.12
October 21, 2016 174,877 0.03 12,601,686 2.15
October 28, 2016 93,179 0.02 12,694,865 2.17
November 4, 2016 76,607 0.01 12,771,472 2.18
November 11, 2016 211,624 0.04 12,983,096 2.22
November 18, 2016 107,733 0.02 13,090,829 2.24
November 25, 2016 213,204 0.04 13,304,033 2.27
November 25, 2016 -26,600 0.00 13,277,433 2.27
December 2, 2016 27,713 0.00 13,305,146 2.27
December 9, 2016 18,258 0.00 13,323,404 2.28
December 9, 2016 -50,000 -0.01 13,273,404 2.27
December 16, 2016 40,424 0.01 13,313,828 2.28
(Contd.)
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Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (Contd.)

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative shareholding

Sl Name of the shareholder of the year during the year
No. No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company of the Company

December 23, 2016 75,823 0.01 13,389,651 2.29
December 30, 2016 69,766 0.01 13,459,417 2.30
January 6, 2017 455,229 0.08 13,914,646 2.38
January 6, 2017 -50,358 -0.01 13,864,288 2.37
January 13, 2017 106,974 0.02 13,971,262 2.39
January 13, 2017 -6,300 0.00 13,964,962 2.39
January 20, 2017 8,615 0.00 13,973,577 2.39
January 20, 2017 -11,601 0.00 13,961,976 2.39
January 27, 2017 90,804 0.02 14,052,780 2.40
February 3, 2017 95,795 0.02 14,148,575 2.42
February 3, 2017 -1,179 0.00 14,147,396 2.42
February 10, 2017 150,472 0.03 14,297,868 2.44
February 10, 2017 -6,383 0.00 14,291,485 2.44
February 17, 2017 223,905 0.04 14,515,390 2.48
February 17, 2017 -114,100 -0.02 14,401,290 2.46
February 24, 2017 16,739 0.00 14,418,029 2.46
March 3, 2017 183,196 0.03 14,601,225 2.50
March 3, 2017 -8,000 0.00 14,593,225 2.49
March 10, 2017 83,256 0.01 14,676,481 2.51
March 10, 2017 -6 0.00 14,676,475 2.51
March 17, 2017 2,790 0.00 14,679,265 2.51
March 24, 2017 208 0.00 14,679,473 2.51
March 24, 2017 -391,116 -0.07 14,288,357 2.44
March 31, 2017 55,463 0.01 14,343,820 2.45
March 31, 2017 -332 0.00 14,343,488 2.45
At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 14,343,488 2.45

8. Government of Singapore
At the beginning of the year 4,329,905 0.74 4,329,905 0.74
Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year
April 8, 2016 324,019 0.06 4,653,924 0.80
April 15, 2016 7 0.00 4,653,931 0.80
April 22, 2016 -130,360 -0.02 4,523,571 0.77
April 29, 2016 -62,511 -0.01 4,461,060 0.76
May 6, 2016 -110,651 -0.02 4,350,409 0.74
May 13, 2016 -10 0.00 4,350,399 0.74
June 3, 2016 132,510 0.02 4,482,909 0.77
June 10, 2016 92,616 0.02 4,575,525 0.78
July 8, 2016 -72,042 -0.01 4,503,483 0.77
July 22, 2016 -6,416 0.00 4,497,067 0.77
July 29, 2016 -53,020 -0.01 4,444,047 0.76
August 5, 2016 -32,960 -0.01 4,411,087 0.75
August 12, 2016 -1,705 0.00 4,409,382 0.75
September 2, 2016 -27,251 0.00 4,382,131 0.75
September 9, 2016 3,695 0.00 4,385,826 0.75
September 16, 2016 -108 0.00 4,385,718 0.75
October 7, 2016 -74,066 -0.01 4,311,652 0.74
November 4, 2016 -9,269 0.00 4,302,383 0.74
November 11, 2016 -8,900 0.00 4,293,483 0.73

(Contd.)
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Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (Contd.)

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative shareholding

SI. Name of the shareholder of the year during the year
No. No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company of the Company

November 25, 2016 -57 0.00 4,293,426 0.73
December 2, 2016 332,549 0.06 4,625,975 0.79
December 9, 2016 -8,598 0.00 4,617,377 0.79
December 30, 2016 27,492 0.00 4,644,869 0.79
January 6, 2017 25,643 0.00 4,670,512 0.80
January 20, 2017 8,556 0.00 4,679,068 0.80
February 3, 2017 -156,832 -0.03 4,522,236 0.77
February 10, 2017 -54,807 -0.01 4,467,429 0.76
February 17, 2017 -257,835 -0.04 4,209,594 0.72
March 3, 2017 -19,923 0.00 4,189,671 0.72
March 10, 2017 -9,745 0.00 4,179,926 0.71
March 31, 2017 -42,076 -0.01 4,137,850 0.71
At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 4,137,850 0.71

9. Morgan Stanley Mauritius Company Limited
At the beginning of the year 2,650,791 0.45 2,650,791 0.45
Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year
Apri 8, 2016 700 0.00 2,651,491 0.45
Apri 15, 2016 192,339 0.03 2,843,830 0.49
Apri 22, 2016 182,700 0.03 3,026,530 0.52
Apri 29, 2016 189,405 0.03 3,215,935 0.55
May 6, 2016 1,400 0.00 3,217,335 0.55
May 13, 2016 3,500 0.00 3,220,835 0.55
May 27, 2016 4,200 0.00 3,225,035 0.55
June 3, 2016 9,100 0.00 3,234,135 0.55
June 10, 2016 17,286 0.00 3,251,421 0.56
June 17, 2016 15,506 0.00 3,266,927 0.56
June 24, 2016 14,810 0.00 3,281,737 0.56
July 8, 2016 72,100 0.01 3,353,837 0.57
July 22, 2016 351,497 0.06 3,705,334 0.63
July 29, 2016 47,966 0.01 3,753,300 0.64
August 5, 2016 93,855 0.02 3,847,155 0.66
August 12, 2016 -2,438 0.00 3,844,717 0.66
August 19, 2016 -20,397 0.00 3,824,320 0.65
August 26, 2016 -282,021 -0.05 3,542,299 0.61
September 2, 2016 -98,134 -0.02 3,444,165 0.59
September 9, 2016 -759 0.00 3,443,406 0.59
September 16, 2016 -11,894 0.00 3,431,512 0.59
September 23, 2016 146,368 0.03 3,577,880 0.61
September 30, 2016 2,491 0.00 3,580,371 0.61
October 7, 2016 -232,310 -0.04 3,348,061 0.57
October 14, 2016 100,270 0.02 3,448,331 0.59
October 21, 2016 13,952 0.00 3,462,283 0.59
October 28, 2016 394,553 0.07 3,856,836 0.66
November 4, 2016 -70,033 -0.01 3,786,803 0.65
November 11, 2016 -312,211 -0.05 3,474,592 0.59
November 18, 2016 -91,088 -0.02 3,383,504 0.58
November 25, 2016 -91,909 -0.02 3,291,595 0.56
December 2, 2016 -102,087 -0.02 3,189,508 0.55

(Contd.)
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Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (Contd.)

Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding
S